CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ] 87 [
INVITATION TO INVEST IN THE INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

11. ANNEXURES

11.1 ANNEXURE 1 - Accountant’s Report and five-year summary
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KPMG Tel 04 - 11 542 6425
(Charierad Accouniants) Fax. +04 - 11 244 5372
324, Sic Mehamed Macan Markiar Mawaths, +84 - 11 244 GOSE
P 0, Box 186, Internet WL KT COmUER

Colombo 00300, Sri Lanka

D™ Tanuary 2025

The Beoard of Direttors,

Capital Alliance Haoldings Limited,
Level 5, “"Millennium House™,
46/58, Nawam Mawatha,
Colombo 02,

Sri Lanka.

Dcar Sirs,

ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT FOR THE INCLUSION IN THE PROSPECTUS OF
CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ISSUED IN CONNECTION WITH THE
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER TO SUBSCRIBE UP TO A MAXIMUM NO. OF 157,500,000
ORDINARY SHARES

This report has been prepared for the inclusion in the Prospectus issued in connection with the
Initial Public Offer to subscribe up to a maximum no. of 137,500,000 ordinary shares of Capital
Alliance Holdings Limited (“the Company™).

1 INCORPORATION

The Company was incorporated on 25th March 2003 and commenced its commercial operations.
on 07th April 2003,

2 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have examined the Fimancial Statements of Capital Alliance Holdings Limited for the
financial vears ended 31* March 2020 to 31 March 2024 and report as follows:

2.1 Five Years Summary of Audited Financial Statements

A Summary of Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statements of
Financial Position, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows of Capital
Allisnce Holdings Limited for the years ended 31 Mareh 2020 to 317 March 2024, based on the
audited financial statements of the Group and Company are set cut in Annexure 1 of the
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12 Awdided Finaneiof Statansosts for the pear ended 31 March 2024

Statement of Financial Pesition az at 3 1 Bdarch 2024, the related Statement of Frofit or Lives and
Other Comprehensive Income, Changes i Equity snd Cashilews for the year then endad and
summary of natenisl accounting policies and other explanatory notes are included in Annexure 2

of the Prospecius.

We have audited these Financial Stafenzents and our asdit repert thercon dated 25"" November
2024 [salso enclosed,

23 Awdis Reports

We have audited the Financial Statements of Capital Alliance Holdmgs Limited tor the vears
ended 31% March 2020 s 31¥ March 2024, Unmodified opinions have been expréssed on the
said Finmicial Statements,

14 Application of Acooumiing Standurds and Accounting Policies

The Finsncial Statements of the Groap and Company for the vears ended 319 March 2020 10 317
March 2024 comply with 55 Lanka Accounting Standards.

The' accounting policies of the Growp snd Company are dischosed in the audited Financial
Statements of the Group and Company for the years ended 3 1" March 2020 to 31 March 2024,

There were no material chunges in the accounting polivies: of the Group and Company for e
wvears ended 317 March 2620 10 317 March 2024,

25 Dividends paid

The Company has paid dividend during the years ended 319 March 2020 1o 31% March 2024 a5
fotlows:

Year Dividend paid (LKR) ] Drividend Per Share {LKR)
20192020 2 -
2026/2021 325 67,884 D57 =
20212022 200376213 3.L5 |
el el el - = i
202372024 E&50, 7310734 A |

2.6  Evenis afier Reporting dare

There were no significant evernts pocurred after the last sudit report date,
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27 Restriction on usé¢
This report is made solely for the purpose of inclusion in the prospectus issued in connection

with the Initial Public Offering of 157,500,000 ordinary shares by Capital Alliance Holdings
Limited.

Yours faithfully,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT DR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR FNDED 31*" MARCH,
GROUP

Trterest Income

[nterest Expente

et Inecest Income/ {Experse)

Fee Based Income

Met Gains ! (losses) from Trading

Net Fair Value Gains/{Losses) from Financial Assets at VT,

Dnroct Expenses

Dthar lancome [ (Experse)

Tatal Operating lncome

Personnel Expenses

Depreciation & Amomization

Orther Opetating Expenses
(Impairment) | reversals of Subsidiancs
Operating Profit (Loss)

Share of Profit from Equity scccunted Tnvestee (Net of Tax)
Profit{Loss) Before Income Tax
Income Tax (Expense) / Reversal
Profit / {Lass} for the year

Profil { {Loss) sttributable to;
Crwmers of the Company
Men-Controliing Interests

Profit ! (Lossy for the year

Baslc Esrmings / (Loss) per Share (Rs.)

2024 2023 02 2021 2020
Rs, RS Rs Bs s
10741756453 4,933,953,995 662249284 1171893216  1,544.525,187
(6759307.512)  (3,30,326,008)  (421.859,171)  (8S1.805.274)  (1,270,632.385)
I9RZAS0041 1613627987 240,300,113 320,087 942 273 492,502
L2903R0619  LITHTIIO00 | A6355TANL 1.029.089,6%4 500,574,966
060517107 623824930  (IHLSENAMG)  1377,197480 90,677,273
BR2IZ0AT 1659289479 (5.549284)  (103843844) 107186939
(68752,133) (16912618 (7516770 (17.882,924) (22,182 385)
TIA G 11,620,083 29,154,519 16,559,574 B551,1T2
36371204976  6,071,182870  133B431,361 2571206842  |758,710,767
(3579256059  (1231545,57TT) (816,229.001) (729,915 805) (444 B23,034)
LOIABT 344 (T9,002,245) (62,0127370)  (59.592,188)  (SS.614.860)
(1.B45,627.578)  (9R1B9L9RK)  (ISD4AS90%)  (MGI45031) (2955070100
WMAIZEIIHAE 3TTEA53.060 ILI50EE 1535350816 961,765 854
21,070,301 4 540,470 5.784,768 (T 599471
20.713.894.246  3,783,19%,530 295350852 1531606702 6B, 165,735
(6,622.920,742) (1 007T669.830)  (158484036)  (418,906.878)  (282.054.585)
H4,090,970.504  2.775,523.700 136915826  1.112,689.404 686,111,150
IANITENAST 2239271079 171,040,767 10207T4TIS 615174884
2753204, 147 536,246,621 (34,i24.941) 91,913,108 70,936,266
14 000,973 504 2,775,523,700 136,915,826 112,609 824 636,111,150
10397 2348 179 1073 §.49
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSTVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
GROUE Hida 20023 o] | 2030

.18 Re Rs Rs Rs
Profit [ { Loss) for the Year 14000973504 2,775.533,700 1I6GISA6 1112689828 GE5ILLISD
Other Comprehensive Incame §Expense)
Ttemy ihat will ot be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Financeal Azt Measizred at FYOIC - Reelasaified 1o Profil or Loss - L - . {36,002 750)
Fureign currency translstion differences of forgign operations [t 2 4e0) (200300471 192,575 364 15931 818 {2,726, 278}
Ttems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Defined Benefit Plan Actunnal Gaing | {Losses) 121,246,305} (9,677 481) 23,745,180 (13,770,802} 2,003.704
Ereferred Tax on Actuarial Gwirs ( (Losses) 6051625 2,007 266 46671303 3331912 1363,655)
Loss on invesmynt measured at FYTOC) - {773 655) . . (174,695%
Share of other comprebensive income from sguity accounied investoes
(net of 1ax) (34812 1T TIR D.B35.B46 AT TRAGE
Other Comprehensiye Tncome | (Expense) for the year 1216732,952)  [205.205.643) 221,489 260 7,431 010 (53,175 2068
Total Comprehensive lucame [ (Exgense) for the year 13,874, 240,552 2570318057 358405086  1,120713,663 H45 935 544
Total Comprehensive lncomef| Expense) attributable to:
Orwners of the Company TT,A95. 271,631 2.126,520,3596 356,534 315 1,028, 745,110 581,340,275
Non-controlling inferesis 2ATH 90852 443,397 661 LETOTTI 7] 368 553 67.586,660
Totsl Comprehensive Incamef| Expenses) for the year 13874240.,552  2.570.31E057 338405086 1120313663 [EERERR TR
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ASAT M MARCH

GROUP 2024 2023 022 2021 020

s Rs. Rs R Rs,
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivatents 1, 136,890,360 A58 381 381 S8 BN 64 34b 630,736 2231, 787
Finomcial Assets Measured at FVTFL G6O881,033014 37,907,340, 487 8,231 084,853 12018231,512  15.848,017,7938
Finaneial Assets Measgred ar FVDC] - TA402,021 112,670,228 Q75,716 G175 T8
Financial Assets Megsured ol Amortized Cost 1,157,988, 454 716,635,009 40,167,893 93,194,530 1, 182,251,233
Trade und Other Receivahles LOTS, 864,325 D ATRINIZE 2466656990 1.856,119,326 569,848,912
Amounis Due from Related Entities - 2,006,562 186,206 1416506 2,000,000
[nvesiment in Substdianes - - - - -
Investment n Joimt Venturc - R6.361,754 T8 122307 62,500,093 04,1 17.696
Intangible Assets 149,708 614 157,032,206 BU,097,689 60,782,174 B, 742,827
RBight of use Assels 102,801,321 137,045,860 [29,498 321 59,974 804 4 067,267
Equipment L 40,845,836 §7.653,382 41279402 47,046,416 47,732.216
Deferred Tax Asszts 43622443 26294177 50,182,230 14,278,467 57.942.264
Ineeme Tax Recoverable - . . - 8,733,754
Total Asscts 66, 590,754,407 41,824 446,258 11,812 836,768 14.672,401,900 16,086,861 482
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Liabilities
Bank Owverdrafis . - - 80, 106617 A08 467,202
Financial Lubilines Memsured at Amworised Cost 17914225387 31897725503 6,886954.879 10,169,835,183 12,953,143 544
Trade and Other Payables 39017,195,041 |,.933,500,66% 1,00, 714,901 B67, 184,199 276,251,740
Income Tax Payable 4,902,449, 145 894,753,052 106,975,240 200,948 840 736,981,071
Amounts Due to Related Entities - - . - 250007
Lease Liahiliny 115,013,852 147, 542 66 133,120,400 60,450,750 16,070 487
Deferred Tax fiability 1RO, 208 1439967 1,387,910 2,271,858 -
Retisement Benafit Obligetions 148,402,712 FO4 664,408 82,841,298 95,145,054 fid, 574,240
Total Liabilities 47, 082 465 438 14,979,626,730 8,213.994 A58 11,575.942,501 13,855,698, 851
Equity
Stated Capital 2,532, 708,096 233331 471 B8 936,700 8,936,700 61,250,030
Special Risk Reserve 2316518 030 GIT A9 681 Gad, 799007 544 799.017 S48, 150,203
Farr Value Rescrve - 20,033,695 17,067,672 T231,826 5,100,715
Retayed Earnings I, B0E 827473 3,962, 188,781 2,034,715 805 2,087.649,835 L5012, 116
Foreipn Comreney’ Translation Reserve (67,306,457 61,208,454 170,747,153 13,203,340 {2,726,278)
Equity attributable (6 owners of the Company L6,590.937, 102 194252082 2,956,266,347 2,841.822,738 2,026,787 488
‘Non Controliing Interest 2917351 567 | 650,567 446 662 575 TR 254,636,661 214,375,345
Tuotal Equity 13,508 288,969 6,844 819,528 3618842130 1006459399 3131 162,830
Total Liabitities and Equity &6, 590, 754 407 41,824 446 258 |1 B32 836,768 14,672 401,900 16,036,861 482
Met Assets Value per Share (Rs) 12999 52.86 3100 2980 21.38
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CAFTAL ALLIANCE HOLIENGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES % EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3™ MARCH
Stalrd Fair Vilus Fercigs Cwrrency Special Risk Riained Tetsd Man Comteolling Teud
RO Capital Brierve Trambsiiue reserve Heserve Earalegs Tatgrenty
Bis. Ri Bx s ity Hr, R R
Balmace ag ar pi® Al 1019 h 1 Ha 050 R B - ATLALLTES B, EEW S 1363, 350 968 | EF S P00 L7205 66h
Impant e sdopoon of IFRAC 31 C L - = RITLAL LR TR [{LESFRE ] (K17, %41)
Admatsd Balanes au 5t Olsi April 2019 il 250 030 JTAT0ETE - AJLANL TS W97 567 KT 140 075, | 45 | 19 S02.500 1645400704
Trelal cmngechemyme mouoc fior the v
Prefit For the ear . | . | - - l TENELT CIENR T H TG MGG [ATTNE
Dther campaehesgiv Tscome for e vear . (EERHE T AL NIA TN . 15370304} £33, M35 B0 13,343 5974 37,175,208}
Total Compresmaise Exgeme - 27 J2080T) {2,725, 17H) a [N TR FIETFE] #1An8 070 £ 0 B
Tranafarrad T the Spocial Risk Reserve E ® = TIIH IRE 71,734 | kay E = =
Trugartion with egoity boldory
Adjusimest dey 55 changes o beldey E ' - - [F LT RECA ] (P01 1041 PR ] LP LR R ]
Adpurtment dee 5o ks of Contral i . me LI [ra KAL) 119, 1109.358)
lanma of Storon (Pesding Aliatmenti - - - - - TA0naln P
Tolal Tramactiens wilh owncii otk D = A . T 0, S H) 640,91 (22,610,980 W 2N IR
"
Halance 2t st 11 ™ Alarch 2000 sl 230,030 !._{nu_'.l (£] m Hl.lﬁm 1.II.\£I.I.III- EU‘I‘.’?I" dxT I8 7 30 Le2A51
Halance 43t 017 Aprid 2000 280 00 000013 {2, Tin 2Ry A 150 M [EFER I FRTTY L0 TET ARG 2378348 2230 115
Fhoog mrand dating e v IT Ak ETR - - = - ITREL AN “ T AES AT
Tl eoempnebensive avoome For the yep
Frofit fer B v . . - I' - I 1.0 TS 16007415 [ [T TEAT] [RIFE LT
Dbt eoerprehicnane bedome Fof e yext - T ANLAL 15931 580 - i 18.092.344) o103 (A6 5503 Lella%e
Tousl Comprehesacie Eupetse . AN 156 Laln - Lrm, had Ledu LI W bl ¥ 1131 484
Transdforrod To s Sgermyl Rk Revore ¥ - - AR i Ada, 143 - - &
v itdonats P et E . - - (F25. 647, R0 (225 4T ARG} {2064, 5) (255.017.005)
Troanuwatioes with equiry halders
Adjusimend diu 1o chargo n bakiing - . - = 015,748, paE) (IR THE&EL) JU ey FIT.A%6 &)
Total Trpmgacunns nith maaces of e Corpim . 5 - - 113 74140 115748 44K} {11L39R,322) ZT.ANR BT
“
Bualance as at 117 Masch a2 036, G 1280, 62 13,205 140 SHLTOLT LT 64 R3S TEALARRI RRi T JL06s 415 399
Binna: s at 1% Agpril 202) T8 MG 7230028 13,304 310 PR 20T G AL 2R AR TV 54,876,650 1004, 496,100
Shares svevd durag the v = » ¥ = a » 457 TR 150 49T 37BN
Tiatn| compachonie o fo e year
Pradii for the year E . . I - I 171,040,767
Thir compeeteran: oo T The 1o . 535088 I57 541013 - 1£.115.889
Total Camperhotivg latooe - AN EE [E TN IE] - T
Treferred Te the Spociad Risk Rewere . . - - - 3 - .
Divadend pasd duriag e viar B - - - 0ITE215 (8 LR el LT L3 i, 33 CYR3A00 T45)
Trurpsctisns wich squity baldery
Adumimers doc 82 thanget m kaldiag F . 3 = HE.3K5, 509 LTINS I 18, IS, v .
Tkl T licng with swmws of the Company - . - - 5E RS SR _SRIRS 0N [ELETERETC =
Balance & 2 31 Maech 2022 W5 RIA. 0 | Toatatt 1T T4, 158 e TR0 T 103471 5. 808 2956166 17 £63 575 TR} 1A5IE242.030
Balance s 0081 Apoid 2012 TA.906, 00 IT&TATY AT 747,153 S THR0NT 1004715804 Lot Ieh FHT G2 515 TRY LETL S SR RR
Stares nsoed deneg, ihe v LR R - - . 134294711 = B3294,T71
At of sladan derag e e . . . . - i 44,563,076 SMSENATE
Total compraeenuive meome Tor the wear
Profif for L vear = I . . - I 23277 08 FRITEFE T SHE LAY LT1852).
Oicher eomprobensive Raooms for dhe veae = 196,011 2198 - {5474 007) {182 356,583 H
Teatal Cisprichactsing Lintin - Folate AT 10N Y - T IIE 403 072 L ITh 9T T [TEE T FRT 8] iyﬂ“’
Tramslorral To the Spooial Ridk Rosorv . . - TED B0 kel [IEE 700 s4) - & .
Orviders pasd dusing the v e B . . (AR L] [RRL A
Traneasiions with oguthy haldém
Adjuvtment dut 10 changes i halding - - a - 23139451 [FER LR N L] ILIF0 472 .
Adfjustrent o 10 Lo of Coanol » . . - - . . »
s of Shares (Padiag Afotmanl] . - s - 2 .
Toeal iramsctions with ganen of U Conspan - s a 2L IEIT) L re A3 '!!2_1"..“1 .
Babance an ol 31% March HQ3 FIEIALATE I8 DYI A9 B R A5 ATt 49611 BT 188 TH| 4,184 742 1A% SAT 440 A B9 AT
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Dabeince aa af 01 Apeil T0T3 WA AT WD LIRS BIT AR 3952198, T8 1% 192 002 1640, 0T, deh LR L]
Sk aad deting the v LI 5RE 4TS - - . - 1309 35 623 . 1,30, 566 14
Diigpoasl of aguiry wiodsoked brromes Suring the 3o . TV RN - 3T Ty (EERT S CH ] - LR LR ]
Tl compichansive inooe: o e vear

o For the. v - . s i 1 TR EET [
bt ey Enocmmad {Exp For b vy - (e 81T . LAYLTE T, 1
Fatal Cpmprehomises Enpat v [ATT T 5 TR Tk L (L LY . Tiasdimeved  ILISAITIAN]  SATROMRURI 1) KM saRind
Tramaforrad T the Spoval Risk Rasery - . - G (R . -

Reclassfication of Frir Vasus emerve - 3270 - ‘ 432700

IHwirais Paymest (AT IR TIOOM)  (SRAZTHEY)  NTAINRD
Tonmasctioom with baity haldon

Advimens gos b elanges in hebdig . - . (B3I 019, B, 088 0,10 58 )
It Saidiary . - . (LTSRS AN (1 3TESES AN}
st of Shases | Peonclng Alstmar| - . ‘ 19 Wi TH 105,503, 20
Total iraeesricmns wik cnvar of e Taepesy = = . 5 i e iR AT (L1803 ETT

Balance us ot 11" March 2034 E 552 TUE U6 - 147306 A0T) T V16 W10 LLSDR LIT 4T] 1A 3. 102 LIELTS ks 15308 JERME
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CATITAL ALLIANCE HOLBINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT DF CASH FLOW
FORTHE YEAR ERTED 1™ MARCH
GROLP 10624 2023 blrh ] HEi 2030
e R Rs Fi Ri

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profli / | Lose ) before Income Tax Expeing 0TI TG 3,783,193,430 205,309,857 | 330606707 Q6563 TAE
Adjuxtoments For,
Deprecitiion of Peoperry Plant & Tquepenent 42760436 O A3IEIY 17502374 16,027,715 119533
Amartzation of Inangile Ascets F2148 1938 15264, 178 5,033 873 I A58 20 BES Rl
Frovisiin for Reliring Casleity 38 S0T AO0 b i e L 15,055 168 17,335,011 15,526,188
Lass on Mispouals of Praperty Plast & Equigment nnd Istirgible Asssts 480,300 1A2A LS 2,133,855 s 652,991
Share of { prolit Vi of Giprity secownted investees [nelal tax) (210703010 ) (4. 540,470) 5,784, 768) ERL AR (830 rh)]
Digposal Gain an Sale of Avsocinte {1,045} - -
Provision for ampasinnei of tmde receivabies 12758170 605,043 1T 5. REA 46T 4921 3483
Wrhe aff nvesiment m Un quoted Shares T80 4 = £ -
Vravigion for Investment in Lin guoded Shaces T A40 .
Provisizn for impairmen of Finsneinl Avsen Measured A1 FY00] . 1,000, By - -
Impmitment of Sulivdiary . - . » -
Weite afl uf delton : 4,669 554 1,503 363 920,714
Deprevasiion of ROU Aszets A8 578712 43,394 148 T, HH,320 IT 01T 14,756,355
Finanee Coston ROU Assely 101,348,707 L0,741, 754 601400 103021 3,100,952
Med Fair Valoe Gaing' Lostes) from Finamcral Assess s FYTPL 1582, 129,274) 11659 2804T9) 5,549,284 N BRI 44 107,186,239
Met Capital (Gain)' Losses on snle ostment in Shares CHGET 14,790,249 (552374100 2 064,204 17981
et Capetal Giaiea on Invvestman in Uit Trusts (58,943,785 {22,504 959) (17862, 00T {17,179,604) (15R4610)
Mer Capital Gal on Debantane - - : . (2.855.978)
Drividend Income: (21,2 05 L3003 1ETI 09 14,5604 464 (2,540,704
Mer Capital Gaind (Losses) dn Treasury Bilki, Bonds nd Soverchgn Bands (19000660 412) (616, L13.220) FE5 190,041 (10N 082 0s0) (854,570, Celk4)
Interest bncornic 1741, TSEA53) BN 005) (662,259, 284) (127853018 (1544925187
Imu:‘sl'l':'vp-nnﬂ .77 95T 405 3,308 554 154 415245 15 RafL002 283 1.267.531,433
Operating Profit | [Loss) before Changes in Opeenting Actlviiies (3,089,748, 76() (L2 515279) 114,826, 749 115,906,37) (190,795,297}
{Increase) | Decrense in Sevunties Perchaas wader Resale Agregiventa (642,071, 712) (332.661.TH4) PIR T REZI7E 309 TR 001462
[Increasm) | Dxevense in Financial Assete measured at FVTIL [EIT0065,235) (263333D801) TOILGIETEE  3ARSIIOND (3,565, M0.467)
[imcrcate) | Deerense in Trade and Othes Beceiables (RE2079,433) TATO62Y  (SFGAIIMT (1, 320910,60) (120963 301)
[eerease ) | Dretreaze in Ayt Die from Related Friilies 2004 562 (180, 356) “1L230.300 SERAM (2,000, 000
Incresye | {Dearrase} in Secunties Sobd Linder Repurchase Agreements TIEE LTS 01 T4 EER01T06F (3050806, 54T) (3 AN 025 52T) L0056, T8
Incresse /| Deereaie) ity Asmants Dus m Reloted Entitics v . - (250,017 20007
Irerease ¢ {Dhverpase) n Toide & Oiler Fayabiles L9T8.04.372 G4, 156,150 34,088 607 630,932 458 BB 010000

JHTES 5T (LI REL36R)  [HIB3TTI0T) 2664, 833 [1.164,527.821)
Tax Pard £2,514.075,531) (MOIOT ST (3915876807 (464 1ETGAD) {67, 187, 0
Crraiuriiy Faid Lli,ﬂij,i{m L 1a,e2 e 108 PR C1] | $34.0007 [ A5E.TI0)
Net cush Generates fromd {Dsed in} Operatiog Aclivities L 123470543 1;&!&&9&,#4?]_{&115!139!: (175,937, 248)  {0,23%,174.271)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
et [nvestirsend i Shares (LS5 383 269 (320264 J63 200,524 {FH 374 2680 56, 140,843
Net Invesement b Commergial Papers - * Je1 M 532 2013, 66K ORT (337 R46,369)
Procesds fram Dispoul of Asocialz 17434 00y - -
Inwestment i Sbidiones [0, 0 EE502 273 - 170, LR A%6)
Wet Cash putfow on divestiut of Saheidiany . {27,551 506)
Irvestmant in Jomi Veature - - - 59,400,000
Ivesiment in Fimancinl Asicts Measored ot FVOCT [MERTZA40) - . < ¥
Sale Proceeds frony Disposs] of Property, Plant & Equipment - o IR ARD PR - [RLE L]
Acqueisition af Subsidinry, Net of Cmb Acquared - 520,804,201 - = =
Acquisricn of Propeny, Plaal and Equipmend (10X 24004 ) (7. T41.557) 14523246 {15453, 4067) {42,139 255}
Acquasition of Seflware (14,103, 280} (12695 0%2)  |37.101.500) (B433,841) {32 547 460}
Net {LnvestmentVRedempiion in Debeniures . - 6,137,101 (4. aa7400) FOE A2
Met {Invesmment] in shares invastments m Beta O : . [I04.499 102) . .
Med {lnverkiment) withdrawal of Placemend wath Banks LA bt Bl A0 05420 6,077,935 .
Met {lovestmient ) m Avaiishie for sake finences] assets- Treasury Bonds - - - = A4, 03400
Mgt {Investimctit] in Long Temm Deposit i = - = (57174393
Mt | Inveseent )V Pedemption m Uit Toust Fuseds {765 476 051 ) (43,335, 172) 15,090 438 [ FNE696 567} 34,769, 100
Dhisddemil Receivel st Al 314385 3573019 4,604 464 LMD, TH
bepevest frcarme Meceved 1171790 443 1113, T 00% GADIRTHEY 0, A7 9N 1220 334, he?
Mot coah Genarated from lnvesting Avtivities 06, TEVART 5278863564 | 44T 289,559 154,470,158 2243806, 7M
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES _
Mt laiue Nzettlement ) of Consmencial Papen [ 1697 200, TET) 814,921 865 [I5 B0, 259 ) fd WL e 71,723,100
et getibement of Tenn Losns 140,000, 00 (541,500,0007  (S3,600000F  TOAI00.000 (25,004,307
Irnerest Paid [, 580,924 335 (3000852 864)  [3E9MEATR)  (TSTEEO2IEY (1 1475E0480)
Lesss Renl Paid L_W.l?-!.ﬂé! 3065.06T) (250 16551) {20, 6400 AT { 14, 834,087)
Shurey fvased duming the year 2,305 566 423 134,254 771 497,378,190 - =
Lpranderid Panal (235700011 (3 IBER0G) aS3RA00 TSy (35500 TORT; .
Mot mil Genersted From fimsed in) Financing Activities (223431, HM) (ETRSA00.H00) (AZLIRLIZA) (4195550043 (920720 4651
Net incremef{decrense) in Cash and Cushi oquivalenis QIEAME 28 272416 00 AT ELS 130ETT 056 RN AT
Cash aind Cuah equeivaionts st the beginning of the vesr 4SEIEL 3T 393 K50 542 169,574,009 (6235415 188,531,144}
Efferi of movement in exchange rates (H026,347) (IER TN RS 1B bl 1593618
Cush amil Cash equivatents 8t the end of fhe year i_lanj"mikm FECE TR S5 KN b 18574 § 3%

*
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH,

COMPANY 2024 2023 2022 2! 2020

Rs Bs. Rs. B3 Rs
Interest Incarne Te9RANTE 53,155,678 22,093.519 49 SER A6 104,807 403
Interest Expense (17651R025)  (299176,5100 (109,639,822 (137993308}  (175,390,3352)
Net Interest income! { Expense) [¥9,529.147) (236,030,834 (87,365,%03) (8,304,682} (70482950
Fee Baged lmcome 3313,143 A7 666900 23,104,704 43,983 482 77,059,614
Met Gains { (losses) from Trading 19,512,068 15,608,671 10,911 441 (35048060 (13175817}
Met Fair Value GainaflLosses) from Finarcial Assetsat FVTPL 9.021.051 {9,235 8568) 10,367,775 28776087 29555196
Direct Expenses 2 : ; (15620}
Other Income | (Expengs) 2182584 00 89 906 873 595132017 312,960,982 2887 848
Total Gperating Income / [Expense) T115.441,137 (65,071,258)  551.920,034 391,494 443 25,841,791
Persannel Expenses [53,515,849) (49,790 264) (12,136,537} (16338, 108y  (19.147.052)
Degeeciation & Amartization (7,147,300} (8,014,034) 19,147.214) (BATLAITY 16,252,386)
Other Operaning Expenses (123,024,964) (42,608, 093) (70,143.099) (39,737.3035) (23,647 ABL)
(Imspairment) | peversals of Subsidiazies 3504626 7195573 11666411 16 286 850 (3.956:339)
Operating Profi {Loss) 1.935.707.649 (161,290,078) 472,189,503 243,231 463 {29.156470)
Shisre of Prelt from BEquity aocounted Investes (Net of Tax) . - B - -
Profity Lo} Before Inenme Tax 1,935,707 649 (1861 290,076) 4721895058 243290 463 (255564700
Incame Tax (Expense) / Heversil Eha 576 2,953,245 (45,686 KOG} {57,647,152) e
Prafit { {Loss) for the year 1936572225  [158.336,R31)  426,502.689 (85,584,111 29,156,470)
Profit {{Loss) attributable to:
Crwners of the Company 1.436,572,225 (158,336,831) 426,502 699 TES, 584111 (29.156.470)
Non-{lankilling Interests _- - " . P
Profit { {Lass) for the year F936,5T2 225 (158,336 830) 426 502699 185,584,111 (29, 156,470

Basie Enrnings ! {Loss) per Share (Hs.) 17.76 {1.66) 44T 1.93 (3L
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CAMTAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FROFIT QR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

' FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315 MARCH

COMPANY 2024 w0 b1 021 Flirlil
43 Rs i3 Rs Rs
Profit / {Lass) far the Yenr 1,936.572,225 (158,336,831 456,502 659 15384, 111 (29,156,470

Other Comprehensive Income [{Expense)

Items thnt will not be reclrssified (o Profil or Loss

Defined Benelit Plan Actuarial Gains [ {Losses) (3,462,159} 1271933 1,393 547 38,589 F2618

[eferred Tax on Actuaria] Gains / |Losses) 1,038, 648 (18] 580 (382.481) (9,357} {174.695)
LLoss on fnvestmend measmed 8t FYTOC] - (T73.695)

Oiher Comprehensive Income | (Expense] for the year (2423511 116,658 [ 211126 FLELTE 0,923

Tatsl Camprehensive tncome [ { Expense) fuor the vear 1534 148,714 (158220173} 427743 826 RS 13,743 {18 R09.547)

Total Camprehensive lncome/{Expense) altributable to:

Orwmers of the Company 1,934, 148,714 (158,220,170 427,713,826 185,613,743 (28.809,547)
Mon-controlling invterests . a = ¥ ’
Total Camprehensive lncome/( Expenses) for the year 1,934, 148,714 (158,220,173} 417.713,828 185,613,743 (18,809,547}
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASATIM MARCH 20204 033 2023 2021 2020
Its, k= s Hi, Rz,

COMPANY

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Eguivalents 1,309 A45 49,412,397 101,770,128 15,065,040 31 R38 679
Financial F.Q;:I?I- Measured at FVTPL 473 366 448 29245 420 143 833,401 322.830,754 221 565,423
Finaneial Assets Measured at FYOC! - 7402021 8175716 8,175,716 2175716
Other Investrents - - - 246.010,155 405,695,890
Tritde and Other Receivables 76,093 412 200,148,275 231251614 468 066,24 199,434 530
Amounis Due from Retsed Entities 144,733,691 T,130,984 27.932.069 13,990,170 46 004,576
Lian given 1o Related Company - 1:023,143,836 . : -
Investment in Subsidianes 2269 287082 1,029,808 502 I.4 31,234.529 1,202,103, 816 85,570,799
Itwvestrienl m Joint Venture - 0, 000, 000 A0,000,000 66,000,000 60,000,000
Intangible Assoty- 3,787,829 5330,.713 5347.213 6,097 475 3,506,191
Property, Plant and Equipment 1,987,009 6,459 460 13,440,686 24,895,372 22,622,196
Digferred Tax Assets 4 775,705 2.872.48] 300816 - 51,054,986
Inegme Tax Receivable 636,037 3,656,037 - - 5,650,947
Total Assets 2095 (186 858 2,454,559, 146 2.006487.171 2.367.034,740 1,833.519.533
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Linbilivies
Rank Overdrafis - : - - 18E. 384,581
Funancial Lighilicies Measored at Amortised Cost - 1,808,524, 688 1.409,320,442 1,877, 210,804 1,174,140,325
Trode and Other Payables 35,609,314 30,926,621 1E.390,663 12,536,235 13,504,655
Income Tux Payable - - 4,282 957 558,951 -
Amourts Diue to Related Entities 3.379.50 98 A00. 190 13,822,034 31,037,812 327,59%
Deferred Tax Luability Fi g - 391,825 o
Retirement Benefl ubligmims I?|4$ﬁ.?_?6 10,521,185 I, 128 200 5,093 862 2,595 451
Total Liabilities 56,485,091 [.9148,972 484 1,445,544 307 1,924 829 489 1, 378,960,811
Equity
Stated Capial 2,532,798 096 225347 88,936,700 BB, 936.700 61,230,030
Fasr Value Reserve = 4,337,020 5,100,715 5,100,715 00,755
Retained Earnings 405803671 318,058,971 475 505,449 348 167,836 EES.ZﬁI.???
Total Equity 2,938 601,767 545,617,462 569,542 B64 442 205251 454 552722
Total Liabilities and Equity 2995086858 2494590146  2.016.437,17) 1367.054,740  1,833.519,533

Net Assets Value per Share (Rs.) 302 5,55 597 464 479
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 317" MARCH

COMPANY

Balance as at 01" April 2019

Total comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive Income for the year

Total Comprehensive Expensc
Balance as at 31" March 2020

Balance as at 01" April 2020

Shares issued during the year

Total comprehensive inocome for the year
Profit for the vear
Other comprehensive Income for the year

Total Comprehensive Income
Dividend paid during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2021

Balance as at 01" April 2021

Total comprehensive income for the year
Prafit for the year
Other comprehensive Income for the year

Total Comprehensive Income

Dividend paid during the year
Balance as at 31% March 2022

Balance s at 01" April 2022

Shares issucd during the vear

Total comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive Income! {Expenses) for the year

Total Comprehensive Expense
Balance as at 3151 March 2023

Balance s at 017 April 2023

Shares issued during the yvear

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the vear
Other comprehensive Expenses for the year

Total Comprehensive Income

RBeclascification of Fair Valoe Rezerve

Dividend Paid during the vear
Balance as ai 3151 March 2024

Stated Fair Value Retained Total
Capital Reserve Earnings
Rs. s, Rs. Rs.
61,250.030 5275411 416,836,827 483,362,268
- - (29,156.470) (29,156,470
E (174.695) 21618 146,923
- (174,693) (28,634,850) {28.809.547)
61,250,030 5.100,715 388,201,977 454,552,722
61,250,030 5100715 IRE200.977 454,352,722
27,686,670 - - 27.686.6T0
- 1B5.584.111 185,584,111
2 - 20,632 29 632
- 185,613,743 185,613,743
4 - {225,647 884) (225,647 884)
28,936,700 5,100,715 348,167,836 442 205,251
£8.936,700 100,715 348,167,836 442,205,251
: - 426,502,699 426,502,699
= . 1211125 1211,126
- - 427,713,826 427,713,826
e = (300,376,213) (300,376,213)
H8,936,700 5,100,715 475,505,445 569,542 864
£8.936,700 5,100,715 475,505,449 560 542 864
134,294,771 - - 134294771
- . {158,336,831) (158,336,831)
- {773.695) 200,353 [ 116,658
- {773.6935) (157 446 478) {158.220,173)
223,231,471 4.327.020 118,058,971 543,617 4462
223231471 4,327.020 318,058,971 15617462
2,309,566,625 - - 2,309.566,625
- - 1,936,572,225 1.936,572.225
. - {2,423.511) {2,423.,511)
= - 1,934,148.714 1,934,148.714
(4,327,070 4 327020 5
(1,850,731,034) {1,850,731.034)
2,532, 798,096 - 405,803,671 2.938,601,767
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLINNGS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE VEAR ENDED 31" MARCH

COMEANY

CAEH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Pra it/ {Loss) before Incame Tax Expenss

Adfusturenis Far,

Drgpreciation of Propesy Fieng & Fogaipanent

Asmrtizsthon of Intangble Asiels

Prowision for Retinng Gratoey

Loss on Disposals of Property Plant & Equipemeed and ndangible Assers
Disporal Gam! (Lo on Sale of Subsidiary Shares
Dizpotal Gam on Sale of Assncisle

Impatrment of investmend in Subdidiarne

Prawision for mmpaicmensd of trade reccivables

Wirite ofT of debloo

Write off Tnvestiment i Ui goaled Shans

Peovision for invesiment i Lin quoted Shares

Nel Fair Valise Cazna Losies ) frotn Fananclal Assots ol FYTPL
Mzl Capital (Gainf' Loszcs an sale Investment in Shares
et Capital Galng o Investment in Unl Trusts

et Capital Goim oo Debanmres

Drividena] Tncome

Imdercar hvonme

Interest Expare

Ogreruting Loss tefore Changes in Oporatlog Activities

{Increase) / Dereass i Socuntees Purchase under Resale Agreoments
{Imcrease) | Decroasa m Trade and Cilser Receivables

{increage) / Decrease in Ansearmis Due from Related Entities

Increase | {Deorense) in Secunities Sold Under Reporchate Agreanenis
Iogreare | | Eheorensel in Arnamis Dhes to Related Entitics
Increass / | Decreased i Trode & Other Payabiles

T Faid
ity Paidd
Met conh Grenerated Trom! (Used in) Operaling Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIRS
el Investmend in Shares

Mt [nvenmend in Commércin. Papers

Loan given to related pamy

Proceeds fron Disposal of Associle

Investment in Swhsidiaries

Invesmment in Josne Venture

Sabe Proceeds from Dispasal of Property, Plant & Equiganent
Acgusition of Properry, Plen: and Equipment
Aagqusition of Software

Procesds from Chsposal o Subsidiary

b, in Fi wml Assets b eid al FYOCT
Nl | Inivestimend KR edempiion in Debentises.

Nt (Investmons MRedemption in Lnit Trist Funds
Dividend Received

Tnlere Tome Received

Met eush Generated fram Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIFS
et Tssue {seltlement } of Commercial Papens

Lann Criven ko Related Company

Nz gectiement of Term Loans

Iratevest Paid

Hhares astsed

Drividend Pald

Mt cush Gemoratod From Sused o) Financing Activities

Mt increaseljdeerease] in Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash mnd Cash equivalenie at ihe bepinning of the vear
Cush wid Cosh equivaleniy at the end of the year

2004 2011 0y it 020
Ra its Hs R Ee
| B35, T 689 {161 290,076 473180505 PAN2T 467 {25,156 70)
4,836,451 5081702 973D 5497550 FHEY ALT
2,376,850 b bk 2 246,461 L5aey 1IE3 930
3072092 92417 SAT D3 S30 A0 | 7 553
13357 1371365 273443 . 635,597
49,303,312 . 1,250,054 . .
(A7 434,000 - . F i
(3914 8620 {95571 (IA66ATE) {16,380 K50 1056 N30
(45T 106) T13.570 W2 T . 775 467
. . . JI5H2S 420714
2402004 - F
0872440 = . . .
{0020051) 5236868 (10.367.775)  (28.776,087) (29,553,196
(253.868) 794 400 [1.430.245) B 20, 554 1170810
(19 248 200) | 70404071} [TATRIT6) (T15.628) {1.609:313)
. d - {2,994 530y
{218} SRE.24E) (BH02TATA) (596,597 427)  {311.273.503) 12,540 744
0,8 ) (53155676 (FZOTRAT (4R A8R.618) {104,907.402)
176318025 279,176 510 09630827 |37, 093298 [ 75300352
{138,598, 150) {30, 798057 (56,258 8000  (10,557,148) 35,140,323
. . . . 92 380,216
J25:522159 19391160 46,471,331 (2080467 538) [R5650.202)
{460 7T (32096415 {13041 898 32074406 9,529 633)
: i - - (663,278,332)
195 220, 489) B4.77R.156 (VE2ETTE A0T10.213 152,009,734
4772853 2535 05 §a5 428 (G78.420) 16,091.795
(178.4756,604) s3I 410,762 [E4509.484 (217,770,487 (667,914 578
- [E3.000.004) (43,037,7825 E
. . {520,0004 . (10725001
[17EATG 694 ) JUHTI TS 120,950 907 [FITTILART) (RORSET 071}
196,467 408) 4455 101 115308393 7109011 56,140,845
- . LS 205 56R08) (337,849,751)
1023, 143 836 . H ;
107 434,000 - = % s
{£.312,583,481) ACLSINE0 (219717398} (352,559,497} {218,898,570)
. - - - (59,400,000}
. 2.330.035 - B4 000
(358,040 - (43426} (3165714) £25,070.300)
{1,386, 182} 2,084.094) (LEGEIEN  (4772.941) (L6719}
¥1.006.313 5 . . .
(20 BT 440 & = e =
- - 6,157,101 i4,597.410) GA1,963.558
(319,120,501} 127,091,503 BLATEITE  (149.284.372) 151,609,263
118} BEE 248 £5,007 874 $95.597427 31237350 2,940,744
76,585,878 I ) BAD 20,092,453 i0.603.68] sE2 A2
| B6E, BT D4 B33 445,04 B3 655,983 7793580 A30.4 19471
(1,683,574 648) 475,094,371 (357 124.485) 19747384 282319280
. {1000, 000,004 . . *
(125,000.000) (300,000,000} (000000005 400,000,000 {2 00, 0040
(176,518 025) (54 376 815 (40405699 (12596 597) {59712 6563
1,309,556 625 134,384,771 . v .
(L850,735,004) . (I00.YT6203) (325,647 HE3 .
(V526070188 (T45677.490) (RTT.906.397) 330420096 198,106,423
(38,012,750 ($2.357,731) 6705088 199611542 {3460.571)
49,413 397 101,770,128 15,065 040 (184546507 [ 164085 335)
11,399,645 45,412 357 100,770,128 15065040 {184, 546.502)
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11.2 ANNEXURE 2 - Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
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KPMG Tl 04— 11 542 8426
{Charterd Accountanis) Fai 34 - 11 244 5872
F2A, Sir Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha; +34 = 11 Ja4 BH5H
PO, Box 166, Irvfeerre] W, e comTi

Colombo 00306, S Lanka

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Capital Alliance Holdings Limited (“the Company™)
and the consolidated financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries (“the Group™) which
comprise the statement of financial position as at March 319, 2024, and the statement of profit and
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies.

In our apinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company and the Group give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the Group as at March 319, 2024, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs), Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the duditer s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for professional Accountants issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code of
Ethics) and we hiave fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in aceordance with the Code of Ethics,
We believe that the audit evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information, These financial statements do not include the
other information,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Siatements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view

in accordance with Sri Lanka Aceounting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary 10 enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from mat g*; Mo
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, i /

KPASG. & Sif Lankan parirership und & member firn of hey 8 depaitake FOA T B Rujabederior FGA W P FLA

KEAE ghobai oroamotion of wdkopumisent mamsar firma kg B r,hmd:F"J- '#N.DtJA_.:.wngr;u I'-l.‘;%‘* g: :Il::‘a.:::u’.tml FEn,
i G vt R B Biapahs FOA M KON L' Fimgan

N s ke BN A S F A iy, TR P ACA ATAFEP, Adahorinon ACA

Efijiah company Mmagd b gearaeien, ALnghts rsenre ks A WAL WD, Rarnnademai FEA

Privcsain: 5.7 L Prpm FEMAK), LB, Atimapal-Law, HE Gborewiadetd ACA, M. F R Zywed FOHA Us], FCTT
. nradidneam ACNA LRI GO H Mackdolls KA M. D Cores Dhasmarsing
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[In preparing the f'mancia! statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group®s ability to
continuc as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and us}if

the going coneern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Grou orl:g
Cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. ?

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseein g the Company’s and Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance ahout whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influgnce the ¢conomic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located at  Sri Lanka  Accounting and  Auditing  Standards  website  at:

http://slaase.com/auditing/auditorsrespansibility.php. This deseription forms part of our auditor’s
report.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the
information and explanations that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our

examination, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Colombo, Sri Lanka
26™ November 2024

| 1037
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CAPMTAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

e i
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3177 MARCH,

Incume

Interest Ineoeme

Interest Expense

Net Intercst Income! | Expense)
Fee Based Incoine

Met Guins from Teading

Mei Fair Vialug Caing( Losses) from Financial Assets ot FVTPL

[hrect Expenses

Other Incwne

Total Dperating Income

Personnel Expenoes

Deprecintion & Amortietion

Cither Operating Expénsss

Reversals of Impuinment of Subidigric
Dperating Profit! {Loss)

Share of Profil from Equity secounted Tnvedes (Net af Tax)
Profit/{ Lows) Before Income Tax
Income Tax { Expense) Reversal

Frafit / {Lads) for the year

Frafit / { Loss) atiribatable to;
Orwnersof the Company

Mon-Cantralling Inmerosts
Profit [ (Loss) for the yvear

Basic Enrnings ! { Loss) prer Share (Re.)

Note

a1
22
0

n

131

14

GROUP COMPANY
e 2023 2024 2023
R, s Rs By
IIMMDIEAST] D A08.42] 494 2,291 999,162 211105252
10.741,758.453 4033 051908 76088974 $3.155.676
{6,759 I0T.812) (3,320,324 [08) (176.518,025) (279,176,510
JIBZAS0I41 1613627947 (F052914T)  (26.020.834)
1291 380,619 1,179.733,008 3913143 ST bl 00
19060417107 #23.K24.930 19,51 2068 142 ek 671
HE2.1294T4 2 ASG2RG4T9 BO21051 (9,236 868)
(64,752,133} (16512604 -
TIATENIE 1,620,083 2 IN2 564,002 RR0R. 5T
621204926 6071, 1BZET0 2115481137 (68,071.358)
(35T0.266,059) (1,231 34557 {53,513 841) {49,792 264 )
(1034873441 1790922451 (7,147,301} (5.014,034)
(T,845,627.578) (9R1 .89] ORN) {123,024, 964) (42,608 0G3)
= 3014624 7,185,573
.LITRIIMS 5,778,635,060 1.935,707.649 (161,290,076
21,070,301 4540470 -
20,713,594, 246 3,763 193550 1035707649 (161,290,076)
(G622.920,742) (1007669 .830) K64.570 1953245
14000973504 2.775.523, 700 1.936.572,225 (158336831}
11,337,769.357 2238277079 1,036,572,225 (158,336,831 )
2,753,200, 147 536,246,621 - :
IR0 2775520700 1936572228 (198,336,831 )
103,97 2348 17.76 L):66)

The Accounting Policies and explanatory notes forem an integral part of these Financial Staementa

Frgurey in brackets inclivaie deductions
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED
INVITATION TO INVEST IN THE INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°7 MARCH

Note

Profit [ {Loss) for the Year
Oher Comprehensive Income (i Fxpensc)

lems that are or may be reclhussified to Profitor Loss
Foreign currency translativm differences of foreign operations

Ttems that will not be reclassified 1o Profit or s

Defined Benefit Plan Actuanal Giains | (Losses) 303
Dreferred Tax on Actoarisl Gaine [ ([osses) 13.7.2
Loss om Investment measured at FVTOC]

Share of other comprehensive neomeS (Expense) fram  equity T
accounted investees (met of 1ax) ’

Oher Comprehensive Income [ {Expense} For the year
Total Caomprehensive Income [ (Expense) for the vear

Total Comprehensive lncome/{Expense) attributable to:
Oumers of the Company

Mon-conmrelling mierests

Total Comprehensive Incomel/(Expenses) for the year

GROUP COMPANY
2024 023 2024 023
Rs. Kz Hs. R
L098973,504 2775523700 1936572225 (ISEA3ERAI)
(201,223 460) (200, 301471 ) -
(21,2406, 305) {9677 461) (3462159 1,271,933
6,051,625 2807 266 1035648 (3815801
- {773.6593) . (773.695)
{314,812) 1739718
(216,732 952) (205,205643) (2AXF511) F16,658
13,874, 240,552 257018057 1,934,145,714 (158,220,173
11, 0195.271.4031 2,126,920.395 1,934,148,714 (158,220,173
2,678 968921 443,307,661 - .
13.574,240,552 2ATOHE05T  1.934,148,714 (158.220,173)

The Aceounting Policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of these Finonesal Statements.

Flgnres tn brackets indtoate dediciions,

| 1057
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 3T MARCH

ARSETS

Cash and Cash Eguivalenis
Financial Assets Measured am FVTPL
Firaneial Assets Measured al FVOCI
Financial Asacts Measured s Amaorhized Cost
Trade and Other Receivables
Amounts Bwe from Related Entities
Lont gaven 1o Related Company
Iavestmesit in Subsidiarics
Investment in Joamd Yenture
Intopgihle Assels

Right-nf-use Axsets

Propenty, Plaot aod Equipmen)
Deferred Tax Assels

Income Tox Receivable

Totnl Ausets

EQUITY AND LIARILITIES

Linbilities

Financinl Lighelitics Messured of Amormed Cost
Trade amd Other Pavohbes

Ineome Tax Payuble

Amounts Due o Related Ennnes

Lease Liahility

[referred Tox Linhility

Retirement Bepelit C3bligations

Total Linbilities

Equity

Stated Capital

Specinl Risk Reserve

Fair Valug Reserve

Retained Enrnings

Fareign Currency Tronslation Reserve

Equity attribatable to awners of the Company

Mon-controlling interests
Tatal Equity
Total Liabilities amd Equity

Met Assets Value per Shire (Rs.)

Note

151
16
17
1
19

21

0.2
21
e

25
13.7.1
133

i
13.3

13.7

3

azl
iy

313

GROUP COMPANY
024 A3 2024 23
Hs. Rs Hs. R
1, 130,890,360 458 381,381 11,399,645 49.412.397
60881033004 37907 840 487 473 300 448 24 245 420
- TAUZ.021 < 7402021
1,157,968 494 70,035 129 r .
2,975,504, 325 2177 793,399 THA93A12 201,148.275
- 2006562 144,733,691 TO030,484
- . - 1023, 143,836
- - 2,269, 287,052 1,029,898, 502
- #6.301.754 - GIL 000,000
149,708,614 157,032 206 3. T8T.R29 520,733
102,801,321 137,045,860 - -
140,545,530 #7,653,382 1,987,004 459400
454022443 26290177 4,775,705 2RT2AR1
. - 9.656,037 9656037
66, 590,754,407 41 824,440,258 2,005 086,558 2,494,590, 146
37.914,225,387 31897725903 - | Bi(HE 524 B85
2012195041 1,933, 500,669 35,649,314 INS26.621
4,992 449,148 Ko4 T83,052 - -
¥ = 331,50 K B0, 190
1I5012.852 147,542,046 - -
180,295 1439962 - -
148,402,712 104,664, 4498 17,456,276 10921185
ATOHLAGS A8 34979626730 Ao,485.001 1,948,972 684
2,332,708,096 223231471 2,532.79%.096 223231471
2316818,030 Y27 499 6K 1 - .

- 20033 695 - 4,327,020
11.5058,827472 1.962 188,781 405,503,671 318.058.571
(67.5060,497) 61,298,454 - -
16.590,937,102 5,194.253,082 2038601, TeT 545617462

2,917.351,867 1,650,567 446 - .
19,508,288,969 i, 844,819 528 2038.601,767 545,617 462
£, 390,754,407 41824446258 2.995,086,858 2,494,590, 146

129,99 5286 2502 555

Accounting Policies and Motes form an integral part of thege Financial Stiiements.
These Financial siatements have been preparcd m accordmmee with the requirements of the Companies Act Mo, 07 of 2007,

YViee

The Board ol Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Stalements,
These Finuseiol Statements were approved and signed Tor and on behalf of the Directors of Capital Alliance Holdippe Linited.

Ry N

26™ November 2024
Calonmi b
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLIINGS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2024

COMPANY

Bakance as at 01% April 2022
Shares issued during the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Loss for the vear
Oither comprehensive Incoms’ (Expenses) for the year

Total Comprehensive Expense

Batance as at 315t Morch 2023

Balunce as at 01" April 2023

Shares issued during the year

Tatal comprehensive income for the year
I"eofit for the vear

Other comprehensive Expenses for the vear
Total Comprehensive Income

Reclssification of Fair Yalue Rescrve

Dividend Paid during the vear
Balance as at 31st March 2024

Statod Fair Value Retained Total
Capital Reserve Earnings
Hs. . Ras: Rs.
B850, T00 5,100,715 475505 449 559,542 864
134,304,771 - 134,294,771
- - (138336831 (158,336.831)
= {773.685) 8,353 116,658
- {173.695) (157 446.478) (158,220.173)
23523471 4,327,020 J18.058,971 - 343,617,462
213231471 4327020 318,058,971 545,617,462
2.309.566,625 - . 2309 566,625
- = 1,936 572225 1.936,572,225
. " {2.423.511) (2423511
- - 1934, 148,714 1,934, 148,714
- {4,327,020) 4327020 =
(1,850,731,034) (1,650,731,034)
2532 TUR 096 - 5803671 2.938.601.767

The Accounting policics and notes to the Financial $tatements form an integral part of these Financial Statements,

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITEDR _
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW GROLEP COMPARY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 1024 .1 Fh Hitd 2023
Nate e fx s Hs
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Prodia | (1oss) before Micome Tax Expence 20,713 A9 246 3,785,193, 530 19348707649 (V] 250TE)
Addfustments Far,
Depreciation af Propey Plant & Equipnsent 8 2,760,006 20,431,819 B ALE 369,702
Amortization of Infangble Asscls 23 12,148,005 15164278 316850 A3z
Provision lor Renring Gratuity L] 34,807,400 1T 3.073,902 2417
Logs on Disposals of Property Mai & Equpsment and Tntangshle Assets 11 A0, 303 | A2 212,347 1377365
Digpotal Lods on Sale of Subsidiary Shares 11 " - LRI R T -
[Hspesal Gaim on Sale of Joind Viemure 1 - (47454, 00 2
Share 'of {profityiess of eguity acosinted investeo (pel ol 1) 22 (2 0,070,300) {4,540,470) - =
Einpairment of Invement in Subilisnes | - - (dai4,626) (7,195,573}
Provixion for fmpatment of e receivalzles i 12,758,170 5015 043 (47, 20} TIAATY
Wit ofT Toweatiment in Uin quoted Sharos 12 7ML 001 i 7402021 .
Prowiddon far Investment (s Lin quoted Shares OATL A0 20571440 *
of ROLI Assefs 4 dRETHIN 43,394, 14K . -
Finamce Cost om RO Asseta T 10,345,707 11,7475 - »
Mt Fadr Value Gobu'{Loses) fimm Finnmcinl Asseis m FYTIL "2 (BELI24T4)  26MLIER 4T (9,002,051 9236 068
Med Capeind (Guin) Losses on salo Invesiment m Sleres LA &, 287, G) 14,796 149 {263 RB08) 774 dik
Mt Capstl Giains oo Ivestmend i Uit Truste 4l {58,943, TA5) (22,504,559 {19,745, 200) [0 A0a.0THY
Mex Capdtal Gl (Loskes) on Tresniry Bills, sud Bonds il (VI 60,4 1T (006,119,226 - 2
Dividend Incoma 1 (20.296.90) (1214,345) (3181,988, 248} ($9.027 B4}
Irterest [ncomme L3 (ITH, 7R850 (LONAG5I00 {76,148, 87H) (53,155 676)
Interost Expenig ) T ?‘hﬁ'ﬂﬁ‘r gll.’r !IMB.WEE 176,518,015 2T TH R
Opernting Prafin befare Changes in Opersiing Activibies (B TER16) (1O1LE12297) [IELE S RE {20, 75 1
{rcremse) | Decrense i Securiiies Purchise under Resale Apeements (643,071,732} (332661, 714) - .
{Encregse) / Docreans in Governmant securtics measurcd at FYTPL (LITO065235)  [26.334.339,601) - .
(Increase) / Pocrense in Trade and Other Recernvabiles (B12,929,433) i 670,623 128,522,159 19301, 160
{Inerease) | Droctense in Antownts Thae from Related Eneities 2,04, 52 (1,820,358) (T BT, T [32.096,41%)
Incresia / (Deorensz) in Securities Sobd Under Repurchass Agreemenin T ARG HTES0] 28560017, 768 * =
Incizave | (Decreass) in Admoonts Doe to Relsted Entities - - {95,220, 689) K477, 1586
Inereans | { Deeeraasa) i Trade & Other Payahles 1078.697,427 186, 10 A4, TIL Y 12,515,958
T ABTLSAIATd  fLIL, I TSN 41810762
Tax Paid 131 [L.B34,0TR N1} (240,202, 579) - (13,050,004 )
Cirmimity Paid EL {12,018 500) {16 6 004 ) - -
Nk cande Uned in Dperating AcBvilie 125,470,543 (2,386,690,947 {1TRATH 600} VLRTI TSR
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Met [nvestmeni b Shares 163 {105 385 TR} (3,020,264 {407 405} 4560 281
Lann given 1o relaied party . - 1,023, 143,834 -
Froceeds feom Dhsposal of Associate LT, 434,000 - 107,434, 0 .
Triveetmend in Subsidiares (1115602278} - {LATL588,4581) AR 00
Bnke Proceeds from Ciisposal of Property; Plort & Equipment . 4 348 480 s L
Acapustsition of Subsidiary, Wetof Cash Acipsred - HI0.B04 20
Acqaition of Property, Mians amd Equipment 5 (103,250,434} (7M1 5573 (348000 -
Asjuisition of Suliwate 153 (10,K33,280) (12,695 DE2) {1,386,268) (LO0B4.004)
Procoeds rom Dhspassl of Subsduary - - I7.H215 -
Invesiment in Fimneial Assets Mensured s FYOCI (20,572, 4400 - (20ETT. 4408 -
Mel Invesknsent o withdrawal of Placement widls Banks 240, 714.367 (403, 855,422) = s
Mt { Brvestsent Y Redempivon m Unit Trast Fumds 1621 {765, 476,051) [LERELR R {410, 120,500) 131,991 503
Diwiddenil Received 1 21,206,904 3,814,381 2, 181,008,145 RO.027.874
Tnseress [neome Receivad 10,741,788453 4933051004 TESEETE 10,01} £80
Net cuh generaded from Investing Activities BOE IR AN 5 DR K6 Ak 1, Gbs.6T 064 53 445004
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Nt Issie fsettbement) of Commeresl Papers 163 (1,697,200, 787) H14,92) %63 {1,683, 524, 6H8) 475004371
tLaan Ciiven 1o Related Company - x - {1,000, 000,000
Med seitierment of Tem Loans 63 140,000,004 {541.500.000) {128,100, 0} {00 0000 100
Interest Paid (iS50, %24,435) [ LULEST R4 {176,51K,025) {54.970,615)
Lessee rental Pald 01 (57,235 284) {53 068 067} a .
Shrarey: ke 2,00, 866,615 144,394,771 2909, i 625 130,254,770
FHviden Paid (LA5TAIR22) (3,198,906 183073 1.0M) -
Mol cish From fused in) Financing Activithes (5213421 EL?W.WM {1.526,207, 122} (145677 493)
Nl bnereaseddecyoade) in Cash and Cash equivalents 015,838,114 £,172.416 (380N 3, 752) (52,357 731)
Cush ot Cush equivalents a1 the beginning of the year 1% A58 350,481 S3_R%0 648 L30T 101,770,128
Effect of mavement in exchonge rotes 188 151 683 - -
Cash nnil Cash equivalents at the end of the year 13 1. 136,550,360 viﬁﬂi.'*ﬂ. ] 11, 39%,645 49412597

Motes po the Fimncial Statemcnds Form an itegral part ol e Frnancial Stubcincnt

Figrures an brockets imfiate dedvetbia
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2024

1. REPORTING ENTITY

The Capital Alliance Holdings Limited is a Limited Liability Company incorporated and domiciled in Sri
Lanka under the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, The Registered Office of the Company is situated at Level
-5, "Millennium House", No, 46/58. Nawam Mawatha, Colombo 2 where the principal business is carried
out.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Capital Alliance Holdings Limited for the year ended 3 1% March
2024 comprises those of the Company (Parent company), its Subsidiaries and Joint Venture Company
(together referred to as the "Group”).

1.1. Date of incorporation and commencement of commereial operations

The Company was incorporated on 25" March 2003 and commenced its commercial operations on 7" April
2003.

1.2. Principal activities and nature of aperations

1.2.1. The principal activities of the Company

The Principal Activities of the Company continued to be engaging in investment activities and management
of subsidiaries.

1.2.2. The principal activities of subsidiaries are as follows;

Name of the Subsidiary/Joint Venture Principal Activities

Capital Alliance PLC (Formerly Capital Alliance | The Principal Activities of the Capital Alliance

Limited) PLC are dealing in Government Securities and
corporate debt securities.

Capital Alliance Partners Limited The Principal Activities of the Capital Alliance

Partners Limited are dealing in Corporate
Finance and fee-based activities.

Capital Alliance Securities (Pvt) Limited The Principal Activity of the Capital Alliance
Securities (Pvt) Limited is Stock Brokering. |
Capital Alliance Investments Limited The Principal Activities of the Capital Alliance

Investments Limited are managing Unit Trust
Funds and Private Wealth Management.

Finnovation (Pvt) Limited The Principal Activily of the Finnovation (Pvt)
Limited is providing IT services to Related
Companies,

Tempest PE Partners (Pvt) Limited (Joint Venture) The Principal Activities of the Company are
financing private equity related services. The
shares owned by the Capital Alliance Holdings
Limited were fully transferred to Insite Holdings
{Private) Limited on 14" March 2024,

FipBox (Pvt) Limited The Principal Activity of the FipBox (Pvt) Ltd is
to  promote digitalized transactions for
investment related produets.

CAL Investment Consultancy FZ LLC (Formerly | The Principal Activity of the Company is

CAL Investment Holdings Limited) investment holding and investment mnsu!tqncy.
CAL Bangladesh Limited The Principal Activity of the Company is
provision of Consultancy services.

CAL Securities Limited Tﬁ?ﬂP_ruj-ncipal f;.ctivit}' of the Company is §
Brokering.
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315! MARCH 2024

1.2. Principal activities and nature of operations (Cantd...)

1.2.2  The principal activities of the Company (Contd...)

CAL Investments Limited The Principal Activity of the Company is full-
| Medged Muﬁ:l'r_a:_—:t bank acti\_r_ities.

“Fixed Income Investment | E?Fi'v:'il'{:}.'l..inlui'téa"
investment  holding, fund management and
securitization.

The Principal Activities of the Company are

Fixed Income Investment I1 (Private) Limited The Principal Activities of the Company are

investment  holding, fund management and
securitization,

Fixed Income Investment 111 (Private) Limited The Principal Activities of the Company are
investment holding, fund management and
Securitization. S N
Fixed Income Investment V (Private) Limited | The Principal Activities of the Company are
(Formerly CAL Praperty Fund (Private) Limited) investment  holding. fund management and
Securilization,

| 1117

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the Company and those consolidated with such comprise the Statements of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows together with the Accounting Policies and Motes to the Financial
Statements,

These Statements are prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS/LKAS),
adopted by The Institwie of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka) and the requirements of
the Companics Act No. 07 of 2007 and Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standards Act No.15 of 1995,
These Financial Statements, except for information on cash flows have been prepared following the acerual
basis of accounting.

The Group did not adopt any inappropriate accounting treatment, which is not in compliance with the
requirements of the SLFRSs and LKASs, regulations governing the preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statements.

2.2, Approval of financial statements by Diirectors

The financial statements of the Group and the Company for the year ended 3 1* March 2024 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26™ November 2024,

2.3 Responsibility for Financial Statements

The board of directors are responsible for preparation and presentation of the financial statements of the
Company and the Group as per the provision of Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards.

2.4, Reporting date

The financial statements of all companies in the growp are prepared for 4 common financial vear, which
end on 3 1% March 2024,
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2024

2.5, Basis of Measurement

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the Statement of Financial Position.

Item Basis of Measurement ‘ Nf::l:er
;:?;;I:C{:?laé: ?EE;:}“&ME throtigh Measured at fair Value 16
et botvopnis | [

2.6. Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (the Functional Currency), which is the Sri Lankan Rupees.

The financial statements of the Group are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (LKR) which is the functional
currency of the Group entities other than for the companies listed below where the functional currency is
either based an the country of incorporation of the respective Company or elements that could influence in
determining its functional eurrency.

Company Country of Incorporation Functional Currency
CAL Investment Consultancy FZ LLC USD
{Formerly CAL Investment Holdings United Arab Emirates (UAE)

Limited)

CAL Bangladesh Limited Bangladesh o BDT

CAL Securities Limited Bangladesh BDT

CAL Investments Limited Bangladesh BDT

Foreign currency transactions

All foreign exchange transactions are converted to functional currency, at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the time the transactions are affected.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are retranslated to functional currency
equivalents at the spot exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.

MNon-monetary ilems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates as at the dates of the mitial transactions. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are
translated using exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items is recognised in line with the gain or loss of the item that gave rise to the
translation difference.

Foreign Operations

Subsidiaries incorporated outside Sri Lanka are treated as foreign operations. The assets and liabilities of
foreign operations, including goodwill and fiir value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translate
the rate of exchange prevailing on the reporting date. Income and expenses of the foreign entiy
translated at exchange rate approximating to the aciual rate at the time of the transaction.
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2024

Foreign Operations (Contd.)

Foreign currency dilferences are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the foreign
currency translation reserve in equity. When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant
influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign
operation is reclassilied to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. On the partial disposal of a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the relevant proportion of such comulative amount is
reattributed to non-controlling interest, in any other partial disposal of foreign operation, the relevant
proportion is reclassified to profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains or losses arising from a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation, the seitlement of which is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future and which
in substance is considered 1o form part of the nel mvestment in the foreign operation, are recognised in
other comprehensive income in the foreign currency translation reserve.

2.7, Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non- financial assets and liabilities. Group regularly reviews significant unobservable
inputs and valuation adjustments. I third party information is used to measure fair values, Group assesses
the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the
requirements of SLFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be
classified.

When available, the company measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active
market for that instrument. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows.

 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

»  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
ligbility, either divectly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

# Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unohservable
inputs)

11 the inpuls used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair values are categorized in its entirely in the same level of the Gair value hicrarchy as
the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurcment.

2.8. Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affects the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities. income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical expenience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgement about carrving values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent Irom other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates,

| 1137



} 114 [ CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED
INVITATION TO INVEST IN THE INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2024

2.8. Use of Estimates and Judgments (Contd.)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised. if the revision affects only that

periad, or the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Information about eritical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the Consolidated tinancial statements is included in following notes.

Critical accounting assumptions and estimation uncertainties Note

Uselul lifetime of the property, plant and cqy_ipménl -_ 3214

Impairment on non-financial assets o Fidid

Measurement of defined benefit abligation: key actuarial assumptions 30.5
' Impairment measurement of financial assets: determination of inputs into A5k

the ECL measurement model, including key assumptions and incorporation

of forward-looking information

Measurement of Deferred tax liabilities 13.7

2.9. Comparative Information

Comparative information including quantitative. narrative, and descriptive information is disclosed in
respect of the previous period in the Financial Statements to enhance the understanding of the current
period’s Financial Statements and to enhance the inter period comparability. The presentation and
classification of the Financial Statements of the previous year are amended, where relevant for better
presentation and to be comparable with those of the current year.

2.10. Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar
nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial. Notes to the Financial Statements
are presented in a systematic manner which ensures the understandability and comparability of Financial
Statements of the Group and the Company. Understandability of the Financial Statements is not
compromised by obscuring material information with immaterial information or by aggregating material
items that have different natures or functions.

2,11, Rounding

The amounts in the Financial Statements have been rounded-off to the nearest rupees, except where
otherwise indicated as permitted by the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 1 on ‘Presentation of
Financial Statements’,

2.12. Going Concern

The Group has prepared the financial statements for the year ended 319 Mareh 2024 on the basis that it will
continue to operate as a going concern. In determining the basis of preparing the financial statements for
the year ended 31" March 2024, based on available information, the management has assessed the
prevailing macroeconomic conditions and its ¢ffect on the Group companies and the appropriateness of the
use of the going coneern basis.

In management’s view, the Group will have sufficient resources to continue for a future |
Management concluded that the range of possible outcomes considered at arriving at this judgm#h
not give rise to material uncenainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant dof
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Consolidated Financial Statemd
Group continued to be prepared on a going concern basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group and the Company has consistently applicd the following accounting policies to all periods
presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

3.1, BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Group's financial statements comprise of the fnancial staements of the Company its subsidiaries
prepared in terms of Sri Lanka Accounting standard (SLFRS -10) - Consolidated Financial Statements and
share of profit and loss and net assets of equity accounted investees prepared in terms of Sri Lanka
Accounting standard (LKAS 28) - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures,

31.1. Business Combination

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when the acquired set of
activities and assets meets the definition of a business and control is transferred to the Group. In determining
whether a particular set ol activities and assels is a business, the Group assesses whether the set of assets
and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input and substantive process and whether the acquired
set has the ability to produce outputs.

The Group has an option to apply a ‘concentration test” that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets 13 not a business. The oplional concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets.

The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable
net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain
purchase is recognised in profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if
related to the issue of debt or equity securities,

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. 11 an obligation to pay
contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity; then it is
not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity, Otherwise, other contingent consideration is
remeasured at fair value at each reporting date and subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

If share-based payment awards (replacement awards) are required to be exchanged for awards held by the
acquiree’s employees (acquiree’s awards), then all or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s replacement
awards 15 included in measuring the consideration transferred in the business combination. This
determination is based on the market-based measure of the replacement awards compared with the market-
based measure of the acquiree’s awards and the extenmt to which the replacement awards relate to pre-
combination service.

3.1.2. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity, The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Adjustments required to the accounting policies of Subsidiary have been changed wherever ncecssary to
align them with the policies adopted by the Group.

the investment in the suh::dmry at cost.
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3.1.3. Non-Controlling Interest

The proportion of the profits or losses after taxation applicable to outside shareholders of subsidiary
companics is included under the heading “Non — controlling interest “in the Consolidated Income
Statement. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary is allocated 1o the non-
controlling interest even if doing so causes the non- controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

The interest of the minority sharcholders in the net assets employed of these companies are reflected under
the heading “Non — contralling interest” in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Acquisitions of non-controlling interésts are accounted for as transactions with equity holders in their
capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill is recognised as a result of such transactions. Adjustments
to non-controlling interest arising from transactions that do not invelve the loss of control are based on a
proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary.

3.1.4. Lossof Control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary,
and any related NCI and other components of equity, Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

3.1.5. Interests in equity-accounted investees

The Group's interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in joint ventures,

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights to
the net assels of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities. Interests
in joint venture are accounted for using the equity method in the Consolidated financial stalement. They
are initially recognized at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and OCI of equity-
accounted investees, until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.

3.1.6. Intra-group Transactions

Transfer prices between Group entities are set on an arms-length basis in a manner similar to transactions
with third parlies.

3,1.7. Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign currency
transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising
from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

3.2. ASSETS AND THE BASE OF THEIR VALUATION

Assets classified as current assets in the Statement of Financial Position are cash and those which are
expected to be realised in cash during the normal operating ¢ycle of the Group’s business or within one
vear from the date of the Statement of Financial Position whichever is shorter. Assets other than current
assets are those which the Group intends to hold bevond a period of one year from the reporting date.
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3.2.1. Plant & Equipment

3.2.1.1. Recognition and Measurement

ltems of Plant and Equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of an item of Plant & Equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. The cost of sell-constructed assets includes
the cost of materials, direct labour. and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
working condition for its intended use.

All items of property, plant and equipment are recognised initially at cost.

Giains and losses on disposal of an itéem of plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal of with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised net within
other income in income statement.

3.2.1.2. Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of Plant & Equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within that part will flow to the Group and its
cost can be measuréd reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized in accordance with
the derecognition policy given below. The costs of the day-to-day Plant & Equipment are recognized in
profit or loss as incurred.

3.2.1.3. Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of Plant & Equipment is derecognized on disposal, or when no future
gconomic benefits are expected from its use. Gaing or losses on derecognition are recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive income and gains are not ¢lassified as revenue.

3.2.1.4. Depreciation

Depreciation is caleulated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount
substituted for cost less its residual value. Depreciation is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of Equipment.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Category Useful Depreciation Rate (%)
Life (Years)
Furniture and Fittings 5 vears 20
Office Equipment 4 years 2%
Computer Hardware 3 years 33.33%
| Motor Vehicle 2 years 50%
| Communication Devices 1 year 100%

Capitial Alliance Securities (Pvt) Lod, Capital Alliance Investments Limited

.........

Asset Category LUseful Depreciation Rate (%)
—— Life (Years)
Computer Equipment 4 years

ltems of Equipment are depreciated from the date they are available for use or, in
assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready for use.
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3.2.2. Intangible Assets

An Intangible Assets is recognized if it is probable that economic benefits are attributable 1o the assets will
flow to the entity and cost of the assets can be measured reliably and carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Separately acquired intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost.

The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value of the asset at the date of
acquisition.

The cost of an internally generated intangible asset arising from the development phase of an internal praject
which is capitalised includes all directly attributable costs necessary to create, produce, and prepare the
assel (o be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Management. Other development expenditure
and expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new technical knowledge
and understanding is expensed in the income statement as and when incurred,

3,2.2.1. Computer Software

All computer software cost incurred, which are not internally related to associate hardware, which can be
clearly identified, reliably measured and its probable that they will lead to future economic benefits, are
included in the Statement of Financial Position under the category of intangible assets and carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and any aceumulated impairment losses.

Asset Category Useful Depreciation Rate (%)
Life (Years)
Computer Software dyears 25%
3.2,2.2, Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of net
assets acquired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets, the policy on
measurement of goodwill is at initial recognition.

Megative goodwill arising on an acquisition represents the excess of the fair value of the net assets acquired
over the cost of acquisition. Megative goodwill is recognized immediately in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

3.2.3. Leases

At inception of a contract. the Group assesses whether a contract is. or contains, a lease. A conlract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether & contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Graup uses the definition of a lease in SLFRS 16,

3231 As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices.
However, for the leases of property the Group has elected not to separate non-lease components and aceount
for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.
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3.2.3, Leases (Contd.)

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date; plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received,

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a
purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful lite of the underlying
asset, which is determined on the same basis asthose of property and equipment, In addition. the right-of-
use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted For certain remeasurements of
the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, and the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses ils incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Group determines ity incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external
financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and tvpe of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

» fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

+ variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as af the commencement date;

» amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

s the exercize price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonahly cerfain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for carly termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be pavable under a residual value guarantee, if the Group
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase. extension or termination oplion or i there i
a revised in-substance fixed lease pavment,

When the lease liability 12 remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-ol-use assel, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-ofiuse
asset has been reduced o zero,

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities in “lease liability” in the Statement of Financial Position.
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Lease modifications
The Group shall account for a lease modification as a separate lease if both:

a. the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assels: and

b. the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease
modification the Group shall:

a) allocate the consideration in the modified contract
b) determine the lease term of the modified lease

¢) remeasure the lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate. The revised discount rate is determined as the interest rate implicit in the lease for the
remainder of the lease term, if that rate can be readily determined, or the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the effective date of the modification, if the interest rate implicit in the lease
cannot be readily determined.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Group shall account for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by:

a) decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full termination of
the lease for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease. The lessee shall recognise in
profit or loss any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

b) making a corresponding adjustment 1o the right-of-use asset for all other lease modifications.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid
investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in

value.

For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and deposits
held in banks net of outstanding bank overdrafis.

Investments with short term maturities are also treated as cash and cash equivalents.
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34, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
J3.4.1. Financial Assets
Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated, All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument, This includes purchases or sale of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

A lnancial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus. for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly atiributable 1o its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable withoul a
significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial asscts

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) - debt investment; fair value through other comprehensive income
{(FVOCI) - equity investment; or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassificd
on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured al amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- it 15 held within a business model whose objective s to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCT if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably eleet
to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCL This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOC] as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so climinates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.
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Financial assets - Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management's strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile. matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assels;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected: and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualily Tor derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group's continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets -Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, "principal’ is delined as the fair value of the Ninancial asset on initial
recognition. 'Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as-a profit margin,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument, This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

- prepavment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Group's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features),

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual par amount,
a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par
amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the
prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.
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Financial assets - Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets al FVTPL | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income. are recognised in profit

| or loss.
Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
amortised cost effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment

losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any pain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss,

Debt investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income
FVOCT calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in OCL On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
FVOC] recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or
loss.

3.4.2. Financial Liability
Initial Recognition and Mcasurement

On initial recognition, the Group classifies financial liabilities. other than financial guarantees and
loan commitments, into one of the following categories:

s Financial Liabilities at amortised cost; and
= Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Classification and Subscquent Measurement of Financial Liabilities
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification.
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

Financial Liabilities issued by the Group that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised initially at fair value plus any directly atiributable transaction costs, by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate,
Subsequent to initial recognition these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

The EIR amortisation is included in ‘Interest expense’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses too are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income. when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.
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Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include derivative liabilities held for risk management
purposes.

J.4.3. Derecognition

(a) Financial assels

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the ¢ash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial
position, but retains cither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these
cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

{b) Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
of the modilied liability are substantially different, In which case a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit
or loss,

344, Offsctting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

35 IMPAIRMENT

3.5.1. Non-derivative Financial Assets

Financial instruments and contract assets

Loss allowances for trade receivables is always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative

information and analysis, based on the Group 's historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-leoking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a linancial asset has incréased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.
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3.5, IMPAIRMENT (CONTD...)

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when the borrower is unlikely 10 pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any
is held).

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months alter the reporling date {or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrunient is less than 12
months), The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of eredit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash Rows due Lo the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive), ECLs are discounted at the elfective interest
rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date. the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
seeurities al FYOCT are eredit-impaired. A linancial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

* a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise:

* it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial rearganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difTiculties,

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is
recognised in OCL

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations
of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof, However, financial assets that are written

off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group 's procedures to
recovery of amounts due.

3.5.2. Non-financial assets

T“he Ldrrying amount ﬂl' [hL {ir{mp‘ﬁ m‘n—f'nam.,idl a‘-jsuu ullu.,r l.han dullmd I&*{ 1

--15-'. are rcv':cu-ed al

or u-lam Hnnuql impairment esiing fn] an assel is reqmre_d then the assel’s re '_ i Y is ealsmaleti
Gioadwill is tested annually for impairment. '
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3.5. IMPAIRMENT (CONTD...)

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets thal generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs, An
impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit (CGL) exceeds its
recoverable amount. Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs
that are expected 10 benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
speeific o the assét or CGL,

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in Profit or Loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of CGUs), and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss 1s reversed
only 1o the extent that the asset’s earryving amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if ne impairment loss had been recognized.

3.6. PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a binding present obligation. This may be either legal
because it derives from a contract, legislation or other operation of law, or constructive because the Group
created valid expectations on the part of third parties by accepting certain responsibilities. To record such
an obligation, it must be probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the obligation, The amount recognized as a provision and
the indicated time range of the outflow of economic benefits are the best estimate (most probable outcome)
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, considering the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation, Non-current provisions are discounted if the impact is material.

3.7. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company and the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.

A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is-a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company and the Group does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of ong or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company
and the Group. The Company and the Group does not recognize contingent assets but discloses its existence
where inflows of economic benefits are probable, bul not virtually certain, In the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group under business combinations, contingent liabilities assumed are measured initially at their fair
value at the acquisition date, irmespective of the extent of any minority interest.
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38 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
{i) Defined Benefit Plan = Retivement Gratuity

A defined Benelit Plan is a post- employment benefit plan other than a Defined Contribution Plan. The
liability recognized in the Statement of Financial Position in respect of"a Defined Benefit Plan is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the Statement of Financial Position date. The defined benefit
obligation is caleulated annually by independent actuaries, using the projected unit credit method, as
recommended by LKAS 19, “Employvee Benetits™.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determingd by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates that apply to the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms 1o maturity approximating to the terms of the related liability. The assumptions based on which the
resulits of the actuarial valuation were determined are included in the note 30 1o the Financial Statements,
This liability is not externally funded, and the item is grovped under Non- Current Liabilities in the
Statement of Financial Position,

The qualifying remuneration of all permanent employees in considered in the calculation of the defined
benefit obligation. However, under the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability to-an employee
arises only on completion of five vears of continued service. Liabilities are computed on the basis of half a
month's salary for each vear of completed service. The Company’s obligations under the said Act is
determined based on an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method carried out by a
professional actuary.

Remeasurements of the defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, are recognised
immediately in OCIL. The Group determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the
period by applying the discount rate used 10 measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the defined benefit
liability during the period as a result of benefit payvments. Interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benehit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The
Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement oceurs.

fii) Defined Contribution Plan — Employees' Provident Fund & Employee's Trust Fund

All employees who are eligible for Employees” Provident Fund Contribution and Emplovees’ Trust Fund
Contribution are coverad by rélevant contribution funds in line with respective Statutes and Regulations,

Contributions to Provident Fund and Trust Fund covering the employees are recognized as an expense in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(iii) Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of share-based payvment awards granted (o employees is recognized as an employee
expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally
become entitled to the awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of
awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected 1o be met, such that
the amount ultimately recognized as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related
service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with

non-vésting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is meassmesd to reflect such
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JE.RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (CONTD...)

fiv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recopnized as an expense when the Company and the Group is demonstrably
commitied, without a realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to cither terminate
employment before the normal retirement date. or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized
as an expense if the Company and the Group has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable that
the offer will be aceepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.

If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting date, then they are discounted to their present
value,

(v} Short-term employee benefits

Shori-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term
cash bonus if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service rendered by the employvee and the obligation can be measured reliably.

3.9, STATED CAPITAL

As per the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, section 58 (1), stated capital in relation to a Group means the
total of all amounts received by the Group or due and payable to the Group in respect of the issue of shares
and in respect of call-in amrears.

10 STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
J.10.1. Revenue

3.10.1.1. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue and the associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. The Group
recognises revenue when it transfers control over a service 10 a cuslomer.

3.10.1.1.1, Interest Income
Interest income is recognized onan accrual basis,

3.10.1.1.2. Capital Gains

Income from capital gains on sale of government debt securities and other security dealings is recognized
at the point of trading.
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3.10.1.1.3. Fee Income

Type of product! | Nature and timing of satisfaction of | Revenue recognition
service performance obligations, including
significant payment terms - o
Corporate Corporate  Finance [fee is calculated | Revenue is recognized point intime as the
Finance FFee | based on the terms ol the agreement. services are provided in accordance with
lncome B o the terms of the contract.
Management Management fee is caleulated based on | Revenue is recognized over time as the
Fees net Assets Under Management and is | services are provided in accordance with
atributed 1o the services provided | the terms of the assel management
| during the period. conitract, —

3.10.1.1.4. Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the dividend is established.
3.10.1.1.5. Brokering Commission

Brokering commission is recognized on an accrual basis.

3.10.1.1.6. Other Income

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis,

3.10.2. Expenditure Recognition

J.10.2.1. Operating Expenses

All expenses incurred in day-to-day operations of the business and in maintaining the plant and equipment
in a state of efficiency has been charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in armiving at the
profit{loss) for the yvear. Provision has also been made for impairment of financial assets. slow moving
stocks, all known liabilities and depreciation on plant and equipment.

J.10.3. Taxation

Income tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax, Income tax expense is recognized in income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income or statement of changes in equity. in which case it is
recognized directly in the respective statements.

The Group has determined that interest and penalties related 10 income taxes, including uncertain fax
treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes. and therefore accounted for them under LKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,

3.10.3.1. Current Taxes

Current Income tax liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered [rom or paid to the Commissioner General of Infand Revenue. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or subsiantively enacted by the reporting date,

The provision for income tax on Sri Lankan operation is based on the elements of income and expenditures
reported in the Financial Statements and computed in accordance with the provisi Lhe Infand Revenue
Aet. '
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J.10.3.2. Deferved Taxation

Deferred taxation is provided, using the liability method, onall temporary differences at the reporting date
between the Lax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses / eredits can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured al the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted as at the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by individual companies within the Group are disclosed
separately as assets and Habilities in the Group statement of financial position and are not offset against
each other.

3.10.3.3. Tax exposures

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain
tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This assessment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about future events.

Mew information may become available that causes the Company and the Group to change its judgment
regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact the tax expense
in the period that such a determination is made.

3.10.4. Finance cost

Finance cost comprises interest expenses on borrowings. Borrowing costs that are not directly atiributable

to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognized in profit or loss using the
effective interest rate method.

3.11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Disclosure has been made in respect of the transactions in which one party has the ability to control or
exercise significant influence over the financial and operating policies/decisions of the other, irrespective
of whether a price is being charged or not.

The relevant details are diselosed in the respective notes to the Financial Statements.

3.12, STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Flows which has been prepared using the *Indirect Method”.
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3.13. EARNING PER SHARE

The Group presents Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) and for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.14. DIVIDEND ON ORDINARY SHARES

Dividend on Ordinary Shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved
by the Company’s Directors and for the final dividend once the sharcholders’ approval is received.

3,15, CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Capital commitments and contingencies which exist as at the Statement of Financial Position date are
disclosed in the respective notes to the Financial Statement.

3.16. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events alter the reporting period are those events favorable and unfavorable that oceurs between the end of
the reporting period and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue.

The materiality of the evenis occurring after the reporting period is considered and appropriate adjustments
to or disclosures are made in the Financial Statements, where necessary.

4. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE AS AT REPORTING
DATE

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or -after 1st January 2024 and
earlicr application is permitted. However, the Company has not early adopted the new or amended standards
in preparing these financial stalements.

SLFRS 51 - Sustainability Disclosure Standard- General Reguirements for Disclosure of
Sustainability-related Financial Information,

The objective of SLFRS S1 General Requirements for Disclasure of Sustainability related Financial
Information is 1o réequire an eéniity to disclose information about its sustainability-related risks and
opportunitics that is useful to primary users of general purpose financial reports in making decisions relating
to providing resources to the entity.

An entity shall apply this Standard in preparing and reporting sustainability related financial disclosures in
accordance with SLERS Sustainability Disclosure Standards,

An entity may apply SLFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards irrespective of whether the entity’s related
general purpose financial statements (referred to as “financial statements’) are prepared in accordance with
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards or other generally accepted accounting principles or practices (GAAP)
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SLFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standard - Climate-related Disclosures
The objective of SLFRS 82 Climate-related Disclosures is to require an entity

To disclose information about its climate-related risks and opportunities that is useful to primary users of
general purpose financial reports in making decisions relating to providing resources to the entity.

This Standard applies to:

(a) climate-related risks to which the entity is exposed, which are:
(i) climate-related physical risks; and

(11} elimate-related transition risks; and

(b) climate-related opportunities available to the entity,

Chmate-related risks and opportunities that could not reasonably be expected to affect an entity’s prospects
are outside the scope of this Standard has context menu

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to LKAS 1)

The amendments, as issued in 2020, aim to clarify the requirements on determining whether a liability is
current or non-current and apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1st January 2023.
However, the IASB has subsequently proposed further amendments to LKAS | and the deferral of the
effective date of the 2020 amendments to no earlier than 1st January 2024. Due to these ongoing
developments, the Company is unable to determine the impact of these amendments on the financial
statements in the period of initial application. The Company is closely monitoring the developments.

Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to LKAS 7 and SLFRS 7)

The amendments introduce new disclosures relating to supplier finance arrangements that assist users of
the financial statements to assess the effects of these arrangements on an entity’s liabilities and cash flows
and on an entity’s exposure to liquidity risk. The amendments apply for annual periods beginning on or
after | January 2024,

Other accounting standards

The following new and amended accounting standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the
financial statements.

- Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to SLFRS 16)

- Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to LKAS 21)
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Consulisncy Fee 21,349,865 28192 487 34651,864 2RA9TTTS
Write ot of Trade and Other Receivables 1,518,859 - 1364446 -
Provision for Impairment en Trade Receivables 34,785,052 60465 043 19,040,698 T13.579
Donations 15,0040 EHHE 25,002,252 - -
Impainmenti Reversal) of nvestment in Subsidinries - - 3914,626 (T.195.573)
Depreciation and Amortisation includes;
Drepreciation on Property, Plant, and Equipmant 42,760,936 0433819 4,830,451 5,681,702
Amortuztions of Imangibe Asscls 12,048,195 15,264,278 2,116,850 2,322,332
Creprecition of Right-of-use Asser 48,578,212 43,594, 148 - -
103,457,343 Ta00Y 145 7047301 8,014,034
Siafl Cost includes;
Salories & Othier benefits JATRISIN80 1,153,210, 711 46,205,628 44,987, 162
Drefined Benefit Plan - Gratodey 34507409 2. T1.739 3072931 e
[relined Conlribation Plans - EFF 53,221,949 43,889, 700 3,389,831 3074145
- ETF 13.255,521 10.972.427 B47,438 768,537
3,579, 266,059 1.231,545.377 53515840 49,792 264
13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE il
GROLUT COMPANY
131 locome tax recognised in Profit or Lass 2024 2023 2024 2023
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Current Taxation (Mote 13.4) G.655.262 206 578,300,393 - -
Under/{Cver) provizion (17,719, 00%) 1667674 - =
6,637,543,797 979 968 067 . -
Deferred Tax Expense
Reductinn in tax rate {Mote 13.7.2) - (48,4 14,8967 - T5.205
Deferred Taxation Chargei{Reversal) (Mote 13.7.2) {14.623,058) 72116659 (R64.576) (3.028,450)
(T4.623,055) 27,700,763 (864,576} (2.953.245)
Total Income Tax Recopnised in the Statement of Profit or Loss 6,622.920,742 1007 6649 831 (564,576) (2,953,245)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31%7 MARCH, 024 2023 1024 2023
s s, R Rs.
13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTIL)
13.2 Amount Becopnised in the Statement of Other Comprebensive Income
Actirarial GaindLoss) Arising from Retirement Benefit Oblizntions (21,246.305) (9.67T461) [3.462,159) 1.271.833
Deferred Tax on Actuarial Gains/i{Loss) 6051625 TROT 2060 1035648 {181,380)
(15,194,680} {6,370, 193) (2,423,511 B9, 353
13.3  Ineome Tax Pavable! {Heceivahle)
Halance as at 01" Apnl Big, 753,052 bOE.57 5,240 (9,656.037) 4,282 957
Acguition Durmg the year . 48 00K, T - -
Income Tax Provision for the year G655, 262,500 978,300,393 - -
Under/ {Over) provision (17719, 000) 1667 674 - -
Income Tax payneenls (2534075531} (240 202, 579) (13,939 (H4)
Withholding and Ciher Credis (2,100,328} : .
Exchange Enfference (3671842 11,564 - -
Balance a5 at 31" March 4,992,449,148 £94,753,052 (B.656,037) (9.656,037)
134 Reconcilation between Accounting Profit’ {Loss) and Taxable GROLUP COMPANY
Profit/ {Loss) 2024 023 024 2023
Rs. Bs R, Kz,
Accounting Profit £ (Loss) before Income Tax Expense 20,713.894.246 TR 03,530 1.935,707,64% (E61.290,076)
Comsobdation Adjustment 2.652.823,762 2R7 046,549 - -
23.366.718,00% 4070 240,079 1935, 707,649 {167,290,074)
Cther Sources of Income & exempl ingoms (2309,155.590)  (3TROI4.8TT)  (2.195187,793) 172,125,843
Agpregate Disallowable liems 1,105,462, 284 6,458,854 337882117 24,527,960
Aggregate Allownble ltems (64.923.017) (172341017 (9.403,722) (9270 423)
Adjustment on tax bosses meurned dureng the year 20 883,872 2080906 858 - 318158382
Iaxable Income From Business 22,1 18.985,557 4375, 249,797 68,998.15] -
Other Sources of Income 64,578,707 332,300,172 s 162 586,794
Total siatutory Ineome 12,183.564,264 4,707 550,969 H8.508,25) 162 586,794
Less @ Tax Losses ser-off for the taxsbde paofin (H6.005 3340 (297 2h0, 2659 (G5, 998,251) {14 586,794 )
Tuxable Income 22,097 468,918 4,410,270, 700 - -
Current Tax 81 14% - 201,560,892 -
Current Tax at 24% . 56,112,956 - -
Current Tix o 27 5% 15,403,856 60598307 - -
Corrent Tox al 4186 6,621,225 108 617674740 - -
Current Tax ar 37,5% 8,635,845 B,002, B - -
Current Tax charged to Statement of Profit or Loss 6,655,262 806 978, 3N, 393
135 Accomulated fax losses
Balance at the beginning of the vear 228532320 313,516,503 155,571,588 -
Lemses incwrred during the year 20,885,872 208904858 - 318,158,382
Acljrstrrient with nesspect of previous yesr - 1.780.237 = =
Iosses unlised during the year (B6005, 336} (297,280, 269) (68,998,251} (162,586, 794)
Balance at the cod of the year 163,720,865 128.5932,309 B6,573,337 155,571,588
136 Applicable income Tax Rates as per the Department of Inland Revenue

The income tax provision of Capatal Alliance Holdings Linuted, s subsidiaries and cgusty pecounted nvestees which are resadent i 5o Lanka s begn
cabealated w secordancy with tie Infand Bevee Act Mo, 24 of 2007 and it amendments thereto and e circular ssued by the Depaniment of Inland
Feovenme on 9th May 2023 (Mo, SECR023ENZ) on the sulpect “Caboulation of Income Tax Payable for the Year of Assessment commencing on April

120257

Thee Company 14 liahle o pay meomi éax at & mte of 30% m accordance wath the Inland Revenue Act Moo 24 of 2007 and it subsequent amendmenty.
The compartive Tunares reflect diffirent ntome tax mics as per the Infbnd Revenue (Amendiment) Act Mo, 45 of 2022, Specifically, the rte was 30%

effective from 1 October 2022 and 14% up o 30 September 2022,

Sri Lankan operations

The bisiness profits and income of Capital Alliance PLC, Capital Alliance Sedunitigs (i) Lid, Capital Alliece Manners. Limiied. Capital Alliance

Investments Limited, Capatal Alliance Hobdings Limited, and FipBox (Private) Lid arsing from their primasry eperation activities and Oiher Income of
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CAFITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A% AT Y ArARCH 2014

L3 INCOME TAN EXPENSE (C0NTDL)
Owersean operatiing

A per the Tax regulaiems it the Undind Aeals Crpeonaes in [ubai i Hiaited only. e basks and-od] compamies and Mither rypes of companies i Deban which
(nchsdies CAL Ivestonent Canaadiancy FE LEC, ane st asbjeet to the coaguenne fax,

AL Banglsdesh Lomisd . CAL Sevunies Lisited and CAL Invedmonte Linwited are tocod st 37 25 and 37 5% during the fnancis] yemr {2023 77 5% and 17 3%)

Applicakie Delerred Tas Rutes

Thchorred s for the year s been comnpuiod hined on the sulsiantively eoacted rabis ax of the reporting date. Accordingly the erscted rates specified in the Inland Revenue
(Amendmenth Act Mo, 45 of 2027 and its amendments thereto hin been used

{eferrenl Tax i provided wing the fabiliny method, providiog for wmporary differcsces berween ibie carrying smousty of ssscty and Batilitics for fmansial reponting purpsries and
Tlse anvousts wicd for txation purposes. Tempory differences mssoointed with ihe rmap for which o deferred o Liabiling{ Asset) b been rovognined. Deferred Tao has boon
nmpuatoe], Rk snbo conshdenadion e effective b e, swhich is 307% (2023 - 3% for the Group

137 DEFERRED TAX GHROUT COMPARY
024 202 24 23
Rs., Ha [[E8 Rs
Deferred Tax Lumbiting{(13.7.3.1) {180,29R) {1,435.5962) = .
Deferred Tow Assets (137,32 45622443 26,294,077 4,775,705 2A72 481
et Deferved Tax Aswets a5445,14% IR LITR A I RTIARD
1370 NET DEFERRED TAX ASSET MOVEMENT DURING TIIE YEAR LGHROUT COMPANY
: 024 2023 074 FEE]
Re. Rx. . e
Balance & at the beginning of the year 14 854,215 48,794 320 LATI4R1 0B 16,00
Acquisstion Durmg the yeur - 1,095 178 = =
Peferred tas recognived{ reversed) during the yenr 20,674,580 (24 K94 4973 1903224 257166500
Met Bifect of Movemens of Exchange Rates (86,7500 {140,756 - -
Balznos 21 the end of ihe year A5, 442,145 4854215 4775708 3ET1AR)00

1372 Amonnt recognlzed{reversed) during the vear

Ambrant recognieed reversed | dur e venr - Profin and Loss (14623058 48.178,584 (B64.576)  (1.028A450)
Effzct of chanpe in iny rates - recognized durmg the year recognisesd w profit { Loss) . {44,414 898) - 75205
Amount recogntedireversed) during the vear - Other Comprehenzive Income {0051 ,.625) {2 R07, 2663 {1038 644} AK1 580
Total gmosunt recognized{reversed ) during the year (20,67 4.680) 954,392 (1.983,224) (2.571.665)

l],.‘n__ln GROUF DEFERRED TAX ._KSSHRLIA..II.L'IT\"I

TETR] DEFERRED TAX LEARILITY 4 B FE]
Ciroup Temporary Tax Effect Temporay Tax Effoct
tifference dalforems
Hi. [[TH R R

O Eguipmes [ANLT! 15,055 2IRE 100 1,063,970
U el Asnets 13,512,095 6,5 51N 13,970 307 165 0
U Right-of-unc Asst 3,461,778 103555 BL63624 12143 048
O Leekie Creditor on Right-o0f-use Aiss (4,209,734 (LEL921 (BSO1T,751)  (R704199)
O Pravision for bmpainment of Trade and Other Recelvables 1656,387) 205,916) (3,701,208 (10,363
O Retircrent Bencfit Obbigation |1|Jm,% (6,31 1,981) (12500815 {3,588, 310)

i, TH0.200 17247 140,002

13732 DEFERRED TAX ASSET
1024 1023
Temparary Tax Effect Temporary Tax Effeet
Giromg dilference dhilfereme
M Ha . Rs. Rs

O Equipmznt (3004273 (1.215862) 24,789 213493
o Indangible Assets (1,700, S0 (1487 966)  (I3908,148) (4 158,300)
On Ripght-of-use Aet {14,747, 205) (TI82535) (T0A27.078)  (19,7B1A69)
O Lease Creditor on Righr-ofase Asset 482040 19,305,004 $1.504,8003 23357852
Om Retirement Benefin Obligntion 110,514,472 I8211,007 3 040, 362 24,585,108
Cin Provoixion for Invpalrment af Trade and Otber Rocehabides 13,536,386 00,916 303] 6tk 1.7 404
Cin Carry fosward Ty Loges 3,072,595 931,779 3

ITildeE JEEEE‘ 17 'J'H -IE‘ E az.-l H
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A% AT MY MARCH 2024

13,73 GROUPDEFEREED TAX ASSETALIABILITY ) CONTD)

137353 Unrecognised deferred tax wsaets
The Deferred Taw assers have been recognised in the Financial Sustements ta the extent of farerasted profit. Capatal Alliance Partvers (Privabe) Limited, Capatal
Alliance Habdings Limited and Finnavation Private Limited have not recopnized the defierned tay aceets on following scoumilated tox lesses since it 1= nol probable
that future table profits wall be svailable agning which the Company can utilise 1he beoefil therefrom,

1024 - 2023
Temporury Tax Effect Temporary Tax Elfiect
difference difference
s, Ra. Ras. Ks.
Carmied forward tax loszes 163, T2LAGS 49,116,259 235143092 57,542 938
163,720 865 116,258 225 45D BT 542 908
1374  COMPANY DEFERRED TAX ASSET/ {(LIARILITY) s 024 2023
Temporary Tax Effect Temporary Tax Effect
Company difference diffarencs
Rs. Rs, Rs Ra.
Om Equipment (49,290) (14,787 1,848,151 554 445
Oin Inenngibles Assets {1,487 369) {446,391) (3,194,398) (958,319
O Retirement Benefit Obligation 17,456,376 5,236,883 10,921,184 3278355

15.910,017 47757058 9,574 937 2872481
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31T MARCH 2024

14 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Enrmings | (Loss) Per Share is computed on the profit / (loss) for the period atirthutable to equity luoldess of the Parent Comypiany divided by the
weighted average number of ordimmry shares outstanding.

GROUP COMPANY
024 2023 2024 2023
Prafit f {(Loss) stiributabl to Fguity Holders of the company 11,337, 769,357 2239271079 1,936,572,215 (183 220,173
Weighted average number of Ordiniry Shares 109.0045.753 95,364,907 100,045,753 03,364,907
Busic Enrnings / {Loss) per shire - [Rs.) 103.97 23148 17.76 [
11 Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares Movement
Batance as at 1" April 78,258,063 95,357,528 98,158,063 95,357,528
Effect of Shares [ssued During the your® 10, 747,65 1.379 10,787,650 7.37%
Welpghted syverge number of Crdimnry Shares Balance a5 ot 31" March 109,045,753 08 364907 10,1145, 751 95,364,907

* The Company ratted nddivanal share copital of Rs. 2309 5666250 by issning 20378360 nawber of Crdimaryshres for the yeor eded 3ia March
2024,

14.2 Diluted Earnings Per Share

There were no potentialfy dilutive ordinary shiires: oustanding ot svytime during the year, herioe dililed camings per share @5 equal 10 the Basig

Earmings Per Share.
15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS GROUP COMPANY
2024 023 024 033
s Rs Rs, R,
151 Faverable Balunce
Cash at Bank L1MGA80,019 438,113,569 10.399,645 49412397
Cash in Hand 240,341 2T H12 - .
1.1 36,800,360 A5HARD IS0 11,309,645 TR
Cih ingd Cosh Egquivalfanrs for the Purpose af Statement of
Cash Flaws 1, 136,850, 364 A58 151 KL 11,399,645 49412 397
16 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASUHED AT FVTIPL GROLP COMPANY
024 2023 2024 2023
s, Ry Rs. Ry
Investment in Governmant Treasury Bills (Nowe 16.1) 5.658,006,504 4,354 240,775 -
Investment in Govemment Treasury Bords {Note 16.1) SL13L,143.01% IW2RT RIASTT . -
Investment in Unit Trust Funds { Note 16.2) LT 136,577 184,340 6689 REEE LLE b 166,622
Investment in Shares {Nede 163} 1LTATIG616 50816466 129,500,869 29078, 798
0L881,033,014 37,507, 840,487 473306448 29,245,420

16,1 Securities pledged as Collaternl-Group

Capilal AlHance PLC
The Government securities ¢lassified ps Finoneiol Asscis measured at FVTPL, following mmounts have been pledged as collmteeal for Hepurchse
Agreements entered imto by the Capital Alliancs PLC (Subsidiary),

Murket Value (Rs) Face Value (Rs.)
2024 2023 024 2023
Treasury Bills 1.791,594,247 53949273924 £033,501,539 5,633 501 53%
Treasury Bonds 41,036,273.706 I ITLOROTIN 32518304609 J2528.394, 664

ALAIT.RG7.953  33,171.343,663 3K, 161,896,208 3R, 161,596,208
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ROTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN TS
AS AT 3 MAKCH,

(L% Twvestment in Unit Trust Funds

Capml Allience High Yield Fund

Capstal Allesoos Tasoinm Frnd

Capiml Alliamee Irvenment Grade Fiand
Capstal Allasee Coeporade Tresury, Fead
Capaal Allasee Giln Maney Matel Fund
Capaal Afliance Mediam Bk Delbs Fund
Capsinl Allimse il Pund

CAL Fiaed brfmtss Dppentumitios Fund
Capisal Allinice Walanced Fumd

Capial Allinnge Gile Trading Fund
Capitsl Alllaies Crasnliigtine E;quu,- Famil

FELE Reconcaliaim of Tuveatimenis in Uit Trow

Fuir value sy 1 Agril

lyesinneat during U yea

Redstpiion during e vesr

D i

G {Leaa) om pemsaaniteniont

Fabr Valwe of Upie Trust an a1 317 March

15,22 Tuvesbiignd im Unid Trusl Fuads

COMPANY

Caplial Allianug bnvestinend Grade Fund
Capital Allance Quanaiesdive Equity Muud

GROUE

Capital Allance Imcome Fiisd

Capaial Allsnce [rvesiment Ceade: Fand
Capuial Allsance Cispuiesie Treasury Fomld
Capenl Allmses Cuanistabive Eguity Fund
Capital Afliance High Yield Funi

Capanl AHance Gile Money Marked Fund
Capetal Allimnge Mediam Risk Deln Fusd
Capizal Alliasse Gill Fund

AL Fingd Incous Qpporunitics Fuod
Clipstal Alliamts Batancod Frod

Capizal Alllance Gile Teadiag Fund

6.3 Tovestiment i Quoted Shares

Tovestmegs in Custed Shaies

ekl Reguneiliation of Investmia in Skares

Babace as m 1* Aprll

Asguititeim of Suliadiary Surigp the yes
Ivestmenia during the year

Kales durimg the yvenr
risguinal gain {loss)

Appeeciamne{ Provisson] for Vi of Tivcsmeemis

Mot Effel of Maveniens of Exchumpe Bates
Balance as 581" Mareh

GROLP COMPAXY
Jud T 2024 033
Ha Ha s, Ha
1,083372 M1 -
A5,EE 4TS . =
BT, 044,004 150,840,614 H4)608,057
7,500 LAr L
3074, 60 1L93n 1 20 -
1,005,604 190617 L =
1750659 L I0TA3) -
R (B3 LT -
£.313 1,530, Hn . .
1034238 LANLT . ‘
La03 1%, 265 348 2622 Neh, 33
L0171 TRE T40, 60 REEATH [F)
GROUT COMPANY
034 2023 24 pirh]
Rs. Rs. R, Ny
184,040 460 1326500, 738 [T (NER: T ]
1550, 007,167 N0 D [T RN -
1 OELAN, 1 10) S1A38700)  (LETLATVADY)  (121.99),303)
SH)LD,THS 32,504,020 19,248,200 20,404,071
8,347,073 (4,180, 194} S5 (11370416
107,136,570 184,10 A 340 MEE AT 1b8.A5E
2 223
Mool Unis Fuir Value (Re)  Cout (R Mo ofUmiy T Velue (R} Camifa)
1458514 3,008,957 JHE 8. T00 . . 1
400 16621 175,174 4700 (LR 178 I
R J&I%‘i [T 1?51.:2;2 (EENEL)
0 2013
Moo of Units  Fair Value (Ra.j Cort | B Nooof Usits  Fair Valae (#s,)  Cost (R,
[BLLE bl 44,058,475 A GO, D - - &
1K M2, 260 7,004,004 D313, 08 EXLEE 150000814 145127 50
i 7y 748 421 RizT BOTE
REEN Y LRET0T0 13859676 A3, 1. 10,208,545 RE
1T.EI8 1,058,172 1,653,784 a0y 2000 234,000
S62.004 3,074,760 1Im s 1SR | 9¥E 120 I, 924,764
VLIS T, 05,63 LATLA40 106 R 28 o0 a1T a8 330
183,058 230,65 [RITRT 199,627 2,007,431 LR EN
1K, 10% ), B 93,232 474 GH0 (R iER LY 6, 0K, P
m 511 s42 140420 A6, 500 19305927
29,241 0134, 538 1713897 3641 LIELTH 3,11K,253
3, Iﬁi:,im T VL0 20E TAMATE VB4, JARSOT 170,000,k
GROUP COMPARY
024 1 1014 s
i, Ra, Rs. Es
A L $0.8 LB 48 12051 BRI 907K TN
—LITeGE _ Shfiedis USG5 0TI
GROUP COMPANY
24 Jurd 014 023
Ra Rs R Es
ALK 450 #1005, 179 1078 TIE 32499531
. 16,060, 4 5% . .
1,504 335,024 E=RiER O] JAEGHINT FA L AL
(4009, 1 55,737) e kiln® ] 152,196,563} {7, I8RO0
(07,00 {04, 750, 2440} 1 HoE (758 A
{E3.007.411) T, T, 3,708,703 2340644
(A,592,503) FEALL R - £

LSRN o EEENEASE,  LiDFIGRGE, ISR,
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AN AT MmO,
[ ] Qusted Share Investments.
024 o
TELLT  COMPANY Mo, ml Cow Mlarkel Nl (=] Marksr
Ehnres Valwe Sheames Vil
M (118 R R
Jetwing Symphony PLC 1054 11980 2RA40, 458 1,607,053 ILIPIIY £5,908, 182
Faquare Fharmaceutscals Lid: Bgladesh 5500 L0068 500,88} 4300 FRLIEE R 1,H10,. 516
Ceylenco Tnsunieicg TMLC 105,550 -l-l.lw..l.ll“ HLOST A . - -

{1 ing & Finamce MLC [.IM 12,1308 UL ] _ . =
tHie ey S A00.504 121,731,470 129,510,860 165395 25,000,103 19,070, TOR
(Addy Apgrecintion for Value af Imeamenis T.IT.IH 4 07 398

13751 907K THA
COMPANY
24 023
R Ri
16521 Agprenmtion for Valdor of Ineimees
Balance il the beginmng of b yoer A,07H.A58 1LTIS04T
Rewerinl fior the year 3,70 TUS 2340 Gl
Halance at the end of the yenr 7,775,190 4078, U4
163,23 GROUP 2z ]
Mo of Cont Marke M. wil Lt Wincket
Shates Value Shares Value
s, Hs, Ki Ri
Jevaeny Symphony PLE Li9,054 Fe AL R 23841484 2h4 054 LI AN 25008282
Square Pharmaccusdicals Lud-Bangdsdesh 105 %0 2,7, N 106 I6T A, LE00 084 LI
Ceytmgo lnusmmcg TLE s, ey B AL U047, 500 = - -
Peeple's Lenting & Finance PLE (RL NS 12,130,846 12,108,004 - . -
Adtken Spence Hotel Heldmgs FLC LR AU 311,002 REELLL . . F
Commeecial ek PLE TI.684 TATo038 TO82T . . -
Tattan Matisan Bxnk FLC 456 182,711,458 lﬁ!m = - -
Mebstuoorp MLC 1,TA5,Ti4 155,028.861 157.142,832 * - -
Watioms Truss Bank PLE N7 182520, W0 058 . - r
Seylen Bank 1.0 4828 E3355.040 46,168,040 . . -
Valtible Cine FLC 1,337,064 3,007 1R 752,732 . . -
DFCT Bk PLC A A L300 FLBLAY - = =
Hayheys PLE 1,308,748 15, 032067 131.000,668 -+ - -
Joim Keelh Holely PLC 069,160 A8, TT266T M4, T48 . . -
Altken Spence PLC RELTS LR R FLRTEE 5 & E
Cemtral Frouce Compasy PLE FIER- L)) I 4HR. 100 13,626,280 - - .
LOHLE il dangs PLC L] A0476,250 N TR D0 B = -
British American Tobncoo Banglodesh |miesd TS0 1LORT1N 29, 0A2 150 1202072 Lise T
Enstprn Hinaving Limidod . - . TLEM 4,593 636 4520 333
Cibympae tnioerries Limited - - . 7000 JIET RS 3.0 BE
The Premaer Hank Limieed = - . [LLiRLL ] 4171480 ERIE L E]
Undgque Hotel & Reroris Linwied 21, 50Hp AE4n5T7 JATRAN 20,250 5134007 B 15200
Piad At Lamsted 14604 (K TR 12824 16,434 13378 1235160
Bing Shine Textilen Limived - . . 1113 3T [ER R
Frifprmanigs Servaces Metwnak Lid 2300 et EICAT . a =
akiond Spinning Mills PLE 0,000 AlLa40 LA . . .
Meghma Pet Indaniries 1 imited 1,00 113513 110,795 . - -
Miracle lnduniries Limibnd 300 9136 35904 - - -
Lindom Capsial Limsited 35,04 1378700 a0t . . .
Hexger Maints Dangladesh Lindted EL] 1620224 1468130 - -
BRAC Renk MLC 3,0 51381 330,158 . . .
Cagniey Caieen Hank Crowth Fusd 0, (a0 1,401 021 124047 B - -
Cirameenphane Limited 1,00 1,434,034 1300, 00 - - .
btrnce Relueling Maton Limied 110, 1} 1,284,502 1,142,518 .
Midhand Dask PLC 248,03 10,275,740 9,166,997 -
WEA Hunk Limited pLUNLE ] 0,006,564 TMIESAN “
Peemsier Cement Mills PLT M ¥7.650 38,71 -
S Tiview & lidusiries Limijod X AL 308 FLrAAL) .
Bangladenh Thai Adumintum Lisited A58 26191 I2LIG6 . . "
16312644 133,103,740 LOT,TI6ALG 1R A5 ALT R 0816450
Adi{Lews); Approcisnan|Provisian) far Vabee of Invessments [SB387,133) 4,058 B IE
172718014 T SnNIGAGh
dld  Appreciationt Priosbon) fue Yaloe of Invesiments GROUP
oM o2
Ha. s
Belznce wl the bepinning of the yeat 1550818 (1,503 5
Acquasition of Subsidiary dering the year - THa272
Reverwal! (Provrion ] for the vear (3,01 7421 i I
Net Effect of Mavement of Dxchange Bstes (128,540

Balance at the end of the year e =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 MARCH, GROUP COMPANY
2024 2023 224 2023
17 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FY({1 R R= Ks, Rs.
Investmentan Un guasted Shares { Note 17.1) - TAD2 2] - TAO2 021
- 7402021 7402021
1.1 INVESTMENT UNQUOTED SHARES
Equity Investments Lanks Limited - 7,402,021 - 7402021
Lanka Financial Services Burcau Limited 1m0 Ab 0 B 0K TR . .
Lanka Rating Agency Limted 19,492,315 8.619.875 10492315 B619.875
30,492,315 17,021,896 19492315 V6,021 BOG
Impairment provision for Investment Unguated Shares (30,492,315) 19.619.875) (29.492.315) (8.619,875)
5 7402021 . 7462021

17.2  Impairment Provision for Investment Unguoted Shares

Investments m MNon quoted shares of Lanka Finnneisl Services Bureau Limited and Lanka Rating Apency Limited-are fully provided sinee the management

I5-of the view that the anmount is imecoverable

173 Equity Investments Lankn Limited

The Company has woitlen of the investment i Equity Investments Lanka Limated in full during the vear under review

18 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST GROUP COMPARY
2o2d 2023 2024 2023
Rs, R, ks, B3,
Securities Purchased Under Resale Agreements (Noe 18 1) 1,045901,339 372 829607
Term Depasits 142,087,155 413,805,422
1,157,986, 494 776,635,029 - -
18.1  Sccurities Parchased Under Resale Apreements Movement GROUP COMPANY
2u24 2023 2024 2023
its, fts, Hs. Rs.
Balunece as at | Apal 372529607 40,167,893 . =
Purchases during the venr 558,531,725 290:211,657 = .
Interest Income during the year 54,240,007 42,450,057 -
Balance as ut 31" March 1.015,%01,339 372829607 - -

18.1.1 Fair value of the Securities Fledged for the Securities Purchased under Resale Agreements -Giroup

Capital Alifanece Limited {Subsidiary)

Market Value {(Re) Face Value (Rs.)

2024 2023 2024 2023
Treasury Bonds LIITA30407  A25308252 1038400000 517,000,000
LIT,139407 — 435398252 1,038,400,000 517,000,000

The Company follwws the guidelines stipulated m the Direction on Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Transactions of Dealer Direct Participants in
Seripless Treasury Honds and Scripless Tressury Bills, imsued by the Contral Bank of Sri Lanka, in receiving securities for reverse repurchase agresments:
{Drircction Mo (1 of 2019, dided 20 December 20090, Only the eligible stcurities are used for Such receipls and the Section 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 are eomplied
with when considening the hatrcut requircments,

The Board of Directors of the Company hos estublished an EMfestive Risk managenent Framework by implementing necesssry polieies and procedures to
ensure complisnee with the sasd guidelines. An Effective Internal Control System s tsed w verify the accuracy of seeurity receipls.

The Company s entitled to repledie the securities received as callateral for the Resale Agreements (Reverse Repa) and the enlity hus an obligation to
return such securitics ol deal maturity. Tn relation to any repurchase trunsction, g anylime between the purchase date and repurchase date the denler can
Substituie other Eligikle Securitics for anmy parchased seeuritics. However, the purchased sceuritics shall not be tded ot uny time between the Purchase
Dt and the Repurchase Date. Accordingly, no any securities has been repledpe as ot 3151 March 2024 (A< st 3 Let March 2023- Rs. Mil).
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DO CONMPANY
AS AT I MARCH &
024 123 024 2025
£ TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVARLES R Hz He,
Trade Receivables 21550 847,370 1, 738,157,333 251,118 1 ARY 246
(her Recevables B0, 168,555 83,132,100 £.530.057 16,004,543
Lo, Proviston for impatrment of trade recervalsles (Noe 1913 {31.661,743) {18,503, 564) - (1,831,742}
1,605 354,182 | HO2_1ES H69 5,790,175 15,666 647
Short Term Loans { Note 192} 5,410,426 106,01 LR57 13,539,987 104 R 573
Deposits 139,303 465 150,780,428 £388,500 £ 3R% 200
Dheposit for CSE requitement 44,050,911 15,786,082 . -
Advances TLIAT. 169 S5A37041 13,194,413 54,765 RED
VAT Receivable 4 454,700 4 424 0% . -
Wohholding Tax Hecewahle 18,451,967 13,000, 350 17,630,862 12,628 243
Invemory 411,830 1,698 849 . 23358
feimbursable Expemses 14227070 2,500,484 14,224,318 25001 404
Prepayments 31,002,494 25 867684 6316157 5085 612
LI975564.325  2,177,793,399 ToAI3A1T 201,148,275
191 Provisiea for impairment of Trade and Other Receivalbiles
Batance us at 1% Apnl 18,903,504 12.808,521 1830742 118,163
Writton-oft during the year (2, 518,854) . {1364 446} -
Provisian during the yem 12,755:17% £.095.043 467,290 plEEY:)
Balonee asat 31" Mareh 31,661,743 14,903 264 - 1.E31,742
193 Short tevm losn includes thie following lnans given by the Company
Lavana given to Compdmees - 35295,342 - 35295342
Stafl Loans 55410426 0816505 13,539,987 H8.795.231
A5 410426 106,111,857 13,539,987 104,090,573
b1l RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
2.1 AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED ENTITIES
Capital Alllanee PLE . . 3,421,91% 15,158,979
Capital Alliance Tavessivenis Limited - - 1,376,701 -
Capitnl Alliance Parners Limaed = - 99,100,813 16022558
Capital Allisnce Secuwlies (Pvt) Limited - - - 2,792.529
AL Bangladesh Limited z = 1,953,463 3
CAL Secuntrcs Lunited - . 18,210,570 | 5, TR
CAL Tovestmernits Limited - - 18000870 1,745 70
Fioed Income Investment WV (Provate) Limited . 1.903.353 - -
Fiphax {Pvt) Limited . . . 32.571.825
Tempest PE Panness (Privae) Limited - 103208 - HLAHT3
- 2,106,362 144,733,691 0,130,954
0.2 LOAN GIVEN TO RELATED COMPANY
COMPANY
Capital Alliance PLC - - . 1023 143,836
- - . 1,023.143,536

The Company had obtamed a-shor-term revolving losn fseilities amaunting to Fis. 1,000,000,000, to megt its working cogital requircments on 23nd
January 2023 w the previous year. The Facilitg was valid for o period of three (3) monthe und Interest on the Loan wea 27,29% per annum,. The
Compariy s seitled the loan i full on 25th April 2023 und 281h Apnl 2023 wmounting to Bx. 800Mn and S06Mn respectively
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LINITED
ROTEETOT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ASATHT MARCH
84 | INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES. e
024 ]
Minrket BT Holting Canl T Nivaf Hudding Cou
Value (R Whare “ M Vahe (Fa ) Nharei “ Hi
lwvesiments in Ordinary Shares
Capitel Allinace PLE I5.004,740,056 285,297,152 EROOT  1EASIILTIN EI00LW0AT  ILIE AT T4l IIL3IeIe
Pt ('rivitn) Eimited [Nt T 440, DO DR 06,000,000 1D0ts 0,000,000
Capiial Allisece Parinces Limiend . - - ] s 2Ly Tt TRANES?
Tiplbo, {Friveee} Limited 2 Lo0a,001 (L2 T0,000,018 2,000,001 100 20000010
AL bresmens Conminnay FEALLE . 3,610 1807 IR, 1EL, 108 - 3639 10 182,185,100
Capitsl Allissesr Seasities (Trawie) Limisd . 11560 L] TLOZLTHR * LIES9 i ML
Fuoed brcayme hirvestimend | (Pye) Led o I Ieas L) - - -
e Eroumie brveatssest 0] (Pt Lid - ] s (L -
Fioed Enome Emvestoasest B (P} Lid I %% " . =
Ficed Trcome Invesimen V' (P Lisd 1 10 1o -
Investimeals in Prefecence Shared
Capital Aarce Seooritics (Privaie) Limited 37,500,000 In0%e 375,004, 00 REE UL [ 2% 000, KK
:EE& 9 1,057 824, TS
Frovision for lmpakrmann of Sobnidiary e v
Finscrvation [Privata) Limited {24,041 587 {30,452, T7N)
FipHo {Private) Linited {4,995, 8151
T IER AT 082 lmﬂ
20 Frovision for lsspainmear of Subsidiary COMPARY
224 rd
e Fa
Balance o ol 1ar Apial 27950,213 I%150.TES
tmpainment’ [ Keversal) of Imenimend i Submdlano [N {T.195,5T3)
Halsnee 58 6t 319 March 24,041,587 FLOm 11
Imdireei Heddingy 4 pe it ]
Halding % Helding %
Capital Alfisce Investmenss | smived T 84 TER
Capital Alligce Seoitics (Privne} Limacd o, 0 ok (1%
CAL Securities Limived 42805 £ 5%
Cal, bBangladeih Limbied . e 00508
Cal Irvestmonts Linsted, Banglsdesh 1% K100
Capital ASisece Pariners Limiled (LT -

113 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (O 15 SUDSIDIARIES

Material Non Controllang Infesest
T groop has snsod cech sinahery hat mmmmmmmﬂmwﬂnmhmm profisetl mvets, ne moets end sashllows. Ax per SLFRS 12, Tollovery tabls

summanetd he information relating 10 subsidisries which have ] o "

AL lsvestmenty Limived Capltal Alliance PLE CAL Secmrifies Lissibed

0 2033 124 023 034 FoivT]

MEL percontags FLE 4w 4% 20494 ik 115
Tokal sl AT #4998, 551 'ﬂ.:s:.n?.ﬂ‘-‘ FOMET00  RITATIS BiR, 244,010
Toual linbilities 133,763,152 15 T 44,861, InAgeaisay  1340vdges 527,318,530
Mk anasis 30,001,032 E34 (M, 162 t%hm _SAOORASE A7) 1ESTIY 351 004.63%
M asuriy aitrihadubls b N1 IELAITET A0 TEL Y IIPESGIAE  LIBOSMEST  MAATLAS 1 134,003
Four the wear paded 31 harch
Pst Urparating Income 155317667 £5334.338 INTIRGIEA0A RS TATT E059.257 554140
Profa [loss) afier lax (L1936 12l f.m PRSI LEITOGAELE  (IIRNELI0S) (10K m,m:}
by comprobensn intomed b} 7178 [, T3RATZ)
Total cemprebensive fneoase! {lns) ||.l.m.m1 [ERRET ﬁ TLERLTEIY TN e _LM L108.727 *ﬂi
Frafies (lous) aneriznrsble 1 X1 {575 (15,204, 05 LTTRTILSET  SELONOROY (51,657,502} (AT TM)
Total comgrehentive income! (k] astribmizble t N0 (5474226, {17,794, 608 2,770,670 531,106,084 (51,657,832 {4o073.304)
Diicdénd pasd B0 NC1 - : ABLATEIAY . C -
et canlh o germerated fiov{uncd in) bporsting setiviiies (148,940,485} {07,474977) 3 SIS SIS {IAATILANG) {30.002010)
Pet caidy Ty generabed Fromi{used i) in imesting aciivie DB, TAT AT 2,128,271 [BLATHTIE) (3 1R85 75 (3 0%0246%) (43,3 HLBR5)
Pier emxh Tows picated fromiused in} in Bnancing scindics {THIATH {5.130,711) (2 ORLTILRAL) (LELE LTI T i kL] .10
et ncrrvastdeerenst) in saih sad cath cquiralenis IR ERR, e
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CATNT AL ALLEASC E O LI S LIMITTELD
NOTES TOTIE FINANDIAL STATEMENTS
ASAT M AARCH

1 INVESTMENT 1N JOINT VENTURE RO COMPANY
Inird 03 1024 3
Ha 119 W, 111
Termpes 1L Purmers i Privase ] Lamied - Ll k) = ]
= b 40,758 o A CHE
L Wvestoent of Dnterest in Joint Vemnare _
O oh Mareh 2622 shir Board of Direviinrs of Capibsl Allance |idtiags Lisitad raztbved 1o divest s enrre sharebuldimg = Tenipest PE Partoers {Privste) Lisncd, @ Josnt
Nt Comjaatny avith WA inoastemend. Prarsiram i this esalusion, e Conipany ol s Hbding of 0000000 shares i Tempel FE Pammens (Privae) Ui For 8 ol
comssicdermtin o | BB 007 400 000 reflecting a price of Rx 1790 per share
152 Valwe of the nvestment GROUE COMPARY
W4 oyl hE] W4 2033
Hs, R Hs, R
Ealmmee v 0t begimming of e year LIS Th 122307 -
Curremt vears share of comprebwnsive income
I luided in Peofln or foas 2060 A4 T8 = -
Nicluddend an etber csmpiehensive moome! | Eapenss | (IAKET) LTHTIR L] .
1, TEE %0 E2044T -
Carrying amownt of inteeest Joim Venture 107,017,244 RE 0 T - =
Lews Sobd during the vear (1071172484} - -
Imvestment in equity mumﬁ invester (T ] =
The foliowing tuble ilstrates summatizod informmion of s Company s svestment in Tempest PE Pastness (Fevile) Limted:
121 Financial peaitien of equity GROLT
e FITE]
Rs Rs
Fereentuge swnership interm mY P
i carren asseis - TRA00,00
Cuurrent avsets - LA A E]
Maipcurent lahilibes - 111,557 4Rl
Ciwresi linbubitiey G 19,972,504}
e asscty 172,713,508
Cranprny's shave of wel asacts {509%) . B WAL T8
Carrying amaunt of interest in Joknt Venmre = [EERES]
GROTEF
4 s
Ra. s
Fimanclal perfarmance ol equity pconamtod investes
i 3434758 45.131,047
Pearfie for the year, nol of tax A1,140,6008 o, 0RD, B
(Onher compeehensive income/ (Expense) [GX9.613) TAT9414
Tatal Comprehsnsive inconse 41510550 16560376
Compam's shane of profit for the year (30% ) 1070301 4499729
Company's share of ather comprehensive Inconse/ {Expense] [30% | [LITE 1] 1T TIR
Compainy's share of tetal comjrrehenaive ingome (5075 20,7854, B 2IN5 44T
GROUP COMIANY
| INTANGIBLE ASSETS 1614 ETTFE] 1024 1023
. s Ha Hs,
Licenne oo (Mote 23.1) AN TI0,065 1,685, |05
Saftwars (Nete 21.2) 30,215,155 M0 07
Goodwill (Mole 23.4) 71,249,994 T0,240.994
Tatn! Carrying Value 149705614 157030206
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLIINGS LIMITED
SOTES TOVTIHE FINANCIAL S TATEMEN TS
AT I aamen

L] T ARGIHLE ASSETS (0% T0R ) LiRen P
4 2023
ML Lheviee Fees 128 Ky
Coni
A et begimniei ol ihe yene LHEILE ) A1 ERLAST
Addisiom Pharing the vear ~ . .
Ralamce avar 21" Mach &7 NRIRNT $2ER3ANT
Axgunividabel Amoriization
Ak ke bgiiivg ol ik ey T, 506,250 7.5 2540
fhalanc ow ot 3 8an March TR 7 e,
Mgt Enect of Movervent of Excharge Haxs. 3242478 1, T A0
Met Carryimg Yahue AR TS &1 ARE 108
12 Compater Soltware GROLT COMPANY
14 2023 INI4 ]
Re .41 s, s
Comt
W el " .ﬁp’:l 189,175,708 BT 18, TR 19,028,648 EEAE] TIES]
.ﬁmmdiﬂhﬂmhﬂﬂgﬂyw - 14081114 . "
HAldatzmon durinyg the yeor B33 150 12,855 e 1 386.2153 1,084,004
Wrirs o7 during !‘hl' yoal (1) B48.047} AR (ITOTRRIS [ 5T
Balance nvm 317 March 18, TG540 TR TS T 13,2390 29025043
Accumulated Anorinastion
Halanoe s at 1" Apml 161,596,935 ke dof v ) 138045910 11,370 £20
Acquisidizn of Subsdiary dusmy ilue yaur . 417,052 - .
Amaoised duning the year 12,148,195 13.204,278 1316,850 b kb
Winle nlI-&mEﬂ)‘w LIS, 951,744) (50607} {166T6,598) (B8 2429
Dalsnco s 8 31 March 124,795 506 T | 5, 535 BA45. 162 1LE04 910
Net B ffect of Movernond of Exchango Refes 4571400 6,518,634 -
Net Carrying Yalug MLI30,155 Mg JORTARS  saingan
133 Fully Depreciaied At
The mitial cust of fully-depreaed feongible Assers us or 310 March which wre anbl mose an follows
GROUT i COMPANY
I E) 024 EITE]
His. Ra Rs Ra
Cownguter Sofiwane 1M 10.647 112,594,557 B TR0 18820858
Eﬁlgﬁf —ILEREET L0 TR 5
— GROUP
234 Goadwill 024 i
s, Ks
CAL ivgstments Lismited, Bangladc _JLMea 708

7130380 71,100,350

Groesdwill in daises i respec of scquisitios of 1% of squity in CAL imvesnmens Limied, Dangladesh dwing the vear 20223013
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CAFTTAL ALLIANCE MOLDINGS LIMITED
NOVTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WS AT 3 MARCH

[T
20524 23
u RIGHT = OF = USE ASSET s Hs
Caxt
Halnneie 2 it 017 Agwil 138,501 V6,533,030
Remiasurcmant dunng thi yowr * (3.E24.200)
Aadelrtivms g the yeur - 1 - G . L P
Bulange o 31 317 Masch 164 360,810 238 900081
Avcumulited Ao tisation
Bilunce o8 a1 01 Apail 1M1 2,005 93 EsT
Diepeecution for the year 48,578,212 43 594,144
Falange a4 a1 317 March 49,200,217 e 623 nnd
Net Eifect of Movement of Exchange Ratcs (12,868,372} (1328 2060
Carrving Amount Valie as at 31 March 102501 311 137,045,860
24.1 Right of Usc Assct Category Promive Liwde Term Ko Sq.Feet
Buildings The Sacond (03nd) Flaor degigmated av Lovel Frve (05), of “Millenmum House™ 202120724 7.500
artuated ot Mo 465K, Navwam Mavwathi, Cobomibis (12
fuslldings Havana F5 Coxma, Floer MoSth, Plot Nod8, Rosd Mo 93, 0ulshan, Dhalg- 202 12020 268
1212, Bangladesh
Thuildings House # 16, Aparimenté 20.Road 1, Baridbars Deplomane Ares. Dhaka-1212,  2023-2029 Heuidential
Bangladesh Bulifing
3% PROPERTY, FLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
51 GROUP
Compuicr Office Fuornitere and Communication
Equipment Enuipment Fittings Miter ¥abiclex Thviees Tt
s, Hs, Ha, s s, Rs
Balamie as st 017 April 2021 56,239 890 23 5TRAS) 51173672 TT080, T8 1 431,353 4%, 506, 144
Submdrrics disposed during the year 3T15,889 . 3T I - - 3,071 263
Addiliom dunng the year 35411 952 19854273 15 624,212 - 330,100 T1,241.557
Diaposalsd willes off your {2,238, 199) {671,081 (2,575,510 2 (3,700 13,488 490)
Balance 38 a1 31 Murch 2023 92,147 532 A2 761 545 &4.581.770 1 7.080,776 1. 755,753 218330476
Balaner as at 61" April 2023 92,047,832 41,761 645 64,581,770 17,080,776 1,758,753 218 IMATE
Addstions during the vear FLLRITRLEE] 16,284,479 13,364,207 Sl o0l (0 AN 100 103,230,824
Dispodals’ write- off vear - {434,317} (fi1,272) - - (435589
Balunce as 3t 31 March 2074 112348, 580 8611807 Th MR, TRS T1,0RILTTE 2,159,858 311,085,721
Malance as at 01y Apadl 2002 38950214 20875021 31,938 383 17,001,800 1,305 881 110,04 982
Subsidiaries disposed dufing tha year 1,039,641 ; 139,508 L L 1,199,140
Deepreciation during the year 10,363 065 1,613 408 8039077 0,167 239,045 20,433,819
Thispogals! write- ofF year 12,236,356 (6606811 11.274,397) 5 (3,700) (4,175,134
Balanee a3 at 31st Mareh 2023 48,225,574 21,838 645 38,842 571 17,080,775 1,541,248 127,548,812
Balance a5 ut 015t April 2023 48225574 21,438,645 38.862,571 17,660,776 1,540,246 127548812
Drepreciation durning the yveor FURIER R 1] 4,038,109 100061 358 &, 106,000 LLIR. 42,760,936
Erispimals! verite- ol year - (434.17) {81,272 : = {405 880}
Balance as at 30at Morch 2024 68,258,155 15,439,437 48,862 687 18,180,776 JANTE A0 160,814,159
Exchange Difference as ai 31032023 (271,948) {105,121} (1.233.215) - . (3128282}
Exehinge Differoace an at 30002024 (336337 {4, 1THLA45) (2.871.HT) - - (1425.716)
Carrying value sy w31 Mareh 2023 43,650 010 19319879 24 465 084 - 217,507 87,683,582

Carrying value as wt 31 Murch 2024 40,727,046 28,981,525 15,120,116 " R, 7% 140,845,846
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CARTEAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED
SOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR AT M Ml

I8 COMPANY

Campute Oifiee Furnitre & Comumunication
Eiguipmcan Eguijinent Fittings Mutar Vehistia s s Yot
. s s, [T Rs. .

Cost
B;!Inn' v at 01" Aprif 2022 X AN Behd | LR Uk 29,50 740 [ 2000 1028 49,124 61, B35.006
hispaoasls / Trqrﬂirﬂ 304, 304 (232378 EREIR 12]] - - (LU TATH
Batunce ns a1 31" March 2023 504, 72| BT 518 27,050 BN 1o, 204,936 TR B3, 1
Rabumee ws a1 01 April 2023 B500,721 ERI7.A1R 271 R BAE 2052 40,130 S9.863, 150
Aekditinny during the year SR, - - - . J58,HH)
Balanes as a1 317 March 2024 684,72 RIHET 518 27,164,865 16,200,916 49,026 249,271,154
Accumulated Depreciation
I_lhnwu an st April 2021 6,100 A T0 BV EIA 17,376,935 I6, 140,759 18842 45418321
Dopraciateon dirirg e year 6T 470,80 4, T35 1 649,167 p, e a2
Drisposals | Transfers {35003 (548975} {R52.749) . - {1,706, 224)
Balance as af Mst March 2023 [T (IR TLHT 6 16,2033 49,1 1,405,095
Balance as ap Mlsi April 2023 0T 8012046 21247364 16,209,920 4,126 ST400,699
Drepeeeiation during the year 179,267 254,350 2 - 4,830,451
Balance as il 315t March 2024 [ERT PR 15543168 18,209,925 A 120 27,234,150
Car 2L o e - =

arrving valae as ol 3s0 Macch 2023 131084 294871 S.01.504 450 400
Carrying value as at 31st Mareh 2024 HMLEIT 4892 1442700 = z 1,957,404

153 Capitalisation of Borrawing Cosl
There wete no capitabised borrowing comt related 1o the acquintion of Eguipiment during il vear {2023 < Ml

254 Title Restriction oo Property, Plaot snd Equipment
Thene are no resstoctions that existed on the fithe of the Equipment of the Ciroap and the Company o at tha reporting dam

255 Property, Mamt and Equipment pledged as Security for Liabilities
There wese oo tiems of Equipment pledied as socurtly a5 a1 318 Margh 2024

2156 Temporarily ke Property, Plant and Equipment
Thene wore no temparary idle nems of Equipment as ot 315 March 2024

157 Fully deprecinted property, plant sod equipment in use
The matial ot of Tully-depresiated equipment o ot 315t March whach are 31l 1n us os follows,

GROUF COMPANY

024 2025 024 a3

L8 B R R
Compater Equipment 30,682.852 27431793 5,963,186 5102085
Office Equipment 11.384,443 1379439 11.002,003 LR el 3
Furniture & Filtmgs 16,350,311 11 129,540 LA LTE | 9,724,062
Cormmunmeation Devices 1701, 153 L4205 41,126 40,126
Vehiples 17.080,776 17.0%0.776 16, 20026 [6.205.926

7208 544 EEE TR 43,220,473 0056511

LEMG
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLINMGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31T MARCH, GROUP COMPANY
1024 2023 ozd 2023
6 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST s, Ks R Ra
Secaritics Sold Under Repurchese Agreeinents (Mate 26.1) 37, 220,565,180 20833880 379 - -
Shost-Tern Loans (Mote 262} 478,234,603 335,000,000 . 125,010,000
Commerciil Papers (26.3) 215425 604 L T4 B3G50 - 1,483 524 638
37,914,224, 387 31,897,724 903 - |, B 5240, 68
260 Scewrities Pledged ws Collateral under Securities Sold under Repurchase Agreements - Group
Cauplinl Allianee FLC {Subsidiry )
Murket Valoe (Hs.) Face Value {(Hs.)
24 02y Pl s 123
1,70, 504,247 5359373924 1 834,600,000 5.633,501,539
Treasory Bilks 41036273706 I7.772069.738 SEAIRZ00,000 32578304 604
Treasury Honds %‘F&Tﬂ .'ﬂll El é& E E‘ ﬂi‘l Eﬂﬂm J& 161, B95, 208

The Company follows the guidelines stipulated in the Birection on Repimchase and Reverss Repurchase Transactions of Dealér Ditect Participants in
Senpless Tromury Bonds and Scripless Treasury Bills, issued by the Central Rank of Sr Lanka, In allocating securities for repurclise agreements {Disection
Mo, 01 of 2019 dated 20 December 20091 Dnly the eligibie securttles are wsed for duch allocations and the Section 4.3, 4.4 and 4 5 are compdied with when
convidering the hurew reguirements

The Board of Directors of the Company has exablished an Eecive Risk management Framework by implenienting nevessary policies and proceduses 1o
enaure compitanee with the said goedelines. An Effective Intermal Control Systemn is wsed fo verdfy the sccuracy of secinity allocation

GROTF COMPANY
262 Term Loao Movement 2024 2023 024 2023
s, Rs Ha K
Balpnee a5 at 1" April A, 000, £76,_500,000 125,000,440 425.000,000
Laans abtoinsd di g the vesr A 339,000,140 3, 20, 0000000 1H75,0000,000 |, 700,000,000
Laan repayrment during the Year (4,199.000,000) (3,807 500,000) (LO0000,00) (2000000, 000)
Interesi pooyahles A 134603 - - -
Ralance ax at 31" Mareh ATHL3,000 335000000 = 1232000000
26.2.1  Shart -Term Loans
Hank Leans
Union Bank Loan A18.234,603 325,000,000 - 125,000,000
NTH Bank Loan B 50,008, WM 10,000,000 - -
478,234,603 335,040,000 - 1 250 (00
GROLF COMPANY
6l Commercial Pagers Movemen 2124 20Ty w4 2E23
s, Hs R, Rs.
Balance ne st 1" Apni 1.72R,836,524 746,183,260 1,683,524 688 Q84 320,442
Issued AMotured) dhermig the voar {1.697.209,787) BI4.521. 865 (LAT4I54.624) 475,004 371
Interest Expenses durmg the year I3, TR H6T 167 731 390 130,729,936 224,199,875
L]
Balance as ul 317 March 215425004 1.?2&.&%& - L6BI. 524,68
F i TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES GHROUP COMPANY
2024 3023 024 2023
Rs. Ry Its. =
Trade Credivrs ER7.681 566 1,142 (83 707 - -
Provigions snd Accroed Expenses LA, 48,067 Ti4.494 403 33,367,659 17,393 088
Ciher Payohles 6], 365,408 76,922,559 1081625 3033533
3912, 195041 1933, 500665 A3,649.314 30,926 621
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GROUFP CIFIPrANY
M AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED EXTITIES 024 ek 2024 rlirE]
K=, Itx R Ks
Capiial Alllance Securitiey ( Pvt) Limited - = J 169,501
CAL Investment Conmulianey FE-LLC - B 2Hnon
Capiml Alliance Investments Limined . . 2 GREOD IS0
- - 3,579,501 98,600,190
19 LEASE LIABILITY GRMT
2024 U232
Ha. Rs:
291 Leuse lability Movemeni
Balmnce i ot 1 April 147,542,646 133,120,410
Remeasimament dunng the vear - (2,824,001
Additrons dunng the year IERTETIN TJHIRT 342
Interest Expense far the year 1L.349,707 1,741,754
Liease rental Bayment during the venr (57,235.086) (53,065 067)
Exchange Difference (12.517.244) (19,717,482
Balanee as ul 31 March 115,012,852 147,542 636
S ——"
2 Amounts recognised in Income Statoment
Interest an lease fabilities 11,349,707 11,740,754
Degreciation - Raght of ise sts 4,578,212 43,394,148
193 Amounts recognised in Statement of Cash flows
Hepayvment of Gross lease hability (57,235,986) (53,065,0671
294 Mpturlly Analysis - Contraclual Undiscounied Cash Flows
Amoun Payable within One Yeur 53, 106,760 47,353 830
Amodit Payable after One Year and Lesy than Five Yeues THATIET 104,058 985
Tatal Gress Liahitity 124,580,357 150,412,805
My RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION GROUE COMPANY
0z4 2023 2074 2023
s R4 Rs, Ra.
0.1 Movement in Present value of Defined benefit ebligation
Halance ns m 1" April TG, A9 £2.541.298 10921185 11282010
Transforred 10/from Related Companies - . - 10,102,500
Curreni Service Cost 14 30, 56 10.578,37| 1,082 513 793,188
Iterest Cost 20,110,453 12195368 2,020,419 169,219
Actuarial (Gain) ! Loss 21,240,305 2677461 3 462,159 (1,270,933}
Paymens made dusing the vear (12015500} {10,626 000y - -
Balamee as ot 317 March TAR402,712 14 664 408 17 456,276 10,921,183
0.2 Expense recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss;
Current service coal 14,356 956 10,578,571 LO52.513 793,188
Intercst coat 20, 010453 12195 563 ZA20A1Y 168,239
34,507,400 291000 3.072,932 AT
30,3 The amopnt recognised in the Other Comprehensive Incmne
Actunrial {Caim} Loss 21,246,308 QAT AG] JAGL, 159 (1271931 =
Provision mode during the vear £5,753,714 324409 200 6,535,00H e T

The provishon for retireiments benefi obligations as ot 315t March 2024 is hased on the actunnial valuation carrecd oul by a profisannslly qualilied sctuary, Mr
M Poopalnmathon, nn Actaury of the Actuarial ind Management Consulam (Pvi) Lid, using the “Frojected Unig Credit™ (PUC) method, the method
recommended by thet Si Lanka Aceounting Standand = LKAS 1900 “Employes Benefils™
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION { CONTD.}

0.4 Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes al the reporbing dale to one of the selevant sclusrl exumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the

delined benefit obliganon by the amoums shown below

Toveme I

Pizcoqing Rate
Fuifume salary scale

3.5 The Principal Actuarial Assumptions uwsed were as Follows:

Expected Annual Average Salary Increment
Diseount Rate/Interest Rate

Seaff Tumever Rate

Retiring Age

Weighted average retirement age

The Companies will continue a5 a goig cobeer.

GROLUP COMPANY
Increase Decrease Increase Decrense
{4,408,400) 3,499,090 (1,183,136) 1,356,132
524,643 (3.604,215) 1,386,851 (1,227,357}
GROUP COMPANY
2024 PR ] ui4 023
Rs, Rs. Rs, Rz
10%5 16% - 20%% 1% 16%
11% 185% 1L0% 193
10%%-21% [ i 1L (F S
60 Years &0 Years 0 Years B0 Years
4 yeara=% Yearn 3 yoars <% Yeours S ¥ears 2 Years

Assumption regarding fture morolity are based on A 1957770 maortality table issued by Institte of Aetsiaries London, United Kingdom,

The salary increment ride of 10% is considered appropriate 1o be in line with the Company's targeted funire salary incremenis when takimg inle geceunt the
currend marker conditbons and inflation mie. As per the guidclines msued by the Institule of Charlered Accountants of Sni Lanke, Us discount rates have been
adjusted to convert the chupon bearing yield to & zero coupon vickd to mugch the characteristics of the grauity payment liability and the resoling yickd to
maturity for the purpose of valuing Employes Bénefit obligations ag per LKAS 19,

i Maturity Amalysis

The following payments nre cxpected on employes benefit abilities in futere years from the fund as follows,

Within next 12 months
Between | o5 years
Between 3 to 10 years
More than 10 years

STATED CAPITAL

Izsued and Fally Paid
127,636,623 Ordinary Shares (2023 - 98,158,063

A ETATED CAPITAL MOVEMENT

Bailnnoe as ot 01 April
Issued During the year
Prakance a5 ot 31" March

All.shares renk equally with regard to the Company's restdunl asseis.

The holders of ordinary shares. are entithed to receve: dividends as declared from time o tioe, and are-entitled 10 one vote per shire o1 metiog

Company.

GROUP COMPANY
2024 2023 124 2023
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rz
71,656,654 11,517.850 1,925,169 1,254 545
46,313,731 69927414 6,068, 76 4,550,436
19,649,094 13,925,079 3.831,038 2.394.933
10,743,253 7,293,955 4,731,300 2691271
145,402,712 104,644,498 17,456,276 10,921, 185
GROUP COMPANY
2024 2023 2024 23
Ty, Rs. Rs, Rs
A3, 798,006 231731471 2,432 798 094 233231470
Mo of Shares Value (Fs.)
2024 2023 024 2023
Rs. Es
98,258,063 55,357,528 123,231,471 55,936,700
19,378,560 900,535 2,309, 566,625 134,294,771
127,636,423 98,258,063 2,532,798,096 123,231,471
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i

321

312

a3

A3

OTHEHR RESERYVES

SPECIAL RISK RESERVE

Capital Allianee Limited

Fvery Primany Dealer Company shall mainlan a Special Bisk Beserve and shall, out of the net profits after e payment of tax of aich yepr, hefine any

divedend 15 declarcd, transfer 1o Use Special Risk Rescrve o sum not bess than 10 per- com of such profits az per the Primary Dealer Companies (Mimimum
Corg Capilal) Dirccton Mo, | of 2005 zsuwed by Central Bank of Sn Lanka

EPECIAL RISE REXERVE MOVEMENT GROUP
W24 W23
s, Rs
Balance-at the beginning of the vear 427 A0 6E 644,799 017
Transferred to Special Risk Resorve |, 38%,318,349 2E2, 700,664
2,316,818,030 937,499,681

FAIR VALUE RESERVE

Fair value reserve consistof the fair value grn or boss on remaasurement of Finaneiol assets classified a5 Fasr value through Ciher comprehensive Income,

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE
Fareign cumensy tranglation reserve congigts of all foreign cirmency differences arising fram the trenglation of the (inancial stitements of CAL Invesiment
Conaultancy FZ LLC, CAL Secuntees Limited, CAL Investments Limited, CAL Bangledesh Limited i (o reporling curmency.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACUTIONS

According 10 30 Lanka Accounting Standard (LEAS 24) 'Related Party Disclosures’, Key munagement Personnel, are those having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities ol the entity. Accordingly, the Board of Dircetors (mcluding. Exeeutive
and Mon executive Directorsh have been classified as “Key Munagement Personnel” of the company,

Key manapement personnel

1) Directors
Koy management personnel include persons who were directors of Capital Alhance Holding Limited at any time during the financial vear,

Mr. WA T. Fernando

Mr. C.5, B. 5. Anthony

Mr R 1. Arasaratnan

Mz M. T. M. 5, Cooray

Ms 1A, De Zoysa

Mr T, ), William

Ma. K A Wilson (Riesigned with effeer from st May 2023)
Ms B S Jaysuniya

2} Other key manzgement personnel (KMPs)
Oiler EMPS include persons with responsibility for planning, direeting and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirecily

Transactions With Key Management Personnel

Loans to Directors
Mo loans hive been given to the direciors of the Company.

Key Muanagement Personnel Compensation
Key management personnel comprise the Directors of tee Company and the benefits paid for the vear is Rs 6,050,000, (2023« Rs. 4, 100, 0000-).

Other Transactions with Key Management Personnel
There were no matenal transactions with key management personnel of the Company,
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NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2024,

13

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTD)

2y Transactions with Relaned Partbes

Company Hetaliznship Mature 00 T {imn 2024 2023
CAL Investment Consubtancy FZ - Subsidiasy Conypany Intercommipany Fayahle 20, .
LLE Sale of Subardiary 27.906,255 e
Capital Alliance PLEC Submudiary Company Interest on Reverse Rg]_pu. 1851071 -
Interest charge on Repo 10,346,100 =
Reimbursement of Experses 24,932,520 FLG12810
Intercompany Receivable 3421915 I5.15897%
Dividend Incame GTRAT0,4602 -
Laaan granisd ) - 100,000,000
Interest Income on Eoar 49,197,053 50020, 548
Loan [Inferest Receivable B 23143 838
Capital Alliance lnvestments Lid Subs Subsaideary Company Intercompany Receivable’ [Payalde) 2,576,760 {SHB6000, 150
Reimbursement of overboad Expenses 13,187,730 18,383,052
Interest Incomie on Loan LAMLGRT 5
Capital Alliance Fannees Lid Sub Subsidiary Company Commerelal Paper Interen Experne (1,585,708} (32 263.573)
Comeercial Paper Liability = (53,635,764)
Fenbarsement of overhead Expenses 22229642 14572099
Intercompany Reccivable G0, 100,813 16,022 558
Dividend Incomes 5912982 .
Capatal Alliance Securities (Pvi) Ltd - Sub Sulssédiary Company Reimbuarsemen of overhesd Expénses 33859263 18,637 384
Brokerage Expernse (5,362,493 {48,400}
Intercompany (Fayable)' Recervable (3. 149,501) 2
Invesiment in Preference Shanes - 175,000,000
Dividend Incame 43,689,199 FO027.046
Laoan Interest Reegivable - T 247
Intereat Income on Loan G012 2 839,736
Commercial Paper Inferest Expense (34000, E26) (47,371,425
Commercial Paper Lishility = {100,649 474
Finnovatuon Pyt Lad Subsidiary Company Commercial Faper Liability - (34,339,523}
Commersial Paper Intereat Expense. (5642382} {63401, 3%4)
Interesn Income on Loan L510,173 s
FipBioe {Pvi) Lid Subsidiary Comparry Intereompany Keceivable - 12,572.805
Tempest PE Parinees (Pyi) Lud Inint Verture Comgiany Commereial Paper Liability 5 (110,044 0163
Commercizl paper Interest Expenses (20,782 210)
Relmbursement of Bxpenses - 159,295
Indercompany Recevable - S2693
Cal Securities Lid, Bangladesh Sub-Submidiary Company Reimburscaem of Expenses 1062615 1,755, T}
Intercompany Receivable 1910870 1,745,700
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ROTES 10 THE FINARCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3™ MARCT 2024,

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIINS (CONTIN)

2) Tramsactions with Belated Partics

Compuny Helatimmhip Natwre OF Transaction 2024 2023

AL trvestments Lud, Bangladach Kub-Subsldiary Company Rermbuarsermi of Fxpoies 1062 615 174800
Intercontpamy Reconakle 18, B60.HT0 1,745,041

CALBangladesh Lad, Bangladesh Sub-Subsidrary Company Intercompany Recenvalile (Ao KR LK)

Ashiths Hebdangs () Lid Fignifean! shaneholfing Dividend Faid (538.470,570)

Jetwing Travels (P Lid Sipnificant charehalding Dividend Fard (529,584, TTi)

Capial Alliance Irvestmen: Grade Uit Trusd Fund managod by Subsidiary

Fund Company Aot L pachos 23,638,957 771
tnvestmentin Unit Trust Fund 343,638,956 +
Commercial papes Inferest Expunsa - {37,179,245)

Capital Afliance Income Fund Uil Trast Fund managed by Subsidiary Commescial paper laterest Expense . (1.022,99%)

Company

Capital Alliance Quantitstive Equity Uit Trust Fund managed by Subsidiary  Ievestmend in Unit Trust Fund 216622 168,622

Fund Company Enrming for the perind S.000 £.732.840

CAL Fixed Income Opportunity Fund  Usit Trest  Fiend managed by Sub- Commercual paper Inferest Expense (18,652,757} 111,245, 190)

Subsidiary Company Commercial Pager Linkility - (1047 K25 412)

Earning for the periad 826,285 .

Mr WA T Fernando [Hreoior Drividend Faid (387 493,907

Mz BT M 8 Cooray [hrector Commereial Paper Lishahity - [324,500,721)
Commercial paper Interest Expense (621 301,535) -
[hvidend Pawd {169, 466,952) (62447964}

The Campany carrics oul rmmisctions with parties who ane defined as related partica [ Sri Lanka Accounting Standarnd {LKAS 24), “Related Party Dischosure”, in the
atdinary buse of its business. The details of such wranssctions are reported above. The fricing applicable so soch tmnsactions s based on the sascssment of risk and,
pricing model of the Company and 1 camparable with what (s applied to mansactions baween the Compuny and 1is unrelated customarnt
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34

B

COMATTMENTS ASDOONTINGENCITES

There wene mo cilher maderad Igatsoms, or nns that could lave o msteral inpact on fineend posismn of e Company or which would Beail oo thselomare i ihe foancnl
stibements for (e vear eoded 31 March 2024, except tle Brllowng,

Lompany

Fo (e your of wescsment JGT, un weome tay bbby of Ba. 555236471 and g penaliy of Ba. 2,770, 152 M wiore sanessod, The addibional liadlity wall be sct ofl ngammst
an overpaymeni from the previows yor, and o penaliy will be paid once il refind s progessed, For the year of assecsment 2017TK, an iocome tas assessment of Ra
1283990 was devormuingd, However, no paymen is reguined as a withlolding e cedit of Bs 4,657,391 hos been applied

For the year of assesmment 2000/17, 8 VAT on IS lisbalay of K 12,750,004 and 8 penalty of LKR 0,390,002 were nitiafly assessed. Following an obpection and seriement
with Imland Revenue, the Company seribed fhe agreed babalaty of LER 5,247, 289.95 and @ penalty of Hs 344,729 for inte payment. Adidionally, the Company seitled the
ngreed NBT on FS lisbility for fhe same year, smounting 1o Re. 314,330,332, aloag with o bete paymen penafty of 3, 31,433.63. For the yesr 30203021, an adidinonnl VAT
on F& pssovament of Ra 3,567,707 wae seitlesd a5 punt of an amicobde apreemem with Inband Reverue. Howsver, o pennlty on late pryment wis not negotinied, and the
Company anticipases a poteriial addivional penabiy of |0%%, amoustig 1o Bz 356,770, wisch may be charged

There weno no material capital commizments as of (he reporimg date which require disciossres in (he financial atemente

01T Balance Sheet Exphsine 024 2023
Ra, R,
Asseis
Forwind Purchanes-Civermment Securitics 6,207,792.917 1,210,358, 927
Linlilitics
Forward Seles-Glovermment Secuniics TA46,292.334 107,076 608

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING FERIOD

There wiere na materal evente after il date of Statenent of Fmancial Positin that require sdyustments b or descioures w the (mancnd stidements exoept the below.
Capdtal Alliance PLE

Cin 1 Tth April 2024, the Boand of Dircesors of the Company hog resofved to declare the 2nd Interim dividend rotalling Rs 4,941, 268,260,00 répresenting a dividerd per thare
of B 1500 for the vear ended 3 s March 2004

Caphial Allisnce Secarities Limited

O 051k Aprl 2034, the Boasd of Directors of the Company hirs resolved to declare the fimal dividend totalling s 173, 108, 143 representing i dividend per share of He 2100
fiog 1l year ended 310 March 2024
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NOTES TOTHE FINANUIAL STATEMENTS
As af 3 March 2024,

S L Soensitivity analyaas

The lollbowmy table shows the ostrmated nopoct on profitalality st cguity by Dectuotion oF interest rates assmming that all ather variables remain
comstint on she following fimncral aswets. Floatng mie mstruments expese the Groop 1o cash Rew lucluations

As at 31 March, 034 2023
Variable-rate Varighle-rote
Impact on FET 'n::;::-:“ Trwprid on PRI I"l‘::::ﬁ

Imerease in 100 basis points
Fimancial asseis
Giovernment secunitics

Treazury hills (15, 734.845) (11T 192) 244594 Thl ) (17,146,333)

Treasury bongks (1,302,744,706) 011,921,204 (750,365 632) (525,355 955)

(13184535500 (UI20384%6)  (TTARG0,403) (542,402,285

Decremse in T lasis points

Filnaneial assefs

Govemment securities
Treasury bills 15861,349 1L 002944 24,727,166 17,300 006
Treasury bomds 1.357.320.558 250,124,391 788360035 551852025

1.373.081,907 961,217,335 B13,087,201 SO 161,41
300,02 Company has established foblowing messures 1o manage the interest rate risk

Cult loss policies ~ maintaing a limit in enns of maximum loss a portfolio can uadergo. Every trading position taken by the Company will have o cut loss
limit earmarked which emures the maximum boss the company will incur, when a irading position is capped

Value at risk (VaR) limit - The VaR i3 a mathematieal maodel which forecasts the loss the portfolie can undergo with 95% probability within a
stipubited limit 3¢t by the Board of Directors. Therefore, in & worst-case scenario with 93% confidence level there is a pre-determined maximum value of
maney that can be lost This i momiored daly by the Dealing team and Management.

Targel Duration and Convesity - The duration of the portfolio depends on the maturity of the hills and bonds held in the panfolio, The duration of the
portfolio is hased on the prevailing interest rale cutbook. The longer lenor bonds carry a higher interest e risk, therefore, the average duration of holding
a portfolio needs 1o be factoned in 1o spread interest rae nisk

Seenario analysls lmlis — with the use of e data systems, Company is able 1o successfully gauge the market conditions based-on past data and
experience in murket conditions. With this, they can make an informed deciston in terms of interest rate outlook,

Continuas and ongeing menitorng combined with in-depth research and statistical modeling. Yorms the basis of the Group's inlerest rale risk
management sirtegy.
Risk Dashbowrds reflecting risk limits set on mading are updated daily and presented quarterly to the Board Risk Commifiee,

3602 Equity Risk
The Group's exposure 1o equity risk arises from its investments in equity seouritiss, Equity risk o (e risk that the fair value or future cash flows of
financial instruments will fectuste o3 a resull of changes in market prices.

Listed equity investments GROUP COMPANY

2024 2023 2024 2023

Rs, Rs Rs. Rs
Investment in Quoted Shares 1,073, 7164616 5ib,816.466 129,510,869 29,078,798

073,716,616 0RIAAGE 129,510,860 29,078 798

36.1.2.1 Sensitivity analysis of equity rigk

The following tabde shows the estimated impact on profitability and equity by Muctustion of steck market prices af the reporting date, assuming that all
other varobles remain constant.

GROUP COMPANY
Impact on BT Impact on PBT
1024 2023 2024 w3
s, s Rs Rs.
10% deeline in stock prices (107,371,662) (S.080.647)  (12,951,087) {2,907,880)
104 Incrcase m stock prices 107,371,662 5081 647 12,951,087 2.907.880

36.1.2.2 Managemeni of Equity Risk

The Group manages the equity risk through diversification and placing limis on individial and 1oial equity pontfolio investments.

The Group's equity risk management policies are;, Investment decigions are based on n depth macroeconomic and industry analysis as
rapars an group perfbrmance, T

Reparts on the equity portfolio are submitied 1o the group’s senior management on 8 repular hasis

Adhetence 1o the mvestment policy which includes sirmgent guidelines an rigk exposures.
36.1.3 Forelgn Currency Risk

The foreign currency ridk i the rick that the fair valve or lutiens cosh Nows of a Gnancial inssrument Muctiating due 1o changes in ﬁ;ch 1 .;,,

'lh'l‘: curmencies giving riss o this sk are primuely US Dollars. Mainly Foreipn currency reserve consists of impact on transkation of forcign eperations of
the Growp,
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363 Liguidiey risk

The Liguidity risk ts the risk that the company may oot be able fo mect it present and lnare cash ohligriione wizhai icurming unacceptable losses of Enpacting
operations. The Coempeny”s objective when managing liquadiny s 1o enmara, 22 far as possible, that @ will have suffeient Noaldity 1o maer s Hahdliziey when they
are ddue, imder both noemal snd seressed condintions, withau inneming unscooptable boetes o tabding danwepe to the ©) "

L L}

i LA Fapesure to Dgubidiy rek

The Fellowing uee ihe semmning ouesctinl mutunties of lnonciad assets sod Tinancal Nabilities at the repenimg daie. The amoants are gros s wndiscoansd,
and include contractual intenest pryments and excluds the impact of netling agrecmonts:

GROLUP
Camrractusl ravh
Asat 3 March 2024 Twial carrying Tivms
amuunt Tuotal 12 mnths vr leas 1+1yrany 2.9 Years
Asieis
Investmsent in Governmend Treswry Bils A KR T £ LSRG S £ RS 00 MG = -
Investment in Government Treansry Bonds SEI3NI43015 533N 143.015 126,966,574 1702 R10,6TH 33,770,304, 463
Securitien Porchasy under Remle Apesmeni LIST 988494 1158007, 753 1,158,047,752 c ,
Armsamd Diue fromn Reluted Entried - 3 b *
Trade aned Ciler Receivahles 160,704, 008 L6650, THd 608 L A60, 764,608 » »
m EMII“i il%ﬂ-ﬂ Hell iilﬁﬂ M
Linbilitles
Securdie Sold undér Repurchase Agreements ITIIGSGK180 3 SA0ITHGS] A8.550,979,651 - -
Shor Term Loan 475,234,603 ATHIAL, G0 ATH NGO - -
Commercial Papers 25415604 116,403 694 116,493,694 - -
Trada and Other Pryabdes 3912, 195,041 3008, 195,041 LR IPAL R - i
Lease Liability 11501 129,580, 357 10423074 5113455 16,943,779
TP 2T S V€T S ¥ TE X T ST
Comtraciual cash
Axat 31 March 2023 Totsl carrying it
ameunt Tuotal 12 mosibs or leis 1-2years 2.9 Years
Towertiment i Government Tressury Bills U324 840,775 0471985265 9,971 985263 - -
Invetment & Government Treasury Honds 28IXTHIZETY 3118365504 153,000 713,624 62% 2040458277
Securifics Puschary under Resale Apiesments AT Rr0607 ariaxesnT 112 E20.607 - =
Placentent with Fask | Terms Deposiie) RLEER LI i) AG3 A0 422 403 505 422 - -
Amoant Dhee from Related Fntities 1006563 1,50 56:2 2,006,562 e
Timibe prick Oeheer Roceivabies 1 URAYT. 11 1,908 4097 720 1,90 407, T3k - -
ADITAEIIGET 45777490468 ;;ﬁw 'i'J'?.ESE Hi‘!IiElimli "‘ﬁi IEIISHE
Secamitics Sodd under Repurihase Agreetienty MWRIILRIATE A0 261RTRIOG 30,261 575006
Short Tenn Loan 335000000 335,004, (i) 135 000,000 - 5
Commercanl Papers 1728835524 1045013363 1545003 362
Traufe wod Cithier Payahley 1933500 660 | A% 00 560 1533, 500,044 ,
Lease Lishifiny m.mm 151412805 AT 51 #p0 104,058,585 .
078700218 34,676 804 047 34,520 145,957 [T .
COMPANY
Coniraziunl cash
As at M March 2024 Tutal carrying Mrws
amoant Tatad 12 bl o biss 12 years 2.9 Yeanu
Al
Trade and Other Recervables 19,350,162 19,330,162 19,330,163 -
Amourds Boc from Relaied Enbibes 14,733,601 144,733.001 B, THA 61 -
164,063,553 Iﬂ% U4, D413 855
Limbilities
Commercisl Fapen - - . s
Trudle oal Other Payables 35,649,514 AS640504 A5,649304 -
Amoum Due 1o Related Tooces 375,501 Jaresal 3,379,501 -
J-!a.!l,ll.! 30028815 39028815
Contructual cosh
As a1 31 Mareh 3023 Total carrying faws
amatin Tonal 12 months or less 12 years 1-9Year
Assets
Trade wn Other Receivables L1874 200 H1 757 230 119757334 - =
Amounis Due from Relwed Enifies TR 130,084 T 30,454 70,130,964 s
Lo v in Relstod Compairy 123, LA HSG 10T 140 808 LR 4380 a
1. 213,032 040 1213832 041 1.2 3062040 *
Liakilities
Shan Tenn Loan 1205 DR DY §a ey, oy 125,000,000 - *
Commercial Papens 1 GRS GRS 1700076, TS LTI 076,763
Tiade wind Orher Paysbles 926621 JH621 Joeaeedl
Amoumi Dus 1o Rilaied Eniiiss 5,600,100 500,190 FMOL0
19RO 455 1,065,603 474 15,603, 574 *

1 s mod excpected Hhan e cash Mows included in he maturity analysis could occar sigmificustiy st of ol signsficantly differsnt ansnt
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Vmubibseid Dnink facilities
At 30 Waeh 2004 vhe Company huad appreyed untilised bank facilities amousting b B 825 Mo (1023; Ra, B35 Mnd,
36N Credin vink
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30,30 Enprne to eredi rnk
The carrying améunt of fasncial assets represents the mdmumn credit exposure. The munsmy expowre (o crodit reek 3 the roparfisg dale bssed on (he coneontation of the ride by

WECHT Wi
GROUP
Flmanck Flosndal Financial
Carh and Cash Assein i Assels eagi e
- and (her
Az g 3™ March 1034 Eauival red Bl wentured & :::n-:dll g
FVTIFL FYOCl f_l'm'd
R R, B, (119 Ra,
Trovermcng - AR TRA2I - LIET.BRR 404 -
Corpate - 2000853193 - - ]
e __ Li368%0.360 3 : - LesiTensw
Total o 13 TO0 A Gl HND R0 - 1,157 985 494 1660, THAHER
Ax wi 317 March 2023
Chavernment - ITHTTETL ST H THHIE 29
e . 235,066,135 TA4D2 020 . -
Onher ASRIRLIEL - = - LOUR, 1T 72
Tutal ASEIRLIE] 31007840487 PALERH T%l!.m ||-|m AT TG
COMPANY g
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Financial Fimpngial \ Trade
As ot 31" March 164 _ f‘.:;;-:ll e i """':1 o meaared i aad Ohbier
FVTPL FVOCT h:u:iﬁ Receivahiles
Rs. Rs, s, its, Ke,
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364 Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect 103 grising from g wide variely of causes associoted with the Group®s
invalvement with financial instrumenis, including processes, personnel, lechnology and infrastructure, and from
external factors other than credit, market and liguidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory
requirements and gengrally aceepted standards of corporate behavior
The Group’s objective is to manage operational risk so as Lo balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to
the business reputation with overall cost effceliveness and to avoid control procedures thal restrict initiative and
creativity
The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned
to senior management within cach business unit. This responsibility 1s supported by the development of overall Group's
stamdards for the management of operational risk in the following arcas:
- Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization of trinsactions.
- Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of the transaction.
- Comphiance with regulatory and other legal requirements.
- Documentation of controls and procedures.
- Development of business contingency plans,
= Training and professional development
- Ethical and business standards.
- Ieisk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.
Compliance with Group®s internal controls and procedures is supported by a programme of periodie reviews

underiaken by intemal audit. The results of mternal audit reviews are discussed with the management of the business
units with summaries submitted w the Audit Commities,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 0 MARCH 2024

3T CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The palicy of the Company dod the Clroup ba 16 netain & Mrong capieal hase e 56 b taaistain ivelorn, coadin & market confidence nd t suitaln fituie develigumenl of
thie buzimess. Cagital comasts of stated caprtal, reserves und rotaimed carmngs. The Roard of Dhineceosy momiors the rerarn sn capstnl, pearing mivo, dividend payvsomr e
sedinary aharcholdern
Thia ganiing imtio sl the ngpacting dace Ts aa fallovw
GROLE COMPARY
04 023 024 023
Asoat 2t March Hao Rs. B, Ri
Entgreat bearing birmuming 37514025387 3LENT.I25500 - §AGH 32 pER
=1 Cimshy i Coay Expnivafemta (1036 B 360) (438.3E1.281) (11309, 045) (43412 56T)
36, 777,335.027 31,430 344 522 i1 399 645) L1122
Eiguity 10,508, 188, 9065 684819509 LHIRAL0),TET SEA1TAM
Cianring ratia (E.4 a5 - m
I FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

M1 FATR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Avcounting classifrcation and falr value of finencial lnstrumenn
Fimancisl tnatnemests resieed sibseguenitly in the myourg tasis gither st far valee of smorhizol cod, The v ool gl g palicies desorihes how the

elasses of fimanciol instruments are memsmed, und how income and expenscs; mclading fine valuae game snd ldacs, are recogriised
Thee gt enepsures. lier values wsing tse Followang fr subue Wecinchy thas reflects the significence of inpues ussd in masking the menaurcment

favel - 1

Finaneisl instnanents that are measured im whole o in pait by reference 1o pubilishes) quested m an active make, A frrmcial westrumont is reganded o guoted in an active
marker i quosed prices ane readily and repularly avallabby o an exchaige sl tlione prices represent sciual and regulody ocomming marke) ansastians on an ann’s
Fengah hraun.

el - 2
Financisl instraments that sne mesnsred ot fair value on s cecunming bas As murket quotes gererally s mit ceanbly avaslalds o accosabile for these pamees, ther far
ville measures are determened usmg relevart information pencrmed by marka traneactions involving comparable seourities,

Level =8
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLOINGS LIMITED
TWINTES 100 THE FINANG IAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
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CAPITAL ALLIANTE HODENGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31" MARCIE 2024
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11.3 ANNEXURE 3 - Interim Financial Statements for the period ended 31st December 2024

O cAL

CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGSLIMITED
CONSOLIDTED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
31ST DECEMBER 2024
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGSLIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT ORLOSSAND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED,

Income

Interest Income

Interest Expense

Net Interest Income/ (Expense)
Fee Based Income

Net Gainsfrom Trading

Net Fair Value Gaing/ (Losses) from Financial Assetsat FVTPL

Direct Expenses

Other Income

Total Operating Income

Personnel Expenses

Depreciation & Amortization

Other Operating Expenses

Reversals of Impairment of Subsidiaries
Operating Profit

Share of Profit from Equity accounted Investee (Net of Tax)
Profit Before Income Tax

Income Tax (Expense)/ Reversal

Profit for the period

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-Controlling Interests

Profit for the period

Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) - Before Split
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) - After Split

Figuresin brackets indicate deductions.

Note

9.1

9.2

10

11

12.1

13

13

GROUP COMPANY
31st Dec 2024 31st Mar 2024 31st Dec 2024 31st Mar 2024
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

(9 Months) (12 Months) (9 Months) (12 Months)
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
13,288,426,518 33,049,264,571 4,857,318,495 2,291,999,162

6,793,114,270 10,741,758,453 12,908 76,988,878
(4,271,003,227) (6,759,307,512) (24,877,369) (176,518,025)

2,522,111,043 3,982,450,941 (24,864,461) (99,529,147)

1,928,711,983 2,291,380,619 6,227,359 3,913,143

4,920,972,001 19,060,617,107 64,959,474 19,512,068

(414,535,842) 882,129,474 7,452,395 9,021,051
(40,731,905) (68,752,133) - -

60,164,106 73,378,918 4,778,666,359 2,182,564,022

8,976,691,386 26,221,204,926 4,832,441,126 2,115,481,137

(1,216,417,394) (3,579,266,059) (43,374,923) (53,515,849)

(77,398,169) (103,487,344) (3,055,508) (7,147,301)

(1,754,917,253) (1,845,627,578) (7,757,182) (123,024,964)

- - 24,041,587 3,914,626
5,927,958,570 20,692,823,945 4,802,295,100 1,935,707,649

- 21,070,301 - -
5,927,958,570 20,713,894,246 4,802,295,100 1,935,707,649

(1,984,355,876) (6,622,920,742) 1,665,488 864,576

3,943,602,694 14,090,973,504 4,803,960,588 1,936,572,225

3,404,437,546 11,337,769,357 4,803,960,588 1,936,572,225
539,165,148 2,753,204,147 - -
3,943,602,694 14,090,973,504 4,803,960,588 1,936,572,225
26.67 103.97 37.64 17.76
1.78 251
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGSLIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSSAND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED,
GROUP COMPANY
31st Dec 2024 31st Mar 2024 31st Dec 2024 31st Mar 2024
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

(9 Months) (12 Months) (9 Months) (12 Months)

(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Profit for the period 3,943,602,694 14,090,973,504 4,803,960,588 1,936,572,225
Other Comprehensive Expense
Itemsthat are or may be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Foreign currency translation differences of foreign operations (155,325,182) (201,223,460) - -
Itemsthat will not bereclassified to Profit or Loss
Defined Benefit Plan - Actuarial Losses - (21,246,305) - (3,462,159)
Deferred Tax on Actuarial Losses - 6,051,625 - 1,038,648
Share of other comprehensive income from equity accounted ) (314,812) ) )
investees (net of tax)
Other Comprehensive Expense for the period (155,325,182) (216,732,952) - (2,423,511)
Total Comprehensive Incomefor the period 3,788,277,512 13,874,240,552 4,803,960,588 1,934,148,714
Total Comprehensive Income attributableto:
Owners of the Company 3,310,835,154 11,195,271,631 4,803,960,588 1,934,148,714
Non-Controlling Interests 477,442,358 2,678,968,921 - -
Total Comprehensive Incomefor the period 3,788,277,512 13,874,240,552 4,803,960,588 1,934,148,714

Figuresin brackets indicate deductions.
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGSLIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ASAT

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL
Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost
Trade and Other Receivables
Amounts Due from Related Entities
Investment in Subsidiaries
Intangible Assets

Right-of-use Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Deferred Tax Assets

Income Tax Receivable

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Liabilities

Bank Overdrafts

Financia Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost
Trade and Other Payables

Income Tax Payable

Amounts Due to Related Entities

Lease Liability

Deferred Tax Liability

Retirement Benefit Obligations

Total Liabilities

Equity

Stated Capital

Specia Risk Reserve

Retained Earnings

Foreign Currency Trandation Reserve

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-Controlling Interests
Total Equity
Total Liabilitiesand Equity

Net Assets Value per Share (Rs.) - Before Split

Net Assets Value Per Share (Rs.) - After Share Split

Director

24th January 2025
Colombo

GROUP COMPANY
2024 2024 2024 2024
31-Dec 31-Mar 31-Dec 31-Mar
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
516,088,431 1,136,890,360 5,485,700 11,399,645
103,350,215,615 60,881,033,014 1,007,375,117 473,366,448
5,482,309,287 1,157,988,494 - -
4,482,184,004 2,975,864,325 2,598,081,990 76,093,412
- - 177,200,939 144,733,691
- - 2,293,328,689 2,269,287,082
152,590,365 149,708,614 2,396,592 3,787,829
60,047,128 102,801,321 - -
132,817,513 140,845,836 322,736 1,987,009
53,403,367 45,622,443 6,441,193 4,775,705
12,697,790 - 9,656,037 9,656,037
114,242,353,500 66,590,754,407 6,100,288,993 2,995,086,858
909,377,040 - 33,872,168 -
88,163,260,344 37,914,225,387 327,344,808 -
2,769,245,108 3,912,195,041 19,358,163 35,649,314
1,838,702,835 4,992,449,148 - -
- - - 3,379,501
70,338,511 115,012,852 - -
- 180,298 - -
161,241,952 148,402,712 19,339,067 17,456,276
93,912,165,791 47,082,465,438 399,914,206 56,485,091
2,532,798,096 2,532,798,096 2,532,798,096 2,532,798,096
2,696,078,924 2,316,818,030 - -
12,795,512,111 11,808,827,473 3,167,576,691 405,803,671
(161,108,890) (67,506,497) - -
17,863,280,241 16,590,937,102 5,700,374,787 2,938,601,767
2,466,907,468 2,917,351,867 - -
20,330,187,709 19,508,288,969 5,700,374,787 2,938,601,767
114,242,353,500 66,590,754,407 6,100,288,993 2,995,086,858
139.95 129.99 44.66 23.02
9.33 - 2.98 -
Syd.
Director
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGSLIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED,

GROUP
Attributable to owners of the Company
Forergn Non- Total
Stated Fair Value C‘J”e"‘?y Special Risk Retained Total Controlling Equity
Translation
Capital Reserve reserve Reserve Earnings Interests
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance asat 01% April 2023 223,231,471 20,033,695 61,298,454 927,499,681 3,962,188,781 5,194,252,082 1,650,567,446 6,844,819,528
Sharesissued during the year 2,309,566,625 - - - - 2,309,566,625 - 2,309,566,625
Disposal of equity accounted Investee during the year - (15,391,863) - - (31,725,380) (47,117,243) - (47,117,243)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - - - 11,337,769,357 11,337,769,357 2,753,204,147 14,090,973,504
Other comprehensive Income for the year - (314,812)  (128,804,951) - (13,377,963) (142,497,726) (74,235,226) (216,732,952)
Total comprehensive Income - (314,812) _ (128,804,951) - 11,324,391,394 11,195,271,631 2,678,968,921 13,874,240,552
Transferred To the Special Risk Reserve - - - 1,389,318,349  (1,389,318,349) - - -
Reclassification of Fair Value Reserve - (4,327,020) - - 4,327,020 - - -
Dividend paid during the year - - - - (1,850,731,034) (1,850,731,034) (506,887,187) (2,357,618,221)

Transactions with Equity Holders
Adjustment due to changes in Holding - - - - (210,304,959) (210,304,959) 210,304,959 -
- - (1,312,585,481) (1,312,585,481)

Investment in Subsidiary

Issues of Shares (Pending Allotment) - - 196,983,208 196,983,208
Total transactions with owners of the Company - - - - (210,304,959) (210,304,959) (905,297,314) (1,115,602,273)
Balance asat 31% March 2024 2,532,798,096 - (67,506,497) 2,316,818,030  11,808,827,473 16,590,937,102 2,917,351,867 19,508,288,969
Balanceasat 01% April 2024 2,532,798,096 - (67,506,497) 2,316,818,030  11,808,827,473 16,590,937,102 2,917,351,867 19,508,288,969
Total comprehensiveincome for the period

Profit for the period - - - - 3,404,437,546 3,404,437,546 539,165,148 3,943,602,694
Other comprehensive Income for the period - - (93,602,393) - - (93,602,392) (61,722,790) (155,325,182)
Total comprehensive ncome - - (93,602,393) N 3,404,437,546 3,310,835,154 477,442,358 3,788,277,512
Transferred To the Special Risk Reserve - - - 379,260,894 (379,260,894) - - -
Dividend paid during the period - - - - (2,042,187,568) (2,042,187,568) (924,191,203) (2,966,378,771)
Transactionswith Equity Holders

Adjustment due to changes in Holding N - N - 3,695,554 3,695,554 (3,695,554) -
Total transactions with owners of the Company - - - - 3,695,554 3,695,554 (3,695,554) -
Balanceasat 31st December 2024 2,532,798,096 - (161,108,890 2,696,078,924  12,795,512,111 17,863,280,241 2,466,907,468 20,330,187,709

Figuresin brackets indicate deductions.
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGSLIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED,

COMPANY

Balance as at 01% April 2023

Shares issued during the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive Expenses for the year

Total Comprehensive Income
Reclassification of Fair Value Reserve

Dividend Paid during the year
Balance as at 31st March 2024

Balance asat 01% April 2024

Total comprehensiveincomefor the period
Profit for the period

Other comprehensive Income for the period
Total Comprehensive Income

Dividend Paid during the period

Balance as at 31st December 2024

Figuresin brackets indicate deductions.

Stated Fair Value Retained Total
Capital Reserve Earnings
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

223,231,471 4,327,020 318,058,971 545,617,462
2,309,566,625 - - 2,309,566,625
- - 1,936,572,225 1,936,572,225
- - (2,423,511) (2,423,511)
- - 1,934,148,714 1,934,148,714

- (4,327,020) 4,327,020 -
(1,850,731,034) (1,850,731,034)
2,532,798,096 - 405,803,671 2,938,601,767
2,532,798,096 - 405,803,671 2,938,601,767
- - 4,803,960,588 4,803,960,588
- - 4,803,960,588 4,803,960,588
(2,042,187,568) (2,042,187,568)
2,532,798,096 - 3,167,576,691 5,700,374,787
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW GROUP COMPANY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st Dec 2024 31st Mar 2024 31st Dec 2024 31st Mar 2024
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
(9 Months) (12 Months) (9 Months) (12 Months)

(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before Income Tax Expense 5,927,958,570 20,713,894,246 4,802,295,100 1,935,707,649
Adjustments For,
Depreciation of Property Plant & Equipment 36,538,593 42,760,936 1,664,272 4,830,451
Amortization of Intangible Assets 6,632,049 12,148,195 1,391,236 2,316,850
Provision for Retiring Gratuity 18,064,867 34,507,409 1,195,292 3,072,932
(Gain)/ Loss on Disposals of Property Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets (19,526,000) 4,896,303 (19,500,000) 502,337
Disposal Loss on Sale of Subsidiary Shares - - - 49,205,312
Disposal Gain on Sale of Associate - - - (47,434,000)
Share of profit of equity accounted investee (net of tax) - (21,072,246) - -
Impairment of Investment in Subsidiaries - - (24,041,587) (3,914,626)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables 648,119 12,758,179 2,871,374 (467,296)
Write off Investment in Unquoted Shares - 7,402,021 - 7,402,021
Provision for Investment in Unquoted Shares - 20,872,440 - 20,872,440
Depreciation of ROU Assets 34,227,527 48,578,212 - -
Finance Cost on ROU Assets 5,562,056 11,349,707 - -
Net Fair Value (Gains)/Losses from Financial Assets at FVTPL 414,535,842 (882,129,474) (7,452,395) (9,021,051)
Net Capital (Gain)/ Losses on sale Investment in Shares 8,101,953 8,987,090 (8,915,098) (263,868)
Net Capital Gains on Investment in Unit Trusts (231,719,036) (58,943,785) (56,044,376) (19,248,200)
Net Capital Gains on Treasury Bills, and Bonds (4,697,354,918) (19,010,660,412) - -
Dividend Income (35,898,631) (21,296,934) (4,758,409,084) (2,181,988,248)
Interest Income (6,793,114,270)  (10,741,758,453) (12,908) (76,988,878)
Interest Expense 4,265,441,171 6,747,957,805 24,877,369 176,518,025
Operating L oss before Changesin Operating Activities (1,059,902,108) (3,069,748,761) (40,080,805) (138,898,150)
(Increase) / Decrease in Securities Purchase under Resale Agreements (4,316,740,287) (643,071,732) - -
(Increase) / Decrease in Government securities measured at FVTPL (36,917,949,200) (1,170,065,235) - -
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (1,506,967,798) (812,929,433) (2,524,859,952) 125,522,159
(Increase) / Decrease in Amounts Due from Related Entities - 2,006,562 (32,454,340) (74,602,707)
Increase / (Decrease) in Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements 41,735,494,753 7,386,675,801 - -
Increase / (Decrease) in Amounts Due to Related Entities - - (3,379,501) (95,220,689)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables (1,142,262,432) 1,978,694,372 (15,603,650) 4,722,693

(3,208,327,072) 3,671,561,574 (2,616,378,248) (178,476,694)
Tax Pad (5,159,175,018) (2,534,075,531) - -
Gratuity Paid (5,913,125) (12,015,500) - -
Net cash Generated from /(Used in) Operating Activities (8,373,415,215) 1,125,470,543 (2,616,378,248) (178,476,694)

CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Investment in Shares 212,774,565 (1,095,383,289) 45,393,785 (96,467,408)
Loan given to related party - - - 1,023,143,836
Proceeds from Disposal of Associate - 107,434,000 - 107,434,000
Investment in Subsidiaries - (1,115,602,273) (20) (1,312,585,481)
Sale Proceeds from Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment 19,526,000 - 19,500,000 -

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment (34,127,244) (103,250,834) - (358,000)
Acquisition of Software (14,066,192) (14,833,280) - (1,386,283)
Proceeds from Disposal of Subsidiary - - - 27,906,215
Investment in Financial Assets Measured at FVOCI - (20,872,440) - (20,872,440)
Net Investment in withdrawal of Placement with Banks - 261,718,267 - -

Net (Investment)/ Redemption in Unit Trust Funds (629,504,317) (765,476,051) (506,990,585) (319,120,501)
Dividend Received 35,898,631 21,296,934 4,758,409,084 2,181,988,248
Interest Income Received 6,157,466,274 10,741,758,453 - 76,988,878
Net cash Generated from Investing Activities 5,747,967,717 8,016,789,487 4,316,312,264 1,666,671,064

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Issue /(settlement) of Commercial Papers 5,000,000,000 (1,697,209,787) - (1,683,524,688)
Net issug/ (settlement) of Term Loans 3,300,000,000 140,000,000 325,000,000 (125,000,000)
Interest Paid (4,051,900,967) (6,560,924,335) (22,532,561) (176,518,025)
Lease rental Paid (40,239,824) (57,235,986) - -

Shares | ssued - 2,309,566,625 - 2,309,566,625
Dividend Paid (2,966,378,771) (2,357,618,221) (2,042,187,568) (1,850,731,034)
Net cash Generated from / (Used in) Financing Activities 1,241,480,438 (8,223,421,704) (1,739,720,129) (1,526,207,122)
Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (1,383,967,060) 918,838,326 (39,786,113) (38,012,752)
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,136,890,360 458,381,381 11,399,645 49,412,397
Effect of movement in exchangerates (146,211,909) (240,329,347) - -

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the period (393,288,609) 1,136,890,360 (28,386,468) 11,399,645

Figuresin brackets indicate deductions.
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CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGSLIMITED

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2024

1. REPORTING ENTITY

The Capita Alliance Holdings Limited is a Limited Liability Company incorporated and domiciled in Sri
Lanka under the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. The Registered Office of the Company is situated at L evel
-5, "Millennium House", No. 46/58, Nawam Mawatha, Colombo 2 where the principal businessis carried
out.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Capital Alliance Holdings Limited for the period ended 31
December 2024 comprises those of the Company (Parent company), its Subsidiaries (together referred to
asthe ‘Group’).

1.1. Date of incorporation and commencement of commercial operations

The Company wasincorporated on 25" March 2003 and commenced its commercia operations on 7 April
2003.

2. Principal activitiesand nature of operations

2.1.1. Theprincipal activities of the Company

The Principal Activities of the Company continued to be engaging in investment activities and management
of subsidiaries.

2.1.2. Theprincipal activities of subsidiaries are as follows;

Name of the Subsidiary/Joint Venture Principal Activities

Capital Alliance PLC (Formerly Capital Alliance | The Principal Activities of the Capital Alliance

Limited) PLC are dedling in Government Securities and
corporate debt securities.

Capita Alliance Partners Limited The Principal Activities of the Capital Alliance
Partners Limited are dealing in Corporate
Finance and fee-based activities.

Capital Alliance Securities (Pvt) Limited The Principal Activity of the Capital Alliance
Securities (Pvt) Limited is Stock Brokering.

Capita Alliance Investments Limited The Principal Activities of the Capital Alliance

Investments Limited are managing Unit Trust
Funds and Private Wealth Management.

Finnovation (Pvt) Limited The Principal Activity of the Finnovation (Pvt)
Limited is providing IT services to Related
Companies.

FipBox (Pvt) Limited The Principal Activity of the FipBox (Pvt) Ltd is

to promote digitalized transactions for
investment related products.

CAL Investment Consultancy FZ LLC (Formerly | The Principal Activity of the Company is

CAL Investment Holdings Limited) investment holding and investment consultancy.

CAL Bangladesh Limited The Principa Activity of the Company is
provision of Consultancy services.

CAL Securities Limited The Principal Activity of the Company is Stock
Brokering.

CAL Investments Limited The Principal Activity of the Company is full-

fledged Marchant bank activities.
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2.2 Principal activitiesand nature of operations (Contd...)

221 Theprincipal activities of the Company (Contd...)
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Fixed Income Investment | (Private) Limited The Principa Activity of the Company is
investment holding.

Fixed Income Investment |1 (Private) Limited The Principad Activity of the Company is
investment holding.

Fixed Income Investment |11 (Private) Limited The Principa Activity of the Company is

investment holding.

Fixed Income Investment V (Private) Limited | The Principa Activity of the Company is
(Formerly CAL Property Fund (Private) Limited) investment holding.

3. BASISOF PREPARATION

These interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with LKAS 34 “Interim Financia
Reporting”. They do not include al the information required for a complete set of SLFRS/LKAS financial
statements. However, selected explanatory notes are included to explain the events and transactions that are
significant to an understanding of the changes in the Group and Company’s financial positions and
performances since the last annual financial statements as at and for the year ended 31% March 2024.

The significant judgments made by management in applying the Group’s accounting policies and the key
sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as those applied to the audited financial statementsfor the
year ended 31st March 2024.

4. Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (the Functiona Currency), which isthe Sri Lankan Rupees.

The financial statements of the Group are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (LKR) which is the functional
currency of the Group entities other than for the companies listed below where the functional currency is
either based on the country of incorporation of the respective Company or elements that could influencein
determining its functional currency.

Company Country of Incorporation Functional Currency

CAL Investment Consultancy FZ LLC

(Formerly CAL Investment Holdings United Arab Emirates (UAE) UsD
Limited)

CAL Bangladesh Limited Bangladesh BDT
CAL Securities Limited Bangladesh BDT

CAL Investments Limited Bangladesh BDT
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9.2

INCOME

Interest Income (Note 6)

Fee Based Income (Note 8)

Net Gains From Trading (Note 9.1)

Net Gain/(Loss) From Financial Assetsat FVTPL ( Note 9.2)
Other Income (Note 11)

INTEREST INCOME

Financial Assets measured at FVTPL
Interest on Treasury Bills
Interest on Treasury Bonds

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost

Interest on Securities Purchased under Resale Agreements
Interest on Related Party Loans

Interest on Deposits with Banks

Interest Income on Loans to Corporates

Interest income on credit extended to clients and early settlements

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest on Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements
Interest expense from Bank loans

Interest on Commercia Papers

Finance Cost- Lease

Bank Charges - Overdraft

FEE BASED INCOME

Placement Fee Income
Management Fee

Other Fee Based Income
Brokerage Fee

Consultancy & Advisory Fee

GAINS AND LOSSES ARISE FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS

Net Gains From Trading

Net Capital Gain on Treasury Bills

Net Capital Gain on Treasury Bonds

Net Capital Gain on Investment in Unit Trusts

Net Capital Gain/(Loss) on sale Investment in Shares

Net Gain/ (Loss) From Financial Assetsat FVTPL

Remeasurement Gain/(Loss) on Government Securities
Remeasurement Gain/ (Loss) on Shares
Remeasurement Gain on Unit Trusts

GROUP COMPANY
31st Dec 2024 31st Mar 2024 31st Dec 2024 31st Mar 2024
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
(9 Months) (12 Months) (9 Months) (12 Months)
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
6,793,114,270  10,741,758,453 12,908 76,988,878
1,928,711,983 2,291,380,619 6,227,359 3,913,143
4,920,972,001  19,060,617,107 64,959,474 19,512,068
(414,535,842) 882,129,474 7,452,395 9,021,051
60,164,106 73,378,918 4,778,666,359  2,182,564,022
13,288,426,518  33,049,264,571 4,857,318,495  2,291,999,162
832,429,728 1,242,672,969 - -
5,495,575,342 9,180,310,714 - -
6,328,005,070  10,422,983,683 - -
275,491,147 84,240,007 - 23,078,246
- - 12,908 53,738,029
16,949,518 26,763,410 - -

- 172,603 - 172,603
172,668,535 207,598,750 - -
465,109,200 318,774,770 12,908 76,988,878

6,793,114,270  10,741,758,453 12,908 76,988,878
4,027,519,492 6,469,811,101 - -
165,922,174 81,217,173 22,801,297 36,012,440
51,360,880 183,798,867 - 130,729,936
5,562,056 11,349,707 - -
20,638,625 13,130,664 2,076,072 9,775,649
4,271,003,227 6,759,307,512 24,877,369 176,518,025
158,022,641 171,435,452 1,864,309 750,000
1,066,023,571 1,496,135,062 - -
49,322,666 53,936,251 4,363,050 -
557,967,906 510,032,966 - -
97,375,199 59,840,888 - 3,163,143
1,928,711,983 2,291,380,619 6,227,359 3,913,143
21,189,915 228,094,739 - -
4,676,165,003  18,782,565,673 - -
231,719,036 58,943,785 56,044,376 19,248,200
(8,101,953) (8,987,090) 8,915,098 263,868
4,920,972,001  19,060,617,107 64,959,474 19,512,068
(710,710,351) 936,779,822 - -
274,713,732 (63,017,421) (2,234,790) 3,700,795
21,460,777 8,367,073 9,687,185 5,320,256
(414,535,842) 882,129,474 7,452,395 9,021,051
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FOR THE PERIOD ENDED, 31st Dec 2024 31st Mar 2024 31st Dec 2024 31st Mar 2024
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
(9 Months) (12 Months) (9 Months) (12 Months)
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
10 DIRECT EXPENSES
Brokerage Commission 28,729,282 33,074,086 - -
Other Direct Expenses 12,002,623 35,678,047 - -
40,731,905 68,752,133 - -
11 OTHERINCOME
Dividend Income 35,898,631 21,296,934 4,758,409,084 2,181,988,248
Interest income - Staff Loans 791,896 1,861,932 626,623 1,790,189
Sundry Income 3,947,579 7,682,355 130,652 1,059,234
Disposal Gain on Sale of Associate - 47,434,000 - 47,434,000
Disposal Loss on Sale of Subsidiary - - - (49,205,312)
Gain/ (L disposal of Property Plant and Equi t and Intangibl
a'”/s( 0ss) on disposal of Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible 19,526,000 (4,896,303) 19,500,000 (502,337)
60,164,106 73,378,918 4,778,666,359 2,182,564,022
12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/ (REVERSAL)
GROUP COMPANY
121 Incometax recognised in Profit or Loss 31st Dec 2024 31st Mar 2024 31st Dec 2024 31st Mar 2024
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
(9 Months) (12 Months) (9 Months) (12 Months)
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Current Taxation 1,991,250,616 6,655,262,806 - -
Over provision - (17,719,009) - -
1,991,250,616 6,637,543,797 - -
Deferred Tax Reversal
Reversal of Deferred Taxation (6,894,740) (14,623,055) (1,665,488) (864,576)
(6,894,740) (14,623,055) (1,665,488) (864,576)
Total Income Tax Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss 1,984,355,876 6,622,920,742 (1,665,488) (864,576)
12.2  Amount Recognised in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial Loss Arising from Retirement Benefit Obligations - (21,246,305) - (3,462,159)
Deferred Tax on Actuarial Loss - 6,051,625 - 1,038,648
- (15,194,680) - (2,423,511)
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13

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Earnings Per Share is computed on the profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company divided by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding.

GROUP COMPANY
31st Dec 2024 31st Mar 2024 31st Dec 2024 31st Mar 2024
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

(9 Months) (12 Months) (9 Months) (12 Months)

(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Profit attributable to Equity Holders of the Company 3,404,437,546 11,337,769,357 4,803,960,588 1,936,572,225
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares 127,636,623 109,045,753 127,636,623 109,045,753
Basic Earnings per share - (Rs.) - Before Split 26.67 103.97 37.64 17.76
Basic Earnings per share - (Rs.) - After Split 1.78 N/A 251 N/A

Total number of shares outstanding as at 31st December 2024 - (Before the share split) - 127,636,623 (31st March 2024 - 127,636,623).
Total number of Shares outstanding as at 31st December 2024 after the share split was 1,914,549,345.

The approval received to the sub division of the Company's shares to 15 new shares for each shares outstanding. The share split was done on
23rd December 2024. The Audited figures for the year ended 31st March 2024 have not been re-stated.

13.1 Diluted Earnings Per Share

There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at anytime during the year, hence diluted earnings per shareis equal to the Basic
Earnings Per Share.
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MANAGERS TO THE OFFER

COMPANY

REGISTRARS TO THE OFFER

Capital Alliance Partners Limited
Level 2, “Millennium House”,
46/58, Nawam Mawatha,
Colombo 02

Tel: +94 11 2317777

Fax:+94 11 2317788

Capital Alliance Holdings Limited
Level 2, “Millennium House”,
46/58, Nawam Mawatha,

S S P Corporate Services (Private)
Limited
101, Inner Flower Road,

Colombo 02

Tel: +94 11 2317777
Fax:+94 11 2317788

Colombo 03.
Tel: +94 11 257 3894
Fax: +94 11 257 3609

TRADING PARTICIPANTS OF THE COLOMBO STOCK EXCHANGE

NDB Securities (Private) Ltd.
Level 2, NDB Capital Building,

Tel: +94 11 2 131 000
Fax: +94 11 2314 181
E-mail: mail@ndbs.lk

No. 135, Bauddhaloka Mawatha, Colombo 4.

Somerville Stockbrokers (Pvt) Ltd.

No. 470/95,1/7, Bauddhaloka Mawatha,
Colombo 7.

Tel: +94 11 2 502 858 / +94 .12 502 862
Fax: +94 11 2 502 852

E-mail: contact@somerville.lk

ACS Capital (Pvt) Ltd

No. 44, Guildford Crescent,
Colombo 07.

Tel: +94 11 7898302
E-mail - info@acscapital.lk

John Keells Stock Brokers (Pvt) Ltd.
No. 186, Vauxhall Street, Colombo 2.
Tel: +94 11 2 306 250

Fax:+94 11 2 342 068

E-mail: jkstock@keells.com

Asha Securities Limited.
No.60, 5th Lane, Colombo 3.
Tel: +94 11 2429100
Fax:+94 112429199

E-mail: asl@ashasecurities.net

HNB Stockbrokers (Pvt) Ltd.

No. 53, Dharmapala Mawatha, Colombo 03.
Tel: +94 11 2 206 206

Fax:+94 112206298 /9

E-mail: sales@hnbstockbrokers.lk

J B Securities (Pvt) Ltd.
No. 150, St. Joseph Street,
Colombo 14.

Tel: +94 11 2 490 900
Fax:+94 11 2430070
E-mail: jos@jb.lk

Lanka Securities (Pvt) Ltd

3rd Floor,” M2M Veranda Offices”,

No.34, WA.D. Ramanayeke Mawatha, Colombo 2
Tel: +94 114706 757 / 494 11 2 554 942
Fax:+94 114706 767

E-mail: info@lankasec.com

Asia Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

4th Floor, Lee Hedges Tower,
No. 349, Galle Road, Colombo 3
Tel: +94 11 7 722 000

Fax:+94 11 258 4864

E-mail: inquiries@asiasecurities.lk

Capital Trust Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

No, 42, Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha,
Colombo 3.

Tel: +94 112174174/ +94 11 2174175
Fax:+94 112174173

E-mail: inquiries@capitaltrust.lk
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S CSecurities (Pvt) Ltd.

5th Floor, No. 268, Alwis Place, Colombo 3.
Tel: 494114711000/ 4+94 114711 001
Fax: +94 11 2 394 405

E-mail: itdivision@sampathsecurities.lk

CT CLSA Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

4-14, Majestic City, 10, Station Road, Colombo-4.
Tel: 494 11 2552 290-4

Fax:+94 11 2 552 289

E-mail: info@ctclsa.lk

Capital Alliance Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

Level 2, "Millennium House”, 46/58 Nawam Mawatha,
Colombo 2.

Tel: 494112317777

Fax:+94 1123177 88

E-mail: info@cal.lk

Richard Pieris Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

No.310, High Level Road, Nawinna, Maharagama Tel:
+94 11431 0500

Fax:+94 11 280 2385

Email: communication@rpsecurities.com

First Guardian Equities (Pvt) Ltd.

32nd Floor, East Tower, World Trade Centre,
Colombo 1.

Tel: +94 11 5 884 400 (Hunting)

Fax:+94 11 5 884 401

E-mail: info@fge.lk

Enterprise Ceylon Capital (Private) Limited.

2nd Floor-4B, Liberty Plaza, 250, R. A. De Mel Mawatha,
Colombo 3

Tel: 494 11 244 5644, 11 230 1861/2

Fax: -

E-mailinfo@ecc.lk

LOLC Securities Limited

No. 481, T.B.Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10.
Tel: +94 11 588 9889

Fax: +94 11 266 2883

E-Mail: info@lolcsecurities.com

Softlogic Stockbrokers (Pvt) Ltd

Level 16, One Galle Face Tower, Colombo 02.
Tel: +94 11 7 277 000

Fax:+94 117277 099

Email: ssh.inquiry@softlogic.lk

First Capital Equities (Pvt) Ltd.
Level 12, Vallible Property Building,
No. 480, Galle Road,

Colombo 03.

Tel: 494 11 2 L23 901

E-Mail: equity@firstcapital.lk

Bartleet Religare Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

Level “G", “Bartleet House”, No. 65, Braybrooke Place,
Colombo 2.

Tel: +94 11 5 220 200

Fax:+94 11 2 434 985

E-mail: info@bartleetstock.com

Almas Equities (Pvt) Ltd

Westin Tower, 5th Level, No 2 - 4/1,
Lake Drive, Colombo 8

Tel : +94 707 144 551

Fax:+94 11 2673 908

E-Mail: info@almassequirities.com

Nestor stock Brokers (Pvt) Ltd.

No. 428, 2/7, R.A. De Mel Mawatha, Colombo 3
Tel: +94 11475 8813

Fax:+94 11 2550100

E-mail: info@ nestorstockbrokers.lk

ACAP Stock Brokers {Pvt) Ltd

No. 46/46, Greenlanka Building,

6th Floor, Nawam Mawatha, Colombo 02
Tel: +94 117 564 000

Fax: +94 112 331 756

E-Mail: info@acapstockbrokers.lk

Ambeon Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

2nd Floor, No. 10, Gothami Road,
Colombo 08

Tel: +94 11 5328 200/ 494 11 5328 100
Fax:+94 115328177

E-mail: info@ambeonsecurities.lk
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Bank of Ceylon
Head Office

11th Floor, 04, Bank of Ceylon Mawatha, Colombo 01.

Tel: +94 112 204064

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

24, Sir Baron Jayathilake Mawatha, Colombo 01.
Tel: 011 2325435,011 2446 591,011 2446 303

Citi Bank, N A

65 C, Dharmapala Mawatha.
P. 0. Box 888, Colombo 07.
Tel: +94 114 794728

People’s Bank
Head Office - Treasury, 5th Floor,

Sir Chittampalam A. Gardiner Mawatha, Colombo 02.

Tel: 0112206782

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
Commercial House

21, Bristol Street, P.O. Box 853, Colombo 01.
Tel: 011 2445 010-15

Public Bank Berhad
340, R A De Mel Mawatha, Colombo 03.
Tel: 011 2576 289,011 7 290 200-7

Deutsche Bank AG
P.0O.Box 314, 86, Galle Road, Colombo 03.
Tel: 0112447062 /0112438057

Standard Chartered Bank
37, York Street, P. O. Box 112, Colombo 01.
Tel: +94 112 480450

Hatton National Bank PLC
HNB Towers, 479, T. B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10.
Tel: +94 112 661 762

Sampath Bank PLC
110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02.
Tel: +94 115 331458, +94 114 730662

Union Bank of Colombo PLC
64, Galle Road, Colombo 03.
Tel: +94 112 374205

State Bank of India
16, Sir Baron Jayathilake Mawatha, Colombo 01.
Tel: +94 114 622350

Nations Trust Bank PLC

256, Sri Ramanathan Mawatha,
Colombo 15

Tel: +94 114 313131

Seylan Bank PLC

Level 8, Ceylinco Seylan Towers,
90, Galle Road, Colombo 03.
Tel:0114701812,0114 701819

Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC
Head Office

450, Galle Road, Colombo 03.

Tel: 011 2 565 565




